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THE UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA
MINISTRY OF TRANSPORT

LAND TRANSPORT REGULATORY AUTHORITY

Hon. Prof. Makame M. Mbarawa (MP),
Minister for Transport,
Government City Mtumba,
1 Ujenzi Street,
P.O. Box 2888,
40470 DODOMA.

Honorable Minister,

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL
Pursuant to section 38 of the Land Transport Regulatory Authority Act, Cap 413, I am 
honoured and pleased to submit the Annual Report of the Land Transport Regulatory 
Authority (LATRA) for the financial year ended 30 June 2023.

2.	 The Annual Report consists of the following:  

a)	 Independent Report of the Controller and Auditor General (CAG);

b)	 Report by Those Charged with Governance prepared in compliance with the 
Tanzania Financial Reporting Standard (TFRS) No. 1; and

c)	 Audited Financial Statements, which have been prepared in compliance with 
the International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs).

Respectfully submitted,

Prof. Ahmed M. Ame (Phd)

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
31 March 2024

Land Transport Regulatory Authority, P.O.Box 1742, 41104 Tambukareli. Dodoma
Tel: +255 262 323 930,  Email: dg@latra.go.tz, info@latra.go.tz, Web: www.latra.go.tz
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BOARD CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

It is with great privilege that, on behalf of the Board of 
Directors of the Land Transport Regulatory Authority 
(LATRA), I present my Statement to the LATRA Annual 
Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2023. This is 
the 5th Annual Report since LATRA became operational 
on 29 April 2019. The Annual Report consists of the 
Independent Report of the Controller and Auditor General 
(CAG), the Report by Those Charged with Governance, 
and the Audited Financial Statements of the Authority for 
the financial year ended 30 June 2023.  The report also 
narrates the operational performance of the Authority, 
providing insights to stakeholders on the implemented 
strategies towards value creation during the year.

The financial year 2022/23 marked the 3rd year of 
implementation of the LATRA’s Five-Year Strategic Plan 
(2020/21 to 2024/25). The five-year Strategic Plan was 
revised in the financial year 2022/23 and the Revised 
version has five (5) strategic objectives namely: (i) Health 
Services improved and HIV/AIDS infections reduced; (ii) 
Effective implementation of the National Anti-Corruption 
Strategy enhanced and sustained; (iii) Land transport 
service availability enhanced; (iv) Capacity to execute 
land transport regulation enhanced; and (v) Safety and 
environmental preservation in land transport enhanced.
The Board is committed to lead the Authority in achieving 
the five revised strategic objectives in the remaining 
period

The financial year 2022/23 was the year of Population and 
Housing Census in Tanzania. The results from the Census 
have indicated a higher annual increase in urban population 
by 4.8% in the period of 2012/22 compared to 3.2% in the 
period of 2002/12; a situation that highlights the need for 
strengthening urban and interurban transport services to 
support growth in socio-economic activities. The Authority 
has noted on these dynamics and it is responding positively 
by organizing the land transport services to accommodate 
the changes in demands.

Prof. Ahmed M. 
Ame (Phd)

Strategic Plan 
Revised

2022/2023
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BOARD CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUE)

Our performance indicators demonstrate progress, 
with increased availability of licensed vehicles and  
improvements of quality of service and safety in the road 
and railway transport sub-sectors. To enhance service 
availability, the Authority established new bus routes and 
increased licensing of commercial vehicles. In enhancing 
safety of driving, the Authority expanded centres for 
certifying driver competences from one centre to five 
centres during the year. 

The Authority began implementing the Government 
decision to lift the ban on night-bus services starting 
from December 2022 by providing pilot permissions to a 
limited number of compliant operators of intercity buses to 
depart from 5:00 AM to 3:00 AM with additional operating 
conditions to enhance safety and efficiency of bus services.  
The Authority, in collaboration with other stakeholders, is 
planning to allow 24-hour intercity bus services during the 
next financial year, 2023/24.

Furthermore, during the financial year 2022/23, the Board 
continued to govern the Authority’s financial, human and 
operational resources. In this role, the Authority recorded 
a clean audit certificate, while financial resources increased 
by 21 percent, reaching TZS 34.8 billion compared to an 
11 percent increase recorded in the financial year 2021/22. 
Consequently, the Authority successfully financed its 
mandate from its own sources, fully transferring its Head 
Office to Dodoma effective from 26 September 2022 and 
recruiting 29 new employees. Additionally, in pursuit of 
good corporate governance, the Board initiated review of 
its Charter to align with guidelines for public and statutory 
corporations issued by the Office of the Treasury Registrar, 
ensuring effective governance and accountability in its 
undertakings.

21%
Financial Resources 

increase to 

TZS 
34.8 billion

Ban on Night-Bus 
Services partially 

lifted from December 

2022

Expanded and 
Increased Road 

Passenger 
Services
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BOARD CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUE)

Despite the noted achievements, the land transport 
sector faced challenges such as global rise of fuel price 
and exchange rate fluctuations as a result of the ongoing 
war between Russia and Ukraine. These factors impacted 
the operational costs of regulated services, prompting 
requests for tariff reviews. Consequently, the Board 
approved revisions to the tariffs for ride hailing passenger 
services and Bus Rapid Transit services in December 2022 
to enhance fair competition.

In conclusion, on behalf of the Board, I wish to extend 
my sincere gratitude to Her Excellency, Dr. Samia Suluhu 
Hassan, the President of the United Republic of Tanzania, 
for her excellent leadership and dedication in reviving 
our economy for socio-economic development. Similarly, 
we appreciate the guidance and tireless support of 
Hon. Prof. Makame M. Mbarawa (MP), the Minister for 
Transport. In addition, we appreciate cooperation we 
received from the regulated service providers, esteemed 
customers, consumers of land transport services, local and 
international stakeholders, Management and staff of the 
Authority. We remain steadfast in our mission to ensure 
availability of safe and affordable land transport services 
in Tanzania.

Prof. Ahmed M. Ame (Phd)
BOARD CHAIRMAN
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DIRECTOR GENERAL’S STATEMENT

On behalf of  the  Management  of  Land Transport 
Regulatory Authority (LATRA), I am pleased to present my 
Statement on the 5th issue of  LATRA’s  Annual  Report. 
The 5th issue of the  report  consists of the Report of 
the Controller and Auditor General (CAG), the Report 
by Those Charged with Governance and the Audited 
Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 
2023. The report also presents operational performance 
of the Authority in the 3rd year of implementation of its 
Five-Year Strategic Plan (2020/21 to 2024/25) in regulating 
road, railway and cable transport services.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2023, the Authority 
revised its Five-Year Strategic Plan (2020/21 - 2024/25) at 
its mid-point of implementation in order to accommodate 
national and international strategic developments relating 
to land transport services. The revision incorporated views 
of several stakeholders from public as well as private 
sector. The plans, in the next financial year 2023/24, will be 
drawn from the revised Five-year Strategic Plan with these 
five strategic objectives: (i) Health Services improved and 
HIV/AIDS infections reduced; (ii) Effective implementation 
of the National Anti-Corruption Strategy enhanced and 
sustained; (iii) Land transport service availability enhanced; 
(iv) Capacity to execute land transport regulation 
enhanced; and (v) Safety and environmental preservation 
in land transport enhanced.

In enhancing land transport service availability, during 
the financial year 2022/23, the Authority issued a total 
of 284,158 road service licenses to commercial vehicles 
(2021/22: 239,953 licenses) and 3,427 timetables for 
intercity passenger service vehicles (2021/22: 4,670 
timetables). Further, the Authority established 610 new 
routes for commuter bus services (2021/22: 156 routes).

CPA Habibu J.S. Suluo

Budget for 
2023/24 will be 
drawn from the 

revised Strategic 
Plan 

284,158 
Road Service 

Licenses 
were issued
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DIRECTOR GENERAL’S STATEMENT (CONTINUE)

Furthermore, to enhance safe driving, the Authority 
registered 6,806 (2021/22: 4,089) while the first year 
of driver testing had accommodated 1,914 drivers of 
commercial road services. To enhance compliance to 
licensing conditions; a total of 104 regular roadside 
inspections (2021/22: 26 inspections) and 6 inspections 
on TAZARA and TRC (2021/22: 7 inspections) were 
implemented during the financial year. In addition, the 
Authority investigated two (2) major railway accidents and 
incidents related to infrastructure (2021/22:8). As well, the 
Authority conducted 4 sensitization seminars covering 
180 TRC’s Safety Critical Workers at Dodoma, Mwanza, 
Kigoma, Tabora and Morogoro stations; and 4 seminars for 
TAZARA workers at Mbeya, Mlimba, Makambako and Dar 
es Salaam stations, covering 50 Safety Critical Workers.

The Vehicle Tracking System (VTS), which was installed into 
train locomotives and buses, serves to enhance control 
of over-speeding buses, monitoring driving behaviours 
and real-time monitoring of buses in order to impart safe 
driving among drivers. During the financial year 2022/23, 
a total of 2,009 buses (2021/22: 1,351 buses) and 18 
locomotives (2021/22:17 locomotives) were successfully 
integrated into this system. 

The Authority continued to leverage on the application of 
Information Technology solutions to facilitate availability of 
and access to the regulated services. During the financial 
year 2022/23, in collaboration with eGA, the Authority 
continued to improve the Railway and Road Information 
Management System (RRIMS) to facilitate online vehicle 
license application and issuance, registration of commercial 
vehicle drivers and crew. Additionally, the Authority 
continued to enhance the Drivers Testing System (DTS) 
and deploying it to four more regions of Arusha, Dodoma, 
Mbeya and Mwanza in addition to Dar-es-Salaam centre 
that was established a year before; and with plans to 
expand to all regions in the coming financial year.

New 

610 
routes for 
commuter 
buses were 
established

2009 
buses were 

installed 
with VTDS
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DIRECTOR GENERAL’S STATEMENT (CONTINUE)

Resource-wise, the Authority recorded achievements in 
enhancing regulatory framework, operations, financial 
and human resource mobilization; whereby its revenues 
increased by 21% from TZS 28.82 recognized in 2021/22 
to 34.80 billion in 2022/23. 

In addition, 29 new staff (2021/22: 6 staff) were recruited 
and deployed to the Authority’s offices to strengthen 
operational efficiency while the Head Office was fully 
transferred to Dodoma on 26 September 2022. As well, 
the Authority established offices in strategic locations 
within Dar es Salaam, which are Magufuli Bus Terminal, 
Mbagala and Tegeta bus stands. 

On improving human resources in order to strengthen 
service delivery; staff training was implemented at 60% 
compared to the target of 50%; whereby 93 employees 
were provided with short-term and long-term training. 
In enhancing the regulatory framework, the Authority 
engaged stakeholders who participated in drafting of 
proposed eight (8) regulations under the leadership of the 
Ministry of Transport. The regulations target the functions 
of Facilitation of Service Provision, Mandatory Vehicle 
Inspection, Compounding of Offences, Transportation of 
Dangerous Goods, Terms and Conditions for Provision 
of Regulated Services Rules, Complaints Handling 
Procedures Rules, Electronic Ticketing System and Vehicle 
Tracking System.

In improving stakeholder collaborations, the Authority 
teamed up with development partners to implement 
activities which aimed at reducing the challenge of 
multitude of proprietary small passenger service providers  
(85% of all have one or two buses) by promoting them to 
be organized into operators’ cooperatives and companies, 
in Dar es Salaam and Dodoma, as the starting points. 

Eight (8)
New

Regulations
were drafted
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Further, the Authority took some steps in regulating the 
environment-friendly cable transport through capacity 
building, research and consultation with investors in 
Arusha, Kilimanjaro, Tanga, Iringa and Mbeya. These 
strategies seek to increase availability of quality land 
transport services, reducing regulatory burden and cut 
down on carbon emission.

To sum up, the achievements of the financial year 2022/23 
underscores LATRA’s commitment to regulatory excellence 
and innovation facilitated by growth in financial and human 
resources, capacity building, strategic partnerships, 
enhanced legal framework and deployment of technology 
among many others; all of which aim at ensuring the 
availability of safe and affordable land transport services in 
Tanzania. The success was a result of good governance in 
the role of the Board of Directors, support and guidance 
provided by the Ministry of Transport, the cohesion of 
employees and cooperation from the Authority’s local and 
international stakeholders.  

We remain grateful to all stakeholders for continued 
cooperation during the  year.  I extend my special recognition 
to the Board of Directors, Management, and employees 
of the Authority for their endless support and cooperation 
and adherence to our Core Values and strategic goals. 
With the same zeal in part of Management, employees and 
stakeholders, I call upon all to work harder to achieve bigger 
achievements in the years ahead.

CPA Habibu J.S. Suluo
DIRECTOR GENERAL

DIRECTOR GENERAL’S STATEMENT (CONTINUE)
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AUTHORITY’S INFORMATION
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1.0	 INDEPENDENT REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER AND AUDITOR 
GENERAL

Chairman of the Board,
Land Transport Regulatory Authority, 
P.O. Box 1742,
41104 Tambukareli
DODOMA.

1.1	 REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unqualified Opinion

I have audited the financial statements of Land Transport Regulatory 
Authority, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 
2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes 
in net assets and cash flow statement and the statement of comparison of 
budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as the notes 
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly in 
all material respects, the financial position of Land Transport Regulatory 
Authority as at 30 June 2023, and its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Public 
Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) Accrual basis of accounting and the 
manner required by the Public Finance Act, Cap. 348

Basis for Opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards 
of Supreme Audit Institutions (ISSAIs). My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the section below entitled 
“Responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor General for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements”. I am independent of Land Transport Regulatory 
Authority in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) 
together with the National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) 
Code of Ethics, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements.  I believe that the audit evidence 
I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion.
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1.0	 INDEPENDENT REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL 
(Continued)
1.1	 REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the report by those charged with governance, statement of 
management responsibility and Declaration by the Head of Finance but 
does not include the financial statements and my audit report thereon 
which I obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, 
and I do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon which I 
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is 
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or my 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.

If, based on the work I have performed on the other information that I 
obtained prior to the date of this audit report, I conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report 
that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance 
for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in accordance with IPSAS and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
entity or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the entity’s 
financial reporting process.
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1.0	 INDEPENDENT REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL 
(Continued)

1.1	 REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor General for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error and to issue an audit report that includes 
my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAIs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISSAIs, I exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I 
also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control;

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control;

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by management;

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as 
a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am 
required to draw attention in my audit report to the related disclosures 
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of my audit report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going 
concern; and
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1.0	 INDEPENDENT REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL 
(Continued)

1.1	 REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

•	 valuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of 
the financial statements of the current period and are, therefore, the 
key audit matters. I describe these matters in my audit report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, I determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest of such 
communication.

In addition, Section 10 (2) of the Public Audit Act, Cap.. 418 [R.E 2021] 
requires me to satisfy myself that the accounts have been prepared in 
accordance with the appropriate accounting standards.

Further, Section 48(3) of the Public Procurement Act, Cap 410 [R.E 2022] 
requires me to state in my annual audit report whether or not the audited 
entity has complied with the procedures prescribed in the Procurement 
Act and its Regulations.
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1.0	 INDEPENDENT REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL 
(Continued)

1.2	 REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATIONS

1.2.1	 Compliance with the Public Procurement laws 

Subject matter: Compliance audit on procurement of works, goods, and 
services

I performed a compliance audit on the procurement of works, goods, and 
services in the Land Transport Regulatory Authority for the financial year 
2022/23 as per the Public Procurement laws. 

Conclusion 

Based on the audit work performed, I state that procurement of goods, 
works and services of Land Transport Regulatory Authority is generally 
in compliance with the requirements of the Public Procurement laws in 
Tanzania.

1.2.2	 Compliance with the Budget Act and other Budget Guidelines

Subject matter: Budget formulation and execution

I performed a compliance audit on budget formulation and execution in 
the Land Transport Regulatory Authority for the financial year 2022/23 as 
per the Budget Act and other Budget Guidelines. 

Conclusion 

Based on the audit work performed, I state that Budget formulation 
and execution of the Land Transport Regulatory Authority is generally in 
compliance with the requirements of the Budget Act and other Budget 
Guidelines.

Charles E. Kichere

Controller and Auditor General,
Dodoma, United Republic of Tanzania.
March 2024



6 2022/23
Annual Report

2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

2.1.	 	 INTRODUCTION

Those Charged with Governance are pleased to submit this report 
together with financial statements of the Land and Transport Regulatory 
Authority (LATRA) for the financial year ended 30 June 2023. The financial 
statements disclose the financial position as at 30 June 2023 and state of 
affairs of LATRA.

This report is prepared in compliance with requirements of the Tanzania 
Financial Reporting Standard No. 1 (TFRS No. 1) as issued by the National 
Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) on 22 June 2020 and became 
effective on 1 January 2021.

The report sets out analysis of the Authority’s operations and financial 
review with a forward-looking orientation to assist primary users and 
stakeholders to assess the strategies adopted by the Authority and the 
potential of those strategies to succeed toward creating value over the 
short-, medium- and long-term period.

2.2.		 FUNCTIONS OF THE AUTHORITY

The objective of the Authority in carrying out its functions is to enhance 
the welfare of Tanzania society by-

(a) 	 to perform the functions conferred on the Authority by sector 
legislation;

(b) 	 to issue, renew and cancel permits or licences;
(c) 	 subject to sector legislation to-

(i) 	 establish standards for regulated goods and regulated services;

(ii) 	 establish standards for the terms and conditions of supply of the 
regulated goods and services; and

(iii)  regulate rates and charges;

(d) 	 to coordinate land transport safety activities;
(e) 	 to register crew and certify drivers of regulated sector;
(f) 	 to certify worthiness of rolling stock and road worthiness of public 

service vehicles and goods vehicles;
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

2.2.		 FUNCTIONS OF THE AUTHORITY  (CONTINUED)

(g) 	 to monitor the performance of the regulated sectors including-

(i)   levels of investment;

(ii)  availability of safe, quality and standards of services;

(iii) cost of services;

(iv) efficiency of production and distribution of services; and

 (v) other matters relevant to the Authority;
(h) 	 to facilitate resolution of complaints and disputes;
 (i) 	 to disseminate information about matters relevant to the functions of 

the Authority;
 (j) 	 to consult with other regulatory authorities or bodies or institutions 

discharging functions similar to those of the Authority in Mainland 
Tanzania or elsewhere; and

(k) 	 to perform such other functions as may be conferred on the Authority 
by this Act or any other law.

THE CULTURE OF THE AUTHORITY 
The culture of the Authority is guided by shared vision, mission and core 
values. The Authority’s aspiration is set out in its vision statement while 
the mission statement shows means of achieving the vision. The core 
values represent employees’ moral boundaries in their conduct while 
implementing the mission. These are narrated as follows;

(a)	 Vision Statement
The Authority’s vision is to have: “A country with safe, reliable and eco-
friendly land transport services.”

(b)	 Mission Statement
The Authority’s mission is: “To regulate land transport services through 
licensing, monitoring and promoting competition for the welfare of 
Tanzanians.” 
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

(c)	 Core Values
In the pursuit of its vision, the Authority’s employees undertake to uphold 
the following core values:

(i) Professionalism: We demonstrate knowledge, skills and positive attitude 
in our work;

(ii) Accountability: We endeavour to take responsibility for our actions;

(iii) Teamwork: We work together to achieve our common goals;

(iv) Integrity: We are honest and fair in serving our stakeholders;

(v) Transparency: We perform our duties in an open and collaborative 
manner; and

(v) Innovativeness: We strive to find better ways of adding value to our 
services.

2.3.		 NATURE OF THE OPERATIONS
The Land Transport Regulatory Authority (LATRA) is a Government 
Regulatory Authority mandated to enhance welfare of Tanzania society 
through promoting competition, safety and availability of regulated 
services while ensuring protection of interests of consumers of all 
types, investors and preservation of environment. The Authority is set 
to regulate land transport services particularly transportation of goods 
and passengers In so doing, LATRA regulates commercial land transport 
services categorized as commuter buses, intercity buses, goods carrying 
vehicles, taxis, motorcycles and tricycles, railway infastructure, locomotives 
and cable cars 

a)	 The Legislative and Regulatory Environment in which the 
Organization Operates

In undertaking its mandate, the Authority is required to protect interests 
of consumers and efficient service providers while preserving the 
environment. To achieve this, LATRA conduct its affairs in line with the 
LATRA Act CAP.413 and its regulations.

Through the Act, nine (9) regulations were gazetted and are operational 
since 2020. During the financial year 2022/23, the Authority participated 
in the process of drafting eight (8) new rules and regulations under the 
supervision of the Ministry of Works and Transport.  
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b)	 Industry in which the Entity Operates.

The key stakeholders to the operations of LATRA are the Ministry of 
Transport, Tanzania Police Force, Tanzania Revenue Authority (TRA), 
Tanzania Insurance Regulatory Authority (TIRA), National Identification 
Authority (NIDA) and Local Government Authorities (LGAs). Other key 
stakeholders include the Tanzania Roads Agency (TANROADS), Tanzania 
Rural and Urban Roads Agency (TARURA), Tanzania Bureau of Standards 
(TBS),  Fair Competition Commission (FCC),  Fair Competition Tribunal, 
insurance companies, the private sector, training institutions, consumers 
of regulated services, trade unions, media and the public.

For all the years, the dominant mode of land transportation has been 
by road or railways. Recently, the need for cable transport has gained 
momentum especially in tourism attraction areas where investors have 
shown interest. To lead the initiatives, the Authority decided to review 
its organisation structure to align with the growing demand. The revised 
structure was submitted to the Treasury Registrar in April 2023 and it is 
expected to be considered and deliberated by the end of the financial 
year 2023/2024. Once in place, the Authority will be in a good position to 
promote and regulate cable transport across the country.

c)	 Main Products, Services, Customers, Business Processes and 
Distribution methods

The Authority is a regulator of land transport in Mainland Tanzania. As a 
regulator, the Authority provides operating licenses to regulated service 
providers. Moreover, the Authority certify competencies of drivers and 
register crew for commercial vehicles to enhance safety and quality of 
services.

To enhance safety of intercity buses, the Authority has deployed an 
automated system known as Vehicle Tracking System (VTS). The system 
provides real-time data for monitoring driving behaviour, location and 
speed of buses and trains. 

The Authority customers include, public corporation, private companies 
and individuals who provide passenger and goods transport services in 
road, railways and cable transport, vendors of VTS, drivers and crew.

LATRA operates in the 26 regional offices, at the primary level, providing 
regulatory service especially licensing, monitoring and public awareness 
to customers, other stakeholders and the general public.
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c)	 Main Products, Services, Customers, Business Processes and 
Distribution methods (Continued)

The Authority’s business processes are interlinked horizontally and 
vertically. Vertically, each business process has its hierarchy from the Head 
Office to regional offices. Horizontally, the Directorates and Units exchange 
information and complement controls. 

Each year, The Authority organize collaborative planning and budgeting 
sessions to prioritize on annual targets and distribute resources to ensure 
LATRA’s short, medium and long-term objectives are met.

d)	 Structure of the entity’s operation, and its economic model, 
including an overview of the main operating facilities and their 
location.

The overall Management of LATRA is vested in the Board of Directors as 
the governing board under the supervision of the Minister responsible for 
Transport. The Director General is Secretary to the Board and responsible 
for day-to-day operations of the Authority. 

The Management, which is under the supervision of the Director General, 
is organized into five (5) Directorates and five (5) Units. The Director 
General is Secretary to the Board. All Directors and Head of Units report 
to the Director General.

The Authority Head Office was shifted from Dar es Salaam to the Capital 
City, Dodoma from 26 September 2022. The head office is accommodated 
at the Mkandarasi Building owned by the Contractors Registration Board 
(CRB). The shift to Dodoma is expected to enhance coordination of 
regulatory activities across the country and to improve service delivery.

In addition to its head office, the Authority operates in twenty-six 
(26) regions of Mainland Tanzania. To expand its regulatory activities, 
especially to areas with high number of regulates services, the Authority 
opened offices at Makambako town in Njombe, Kahama town, Shinyanga 
and in Dar es Salaam at Magufuli Bus Terminal and VTS Control Centre, 
Mikocheni.

e)	 Effectiveness and Efficient Utilization of resources

The Authority utilize tangible and intangible resources including intellectual 
resources, human resources, social and relationship resources, natural 
resources, financial resources and others. 

The Board is responsible for ensuring efficient utilization of resources 
through budgetary controls, recruitment of human resources with right 
skills, acquisition and disposal of intellectual and physical resources as 
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e)	 Effectiveness and Efficient Utilization of resources (Continued)

well as oversight on Management and operations. Efficiency is achieved 
through deployment of internal policies and procedures on management 
of resources, automation of business processes, building staff capacity and 
regular employee performance management.

The Revised LATRA Strategic Plan (2020/21 - 2024/25) provides linkage 
with relevant national and international frameworks to ensure operations 
are effective and meet the goal of enhancing welfare of Tanzania society 
as stipulated in the LATRA Act Cap 413. Annual plans and budgets are 
drawn from the plan in order to ensure effective utilization of resources in 
line with Government priorities.

Details of the resources are provided in relevant section of the report.

f)	 Macro and Micro Economic Conditions

During the year 2022/23 the transport sector was affected by the rising 
prices of fuel which was largely attributed by the war between Russia and 
Ukraine. Russia is one of the world’s largest producers of fossil fuel. Ban of 
Russian oil, gas and diesel caused a steep spike in prices of fuel across the 
globe. In the country, fuel prices were high at the beginning of the financial 
year which prompted the Government to intervene by subsidizing cost of 
fuel which in turn stabilized transport costs and reduced inflation. 

Through subsidization, the price declined to TZS 2,819/litre of petrol and 
TZS 3,295/litre for diesel in January 2023. The global and local dynamics 
in prices of fuel has impact on overall transport costs because fuel is the 
major cost element that contributes an average of 40%. 

The exchange rate fluctuations have impact on cost of fuel, imported spare 
parts and other consumables. The general and specific inflation rates 
have been stable at around 5% in most months of the year 2022/23. Fuel 
inflation was small at 2.1% for most of the year due to the Government 
intervention. However, transport-related annual average inflation was 
around 5.5% which was higher than overall inflation. Due to that, the 
Authority received requests to review tariffs for passenger train services,  
freight charges for petroleum products in the local market and Bus Rapid 
Transit services.
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g)	 Market Forces and Competitive Position
The sector is dominated by small operators with small fleet size. Among 
licensed passenger service transport market, proprietary individuals 
constitute 95% with average fleet size of two vehicles

The ownership situation pose challenges in terms of regulation as it 
attracts high costs for enforcing compliance, low quality of services and 
erratic entry and exit from market. To change the situation, LATRA initiated 
strategies for promoting formation of cooperatives and companies which 
will reverse the situation.

There are geographical advantages for Tanzania as the Dar-es-Salaam 
port is better positioned to serve the land linked countries of Burundi, 
Democratic Republic of Congo, Malawi, Rwanda, Uganda and Zambia. 
Currently, over 90% of the cargo passing the port to the land linked 
countries is carried by road and the remaining portion is by railway. The 
cost of transportation by road is higher than railways, thus prompting the 
Government to upgrade the existing railways and construct new Standard 
Gauge Railway.

There are also issues of Non-Tariff Barriers (NTB) which affect cross-border 
trading and the transport sector. The issues are being resolved through 
bilateral and multilateral agreements that LATRA is involved. In the year 
2022/23, LATRA collected information from transit service providers to 
determine issues for strategy development.

The market for passenger transport services is characterized by stiff 
competition within a particular type of service and between different 
types of services, and seasonality. Regular market surveys indicated that 
competition on intercity and commuter buses has resulted to fares being 
lower than maximum (cap) by around 20%. There are also scramble for 
passengers among operators of commuter buses, motorcycles and 
tricycles, a situation that threatens sustainability of commuter bus services 
in major cities. The month of December is characterised by fare hikes for 
some routes such as DSM-Moshi and DSM-Lushoto. The situation calls for 
interventions every year to stabilize fares and ensure availability of services.

In the liquid freight market, transporters submitted to LATRA request for 
determination of tariff for transportation of petroleum products that will 
reflect market behaviours and reasonable return on investment.
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h)	 The Speed and Effect of Technological Change
The Authority continued to increase the use of Information and 
Communication Technology (ICT) solutions in facilitating implementation 
of its activities and in providing access of its services to customers. During 
the financial year, LATRA continued with automation of its business 
processes with focus on linking stakeholders such as e-Ticketing providers, 
weighbridges, vendors of VTS, bus terminals and government institutions 
with roles to facilitate regulatory functions. 

The ICT system in use for providing regulatory services includes:

i.	 The Vehicle Tracking System (VTS) which is connected to locomotives 
and buses. By 30 June 2023, a total of 8,734 buses and 18 locomotives 
were connected to this system. The use of VTS has strengthened 
control of speed at all times and wherever these units are located. 
In addition, the system will enhance confidence to allow buses to 
operate for 24 hours.

ii.	 The Railways and Roads Information Management System (RRIMS): 
This is the core system, which is used to issue licenses for all vehicles 
and registration of drivers for commercial vehicles as well as crew. 
Through the system, service provider can register and apply for 
licenses online from anywhere. Applicants can also pay license fee 
through the system which is integrated with Government Electronic 
Payment Gateway (GePG). After payment, license can be collected at 
any of LATRA offices. During the year, the Authority in collaboration 
with eGA continued to improve the system.

iii.	 The Drivers Testing System (DTS). This system was developed to 
facilitate implementation of Section 5(1)(e) of the Land Transport 
Regulatory Authority Act, Cap.413 which requires the Authority 
to register crew and certify drivers of regulated sector. The system 
was piloted starting on 1 June 2022 and the first testing centre was 
established at LATRA DSM Office at SUMATRA House. Until 30 June, 
2023, a total of 1,914 drivers were tested through the system, among 
them 1,092 drivers passed and were certified. In its bid to ensure 
drivers are tested in their respective regions, during the year the 
Authority opened centres in Arusha, Dodoma, Mbeya and Mwanza. 
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h)	 The Speed and Effect of Technological Change (Continued)

iv.	 Other IT solutions that are in use are:
•	 Mobile Phones Online Inquiry System for Bus Fares,
•	 Electronic Document Management System (EDMS),
•	 Mfumo wa Ulipaji Serikalini (MUSE), 
•	 Integrated Payroll & Human Resource Management System, and
•	 Time Attendance (Biometric) System.

i)	 Societal Issues
The financial year 2022/23 was a population and housing census for 
Tanzania. The preliminary results of census show growth in population at 
level of 3.2% per annum and increase in urbanization by 4.8% per annum. 
These dynamics have implication on demand for interurban and urban 
transport services to facilitate social and economic activities.

On the other hand, when adjourning the Parliament in Dodoma in June 
2023, the Government, through the His Excellence the Prime Minister,  
Mr Kassim Majaliwa Majaliwa officially lifted ban on night-bus-services, 
past 24:00hours, that was imposed in 1992. The announcement to lift the 
ban provided condition that owners must apply for permits. The ban was 
imposed in 1992, due to incidents of hijacking and accidents that costed 
people’s lives and damage to property, including infrastructure.

The Prime Minister’s decision formalized the decision made by the 
Authority in December 2022, which allowed buses to start their journey at 
3.0 am. Despite the move, bus owners continued to demand permission 
to operate for 24 hours, while LATRA provided trial permission for some 
buses. During the trial period, LATRA cancelled timetables of nine buses 
that were given permission, including six of Ally’s Star busses and three of 
Katarama Express for violating terms of their licenses. The decision was 
publicly announced on 19 June 2023.

The Authority, while implementing the Government decision, shall continue 
to ensure terms of licences are adhered with for safety of passengers and 
properties.

In carrying out its functions of enhancing welfare of the Tanzania society, 
the Authority has been participating and providing financial support to 
special social programs through its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
program  whose details are provided in respective section of this report.
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j)	 Environmental Challenges

The transport sector relies on diesel motive power among regulated 
vehicles. Diesel engines contribute to environmental pollution through the 
emission of carbon gases and oil spillage. Pollution is further exacerbated 
by littering and a lack of toilet facilities along highways for environmental 
preservation. To address these issues, the Authority, in collaboration 
with other stakeholders, has prepared Environmental Guidelines. These 
guidelines are utilized to enforce environmental management of railway 
services, as well as garages for the maintenance of locomotives and 
wagons. Using these guidelines, the Authority conducted inspections 
during the year for both TRC and TAZARA railways, and it is satisfied 
with the measures taken by the railway undertakings to preserve the 
environment.

During the year, the Authority developed an the Authority developed 
an Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) strategy. This strategy 
includes an ESG Matrix used to evaluate the performance of TRC for 
the year 2022/23 concerning environmental, social, and sustainable 
development. Details of the guideline and the strategy are provided in 
later sections of this report.

In its efforts to promote the use of renewable energy, the Authority has 
forged a partnership with the German Cooperation Agency (GIZ) for 
technical support. This collaboration aims to explore possibilities for 
introducing renewable energy in urban transport and the Standard Gauge 
Rail (SGR) by sourcing financing from the National Aligned Mitigation 
Action (NAMA), a multilateral basket funding initiative for climate financing.

k)	 Political Environment

The Revised Five Year Strategic Plan made sure to reflect visions of the 
Third National Five Year Development Plan (FYDPIII), which itself provides 
leadership to implement ruling political party (Chama cha Mapinduzi) 
manifesto.  Annual plans that were drawn from the Revised Five-Year 
Strategic Plan (2020/2021 - 2024/2025) are therefore clearly linked to 
political visions

The political environment in the Country is calm for the Authority to 
perform its functions without political challenges. As well, there was no 
political interference to the Authority in exercising its mandate.
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l)	 Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Land and Transport Regulatory Authority Act, Cap. 413 and its 
Regulations have been effective in facilitating discharge of Authority’s 
mandate. Section 5(1)(f) of the Act requires LATRA to certify worthiness 
of rolling stock and road worthiness of public service vehicles and goods 
vehicles. In implementing this requirement, the Authority coordinated 
establishment of mandatory vehicle inspection centres by conducting 
feasibility study. It also identified plots for construction of the centres in the 
regions of Mwanza, Arusha, Pwani, Dodoma and Mbeya. The inspection 
centres are expected to enhance quality and safety of regulated commercial 
vehicles through inspections using specialised equipment. 

However, the project has delayed paving way for discussions regarding 
conflicting law between Section 5(f) of the Land Transport Regulatory 
Act, CAP 413 and Sections 81,82 and 83 of the Road Traffic Act, 1973. 
The sections provides that both LATRA and Tanzania Police Force should 
undertake vehicle inspection.

Following amendment of Section 5(1)(c)(i) of the LATRA Act by removing 
the word “establish” and replacing it with “enforcing” with subsequent 
amendment of the Law (TBS Act) through the Finance Act, 2022, the 
Authority continued with the role of enforcing standards in the regulated 
sectors during the year.

2.4.		 SERVICE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

The statement of service performance information is intended to provide 
insight into the operations of the Authority for the Financial Year 2022/23 
and enable users to assess the extent to which those charged with 
governance have been able to use the available resources in achieving 
targets which were set for that financial year. The targets were derived from 
the Authority’s Five Years Corporate Strategic Plan 2020/21 – 2024/25. 
Hence, attainment of the targets is a step towards achieving the Authority’s 
strategic objectives.
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2.4.		 SERVICE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The reporting is based around the following elements:

(a)	 Objectives, Strategies and Targets: These are derived from LATRA 
Five years Corporate Plan.

(b)	 Risk, Impact and Mitigation: Comes from Risk Registers and 
identifies key risks and provide mitigations to lessen their impacts on 
attainment of the objectives; and

(c)	 Input, Processes, Outputs and Outcomes:

Inputs: 	 These are resources used by LATRA to produce outputs.

Process: 	 The activities which transform inputs to outputs.

Output:	 The services that the Authority delivered during the 
year.

Outcomes:	 Impacts expected in improving welfare of the Tanzania 
society through provision of the regulatory services.
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

2.4.		 SERVICE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
The reporting of service performance information is provided in the 
following sections:

SECTION 01:	 The link between all service performance objectives 
with respective inputs, outputs and outcomes

The Authority’s key objectives are provided in the above table and 
summarised as follows; to enhance its capacity to execute regulatory 
functions, strengthen competition in the regulated sectors, improve 
safety and availability of quality land transport services and preserving 
the environment. Narrated below is the link between objectives with 
inputs, outputs and outcomes:

Inputs

The Authority uses inputs such as, human resources, cash and other 
financial assets, capital assets such as land, buildings and vehicles, ICT 
equipment and software.

The human resources is one of the key inputs in implementing regulatory 
functions. At 30 June 2023, the Authority had 154 employees (2021/22: 
125) with adequate skills and competence on regulation.

The Authority earned a total of TZS 34.80 billion during the year, 
(2021/22: TZS 28.82 billion) which covered expenses of TZS 33.88 billion 
for the year (2021/22: TZS 27.07 billion). With regards to intangible 
resources, the Authority depends on its Act, CAP 413 and regulations 
as well as ICT applications to implement its mandate. The Ministry of 
Works and Transport in collaboration with the Authority developed eight 
(8) regulations which were gazetted in the year 2020. Another eight (8) 
regulations were drafted during the financial year 2022/23 and were 
submitted to the stakeholders’ meetings for comments. Among them are 
regulations for mandatory vehicle inspection, electronic ticketing, vehicle 
tracking system and transportation of dangerous goods. The Authority has 
also created good working relationships with stakeholders both internal 
and external. The relationship facilitates effective implementation of its 
mandate.
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

2.4.		 SERVICE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Outputs
According to Section 5 (1)(b) of the Act, the Authority is mandated to issue, 
renew and cancel permits and licences. These are key outputs in providing 
regulated services. To enhance safety, the Authority certify competencies 
of drivers and register crew for commercial vehicles. In addition, LATRA 
establishes new routes, provide bus timetables for passenger service 
vehicles and enforce compliance through inspections. The outputs for 
2022/23 are summarised as follows:

•	 284,158 (2021/22: 239,953) licenses were issued to commercial vehicles.
•	 A total of 6,806 (2021/22: 4,089) drivers were registered.
•	 Issued 3,427 (2021/22: 4,670) timetables for intercity passenger service 

vehicles.
•	 Established 610 (2021/22: 156) new routes for commuter services.
•	 104 (2021/22: 26) regular roadside inspections were conducted to 

enforce compliance.
•	 2 (2021/22:8) major accidents and incidents related to railway 

infrastructure were reported and investigated.
•	 6 (2021/22:7) inspections on TAZARA and TRC were conducted.

Outcomes
The overall expected outcome of LATRA performance is enhancing welfare 
of the Tanzania society. These is evident on increased availability of quality 
land transport services where operating licenced vehicles increased by 
18.4% (2021/22: 4.2%), enhanced safety of road and railway transport 
services where 246 road (2021/22: 289) and 2 railways (2021/22: 8) accidents 
were reported during the year. There is also notable improvement on the 
quality of passenger service vehicles and train services hence increased 
customers and passenger satisfaction.

SECTION 02:	 Assessment of whether service performance objectives 
have been achieved; and inter-period and inter-entity 
comparisons of service performance.

In achieving objectives, the following planned activities were implemented 
to achieve targets in 2022/23.

(a)	 Authority’s capacity to execute its regulatory functions 
enhanced:
•	 Planned to increase revenue collection by 21% from TZS 28.82 

to 34.80 billion by 30 June 2023. During the period, a total of 
TZS 34.80 billion was collected (2021/22: TZS 28.82 billion). The 
annual target was attained by 98.89% (2021/22: 95.0%).
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.4.		 SERVICE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(a)	 Authority’s capacity to execute its regulatory functions enhanced 
(Continued):
•	 The target was not achieved fully mainly due resistance of service 

providers to pay Regulatory Levies. Efforts to collect levies 
through engagement of the Government and other stakeholders 
is in progress.

•	 The Authority planned to Train 126 employees by June 2023. 
However the Authority implemented training of 93 employees 
which is 76.2% of the target. The target was affected by the 
program of shifting LATRA Head Office to Dodoma.

•	 The Authority planned to conduct Five (5) sensitization seminars 
for key stakeholders on legislations and enforcement procedures 
by June 2023. Six (6) sensitization seminars were implemented. 
The achievement surpassed the target by 120%.

•	 Publication of Five (5) LATRA new regulations were planned by 
June 2023. During the year, the Authority facilitated development 
and translation of eight (8) draft regulations. The performance was 
160% of the target.

•	 One (1) Policy namely, LATRA Document Disposal was planned 
to be developed by June 2023. LATRA Document Retention and 
Disposal Policy was developed and approved. The target was 
achieved by 100%.

•	 The Authority planned to relocate LATRA Head office to Dodoma 
by June 2023. The Head office was relocated to Dodoma on 26 
September 2022. The target was achieved by 100%.

•	 The Authority planned to  disseminate 100 TV Programs for 
corporate information to the public by June 2023. The Authority 
implemented a total of 115 TV programs. The performance was 
achieved by 115%.

•	 The Authority planned to improve three (3) ICT applications by 
June 2023. During the year, the billing module of RRIMS was 
improved to accommodate approved fares. In addition, VTS 
database engine was upgraded for security purposes and LATRA 
Mobile Application (LATRA App) was developed and published 
in the Google Android PlayStore. The performance was achieved 
by 100%.

•	 The Authority planned  to install information screens and ICT back 
born on two (2) bus terminals by June 2023. The installation of 
Passenger Information System (PIS) screens were implemented 
at Magufuli Bus Terminal in Dar es Salaam and Nanenane Bus 
Terminals in Dodoma.

•	 Planned to conduct audit of licensing activities for 32 Local 
Government Authorities by June 2023. A total 31 LGAs were 
audited. The Performance was 96.8% of the target.
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

2.4.		 SERVICE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b)	 Competition in the regulated sectors strengthened

Mid-Term review of the Authority’s Five Years Corporate Strategic Plan 
2020/21 -2024/25 conducted by June 2023. The Strategic Plan was 
reviewed in collaboration with experts from MoWT, MoFP and President 
Office - Public Service Management and Good Governance pending 
submission to stakeholders. The performance was 95% of the target.

Six (6) Quality service monitoring visits on regulated land transport services 
conducted by June 2023. Seven (7) Monitoring survey visits were conducted 
two (2) for interurban bus services in November and December 2022, 
three (3) monitoring surveys on quality of TRC passenger services from 
Dar es Salaam to Kigoma and deluxe passenger train from Dar es Salaam 
to Moshi and Arusha was conducted in June 2023, two (2) monitoring on 
quality of road freight services for Central Corridor and Dar es Salaam 
Corridor were conducted in May and June 2023. The performance was 
116.7% of the target.

Two (2) research on regulated land transport services conducted by June 
2023. Two studies were conducted, on passenger and freight services to 
establish market bus fares, freight rates and bus travel time and study to 
establish socio-economic impact of commercial motorcycles and motor-
tricycle offering private hire transport services in urban and sub-urban 
centres. The performance was 100%.

(c)	 Safety of land transport improved

One (1) Annual Railway Audit Inspection for TRC and TAZARA conducted 
by June 2023. The Annual Railway Audit inspection on TAZARA was 
conducted in August and September 2022 and safety inspection for 
Tanzania Railways Corporation (TRC) was conducted in December 2022 
from Tabora to Kigoma and Tanga line from Dar es Salaam to Moshi –Arusha 
including link line Ruvu Junction to Mruazi Junction. The performance was 
attained by 100%.

Quarterly safety Inspection on TRC and TAZARA Passenger Trains 
conducted by June 2023. A total of four (4) inspections were conducted 
as planned. For TAZARA passenger train from Dar es Salaam to Mbeya 
was conducted in October 2022, inspections of TRC infrastructure and 
equipment were conducted in December 2022, inspections of central line 
from Tabora to Kigoma and Tabora to Mwanza and Dar es Salaam to Moshi 
and Arusha was conducted in March 2023 and inspection of the TAZARA 
passenger train from Dar es Salaam to– Tunduma was conducted in April 
2023.



272022/23
Annual Report

2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

2.4.		 SERVICE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(c)	 Safety of land transport improved (Continued)
Commissioning of TRC SGR infrastructure, electrical and rolling stock by 
June 2023. Pre-commissioning inspection of Standard Railway Gauge 
(SGR) for lot one from Dar es Salaam to Morogoro was conducted in 
November 2022. The Authority commissioned electrical system for lot 1 
(DSM-MOR) and conducted static inspection for commissioning of 14 new 
coaches as well as 6 used refurbished coaches at Pugu station yard. The 
performance was attained by 100%

At least 4000 licensed interurban buses fitted with Vehicle Tracking Devices 
(VTDs) monitored by June 2023. A total number of 8734 interurban buses 
were installed with VTDs. The performance was above the target.

100% of the Reported Railway Accidents investigated by June 2023. Two (2) 
major accidents were reported and investigated. These are train accident 
on TAZARA line that involved capsizement of Train No 0129 at km 518 
between Lumumwe-Mpanga in Mlimba District and TRC passenger train 
No. S54 which was involved in an accident at Km 345/6 between Fela and 
Bukwimba stations causing derailment and capsizement of Loco 9002 and 
coach 3620 on 3 May 2023.

Four (4) Railway safety awareness seminars to safety critical workers 
conducted by June 2023. Four (4) sensitization seminars for TRC Safety 
Critical Workers were conducted from in September 2022 at Dodoma, 
Mwanza, Kigoma, Tabora and Morogoro centers where a total of 180 
workers participated. In addition, four (4) seminars were conducted for 
TAZARA workers at Mbeya, Mlimba, Makambako and Dar es Salaam in 
March 2023. Marking a total of 230 safety critical workers who attended 
the trainings. The performance was above the target.

(d)	 Environmental sustainability of Land transport
Four (4) monitoring inspections on waste management in railway operations 
conducted by June 2023. Four (4) waste Management inspection were 
conducted in four centres of Mbeya and Mlimba for TAZARA; and Tabora 
and Morogoro for TRC. The performance was 100% of the target.

Four (4) monitoring inspections on road waste management conducted 
by June 2023. Four (4) monitoring inspection were conducted on Dar 
es Salaam to Iringa highway in March 2023, on the Iringa to Tunduma 
highway in March to April,2023, on the Dar es Salaam to Mtwara highway 
in June 2023 and on the Mtwara to Njombe high way in June 2023. The 
target was achieved by 100%.

(e)	 Availability of quality land transport services strengthened
Two (2) stakeholder meetings to promote high occupancy buses in cities 
and towns conducted by June 2023. Two (2) stakeholders’ meeting were 
conducted in Mwanza and Dar es Salaam to promote high occupancy 
vehicles through formation of cooperatives. Among the attendees were 
members from UWADAR and DARCOBOA.



28 2022/23
Annual Report

2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

2.4.		 SERVICE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(c)	 Safety of land transport improved (Continued)

SECTION 03:  The services that the Authority provides

The Authority is mandated to regulate land transport services by performing 
the following key functions;

(i)	 issue, renew and cancel permits or licenses;

(ii)	 enforce standards for regulated goods and regulated services;

(iii)	 establish terms and conditions of supply of the regulated goods 
and services;

(iv)	 regulate rates and charges;

(v)	 coordinate land transport safety activities;

(vi)	 register crew and certify drivers of regulated sector;

(vii)	 certify worthiness of rolling stock and road worthiness of public 
service vehicles and goods vehicles;

(viii)	 to facilitate resolution of complaints and disputes;

(ix)	 to disseminate information about matters relevant to the functions 
of the Authority;

SECTION 04: The nature of the entity

The Land Transport Regulatory Authority (LATRA) is a Government 
Regulatory Authority established by the Act of Parliament No. 3 of 2019. 
The Act repelled the act of the former regulator, SUMATRA. Section 5 (1)
(b) of the Act requires the Authority to perform functions conferred to it 
by sector legislations, the Transport Licensing Act, Railways Act and other 
sector legislation.

As a regulator, the Authority provides license to regulated service providers 
and register drivers and crew of commercial vehicles. The Authority 
customers include, regulated services providers, vehicles owners, drivers 
and crew of commercial vehicles and trains.

SECTION 05: The regulatory environment in which the entity operates

The Authority is the sole regulator of land transport services in Mainland 
Tanzania. However, section 5(f) of the Land Transport Regulatory Act, CAP 
413 and sections 81,82 and 83 of the Road Traffic Act, 1973 provides 
that both LATRA and Tanzania Police Force should undertake vehicle 
inspection.
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

2.4.		 SERVICE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(c)	 Safety of land transport improved (Continued)

To address the challenge and ensure there is effective coordination of 
vehicle inspections, a team of experts from the Office of the Attorney 
General, LATRA and the Police Force convened at Morogoro to review the 
legislations and propose amendments. The amendments are expected to 
be 

Despite the fact that the Civil Case No. 87/2019 between Umoja wa 
Madereva Tanzania (UWAMATA) and SUMATRA at High Court of Tanzania 
in which Madereva alleged wrong charging of fine arising from VTS was 
concluded in favour of the Authority, LATRA decided not to start charging 
fines until regulations on VTS are approved. The decision is aimed to 
ensure a good framework is put in place to enhance compliance and 
improve safety of regulated vehicles.

SECTION 06: Service performance objectives

The service performance objectives for LATRA are derived from its Five 
Years Strategic Plan (2020/21-2025/26). Details of the objectives are 
provided under Part 6.0 of this report.

SECTION 07:   Performance indicators - Planned and actual information 
for the reporting period; and actual information for the 
previous reporting period. 

The Authority’s Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are reported based on 
the implementation of Annual Plan and Budget derived from the Corporate 
Strategic Plan (2020/21-2024/25). The KPIs for the year ended 30 June 
2023 are given in the Table 2 above.



30 2022/23
Annual Report

Ta
bl

e 
2:

 K
ey

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 fo

r t
he

 Y
ea

r 2
02

2/
23

 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
1/

22
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
2/

23
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

St
at

us
30

 J
un

e,
 2

02
3

A
ct

ua
l

20
22

/2
3

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

Bu
dg

et
20

22
/2

3
(T

ZS
 ‘0

00
’)

A
ct

ua
l 

20
21

/2
2

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

H
IV

/A
ID

S 
in

fe
ct

io
ns

 
an

d 
no

n-
co

m
m

un
ic

ab
le

 
di

se
as

es
 re

du
ce

d,
 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 im

pr
ov

ed
.

Si
x 

(6
) H

IV
/A

ID
S 

an
d 

N
on

 
- C

om
m

un
ic

ab
le

 d
is

ea
se

s 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

se
m

in
ar

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
22

.

H
IV

/A
ID

S 
an

d 
N

C
D

s 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

se
m

in
ar

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

to
 1

50
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
by

 J
un

e 
20

23
.

N
um

be
r o

f s
ta

ff 
at

te
nd

ed
 s

em
in

ar
s.

A
w

ar
en

es
s 

se
m

in
ar

 w
as

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

fo
r s

ix
 (6

) z
on

es
 

th
ro

ug
h 

e-
M

ku
ta

no
 o

n 
26

 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

02
2 

co
ve

rin
g 

al
l r

eg
io

ns
. A

 to
ta

l o
f 

18
0 

st
af

f (
pe

rm
an

en
t a

nd
 

co
nt

ra
ct

) a
tt

en
de

d 
th

e 
se

m
in

ar
s

21
,9

12
23

,4
00

35
,6

93

Su
pp

or
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 
st

af
f l

iv
in

g 
w

ith
 H

IV
/A

ID
S 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
02

2.

Su
pp

or
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 
st

af
f l

iv
in

g 
w

ith
 H

IV
/A

ID
S 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
02

3.

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f s
ta

ff 
co

ve
re

d.
 

A
ll 

st
af

f w
ith

 H
IV

/A
ID

S 
w

er
e 

su
pp

or
te

d 
w

ith
 a

llo
w

an
ce

 
fo

r s
pe

ci
al

 in
 e

ac
h 

m
on

th
.

1,
80

0
12

,0
00

7,
20

0

O
ne

 (1
) P

ro
gr

am
 fo

r 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

of
 n

on
-

co
m

m
un

ic
ab

le
 d

is
ea

se
s 

fa
ci

lit
at

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

02
2.

O
ne

 (1
) P

ro
gr

am
 fo

r 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

of
 n

on
-

co
m

m
un

ic
ab

le
 d

is
ea

se
s 

fa
ci

lit
at

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

02
3.

N
um

be
r o

f p
ro

gr
am

s 
fa

ci
lit

at
ed

.
O

ne
 (1

) p
ro

gr
am

 w
as

 
fa

ci
lit

at
ed

. T
he

 p
ro

gr
am

 
in

vo
lv

ed
 s

po
rt

s 
an

d 
ph

ys
ic

al
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

af
te

r 
of

fic
e 

ho
ur

s 
on

 T
ue

sd
ay

s 
an

d 
Fr

id
ay

s.

50
,7

85
50

,7
88

58
,7

56

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 N

at
io

na
l 

A
nt

-C
or

ru
pt

io
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
an

d 
su

st
ai

ne
d.

Th
re

e 
(3

) a
w

ar
en

es
s 

se
m

in
ar

 o
n 

co
rr

up
tio

n 
to

 L
A

TR
A

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 J
un

e 
20

22
.

Th
re

e 
(3

) a
w

ar
en

es
s 

se
m

in
ar

 o
n 

co
rr

up
tio

n 
to

 L
A

TR
A

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 J
un

e 
20

23
.

N
um

be
r o

f c
or

ru
pt

io
n 

in
ci

de
nc

es
.

Th
re

e 
(3

) s
em

in
ar

s 
w

er
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
in

 B
ag

am
oy

o 
(1

0 
Ju

ly
 2

02
1)

, M
or

og
or

o 
(4

 D
ec

.2
02

1)
 a

nd
 D

ar
 e

s 
Sa

la
am

 (1
9 

M
ar

. 2
02

2)
. 

Th
ey

 w
er

e 
fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 b
y 

PC
C

B
.

-
6,

30
0

9,
79

1

A
re

as
 p

ro
ne

 to
 c

or
ru

pt
io

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
id

en
tifi

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

02
2.

Fa
ci

lit
at

e 
qu

ar
te

rly
 

m
ee

tin
gs

 o
f I

nt
eg

rit
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

02
3.

N
um

be
r o

f m
ee

tin
gs

.
Th

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
 o

f E
th

ic
s 

an
d 

In
te

gr
ity

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 w

er
e 

fa
ci

lit
at

ed
 w

he
re

 fo
ur

 (4
) 

m
ee

tin
gs

 w
er

e 
he

ld
 o

ne
 

ea
ch

 q
ua

rt
er

.

3,
00

0
3,

00
0

4,
34

5

2.
0	

TH
E 

RE
PO

RT
 B

Y 
TH

O
SE

 C
H

A
RG

ED
 W

IT
H

 G
O

VE
RN

A
N

CE
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
2.

4.
		

SE
RV

IC
E 

PE
RF

O
RM

A
N

CE
 IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)



312022/23
Annual Report

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
1/

22
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
2/

23
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

St
at

us
30

 J
un

e,
 2

02
3

A
ct

ua
l

20
22

/2
3

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

Bu
dg

et
20

22
/2

3
(T

ZS
 ‘0

00
’)

A
ct

ua
l 

20
21

/2
2

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

C
ap

ac
ity

 
to

 e
xe

cu
te

 
Re

gu
la

to
ry

 
Fu

nc
tio

n 
En

ha
nc

ed
.

Re
ve

nu
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 2

0%
 fr

om
 

TZ
S 

25
.8

5 
to

 3
1.

0 
bi

lli
on

 
by

 J
un

e,
 2

02
2

Re
ve

nu
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 2

0%
 fr

om
 

TZ
S 

25
.9

5 
to

 3
1.

0 
bi

lli
on

 
by

 J
un

e 
20

23
.

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 in

cr
ea

se
 

of
 re

ve
nu

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n.

Re
ve

nu
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 
20

.7
%

 to
 T

ZS
 3

4.
79

 
bi

lli
on

. T
he

 c
ol

le
ct

io
ns

 
co

ul
d 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
hi

gh
er

 
if 

le
vy

 w
as

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 a

s 
re

qu
ire

d.
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t o
f 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t i

ns
tit

ut
io

ns
 to

 
fin

d 
so

lu
tio

n 
is

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

13
,7

59
21

,0
00

28
,5

12

90
%

 o
f T

ra
in

in
g 

Pl
an

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 J
un

e,
 

20
22

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 o
f 1

26
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
by

 J
un

e 
20

23
.

N
um

be
r o

f s
ta

ff 
at

te
nd

ed
 tr

ai
ni

ng
s.

A
 to

ta
l o

f 9
3 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
at

te
nd

ed
 tr

ai
ni

ng
s.

 T
he

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
 w

as
 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

sh
ift

in
g 

of
 

H
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

 to
 D

od
om

a 
in

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

02
2.

17
4,

15
0

19
0,

49
2

-

Tw
o 

(2
) s

en
si

tiz
at

io
n 

se
m

in
ar

s 
of

 6
0 

ke
y 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 o
n 

Le
gi

sl
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 
En

fo
rc

em
en

t P
ro

ce
du

re
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 J
un

e,
 2

02
2

Fi
ve

 (5
) s

en
si

tiz
at

io
n 

se
m

in
ar

s 
of

 k
ey

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 o

n 
Le

gi
sl

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t P

ro
ce

du
re

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 J

un
e,

 2
02

3

N
um

be
r o

f 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 

m
ee

tin
gs

.

Si
x 

(6
) s

en
si

tiz
at

io
n 

se
m

in
ar

s 
on

 A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

La
w

s 
an

d 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

 w
er

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d.

31
,0

80
32

,1
00

36
,6

88

Si
x 

(6
) L

A
TR

A
 n

ew
 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ne

, 2
02

2

Fi
ve

 (5
) L

A
TR

A
 n

ew
 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
02

3.

N
um

be
r o

f r
eg

ul
at

or
y 

in
st

ru
m

en
ts

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

Ei
gh

t (
8)

 R
ul

es
 a

nd
 

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

La
nd

 
an

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
t R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
ct

, C
ap

. 4
13

 
w

er
e 

dr
af

te
d.

58
,3

32
96

,2
50

74
,4

90

Ei
gh

ty
 (8

0)
 T

V 
Pr

og
ra

m
s 

fo
r d

is
se

m
in

at
in

g 
co

rp
or

at
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

by
 

Ju
ne

 2
02

2.

10
0 

TV
 P

ro
gr

am
s 

fo
r 

di
ss

em
in

at
in

g 
co

rp
or

at
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 
pr

od
uc

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

02
3.

N
um

be
r o

f T
V 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
fo

r p
ub

lic
 

aw
ar

en
es

s.

11
5 

TV
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

w
er

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 a

nd
 a

ire
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

TB
C

1,
 C

lo
ud

 
M

ed
ia

, L
A

TR
A

 o
nl

in
e 

TV
, 

In
st

ag
ra

m
 a

nd
 Y

ou
 T

ub
e.

20
9,

88
3

21
0,

00
0

58
,4

14

Tw
o 

(2
) b

us
 te

rm
in

al
s 

in
st

al
le

d 
w

ith
 P

as
se

ng
er

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Sc

re
en

s 
an

d 
LA

TR
A

 IC
T 

ba
ck

bo
ne

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
02

2.

Tw
o 

(2
) b

us
 te

rm
in

al
s 

in
st

al
le

d 
w

ith
 P

as
se

ng
er

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Sc

re
en

s 
an

d 
LA

TR
A

 IC
T 

ba
ck

bo
ne

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
02

3.

N
um

be
r o

f i
ns

ta
lle

d 
pa

ss
en

ge
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
s.

Pa
ss

en
ge

r I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
Sy

st
em

 (P
IS

) s
cr

ee
ns

 w
er

e 
in

st
al

le
d 

at
 M

ag
uf

ul
i 

B
us

 T
er

m
in

al
 in

 D
ar

 e
s 

Sa
la

am
 a

nd
 N

an
en

an
e 

B
us

 
Te

rm
in

al
s 

in
 D

od
om

a.

14
,9

77
24

,3
00

56
,0

00

2.
0	

TH
E 

RE
PO

RT
 B

Y 
TH

O
SE

 C
H

A
RG

ED
 W

IT
H

 G
O

VE
RN

A
N

CE
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
2.

4.
		

SE
RV

IC
E 

PE
RF

O
RM

A
N

CE
 IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
Ta

bl
e 

2:
 K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 fo
r t

he
 Y

ea
r 2

02
2/

23
 (C

on
tin

ue
d)



32 2022/23
Annual Report

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
1/

22
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
2/

23
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

St
at

us
30

 J
un

e,
 2

02
3

A
ct

ua
l

20
22

/2
3

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

Bu
dg

et
20

22
/2

3
(T

ZS
 ‘0

00
’)

A
ct

ua
l 

20
21

/2
2

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

Tw
o 

(2
) I

C
T 

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 
(R

RI
M

S,
 D

riv
er

s 
Te

st
in

g 
an

d 
M

ob
ile

 A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

) 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
22

.

Tw
o 

(2
) I

C
T 

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 
(R

RI
M

S,
 D

riv
er

s 
Te

st
in

g 
an

d 
M

ob
ile

 A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

) 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
23

.

N
um

be
r o

f a
ut

om
at

ed
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
.

Tw
o 

(2
) A

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 o

f 
D

iv
er

 T
es

tin
g 

Sy
st

em
 

(D
TS

) a
nd

 M
ob

ile
 A

pp
. 

w
er

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

op
er

at
io

na
liz

ed
. D

TS
 w

as
 

la
un

ch
ed

 o
n 

1 
Ju

ne
 2

02
3.

14
7,

73
0

40
0,

00
0

37
,2

88

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

 fo
r 

th
irt

y-
tw

o 
(3

2)
 L

oc
al

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

(L
G

A
s)

 a
ud

ite
d 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 M

oU
, 

Po
lic

ie
s,

 a
nd

 R
ul

es
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

02
2.

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

 fo
r 

32
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

(L
G

A
s)

 a
ud

ite
d 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

M
oU

, P
ol

ic
ie

s,
 a

nd
 R

ul
es

 
by

 J
un

e 
20

23
.

N
um

be
r o

f a
ud

its
 

co
nd

uc
te

d.
A

 to
ta

l o
f 3

1 
LG

A
s 

w
er

e 
au

di
te

d 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

M
oU

, 
Po

lic
ie

s,
 P

ro
ce

du
re

s,
 R

ul
es

 
an

d 
Re

gu
la

tio
ns

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
lic

en
si

ng
 o

f m
ot

or
cy

cl
es

 
an

d 
tr

ic
yc

le
s 

an
d 

re
ve

nu
e 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
.

51
,7

95
53

,7
95

50
,8

23

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
co

m
pe

tit
io

n 
in

 th
e 

re
gu

la
te

d 
se

ct
or

s 
st

re
ng

th
en

ed
.

Tw
o 

(2
) s

ur
ve

ys
 a

na
ly

si
s 

fo
r a

pp
lic

ab
le

 m
ar

ke
t 

ra
te

s 
an

d 
ch

ar
ge

s 
fo

r 
ro

ad
 p

as
se

ng
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

Ju
ne

 2
02

2.

Tw
o 

(2
) s

ur
ve

ys
 a

na
ly

si
s 

fo
r a

pp
lic

ab
le

 m
ar

ke
t 

ra
te

s 
an

d 
ch

ar
ge

s 
fo

r 
ro

ad
 p

as
se

ng
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

Ju
ne

 2
02

3.

N
um

be
r o

f s
ur

ve
ys

 
co

nd
uc

te
d.

Tw
o 

(2
) s

ur
ve

ys
 w

er
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
fo

r i
nt

er
 

in
te

ru
rb

an
 b

us
 ro

ut
es

. 
Th

e 
su

rv
ey

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

th
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
us

 fa
re

s 
w

er
e 

st
ab

le
 w

ith
 m

in
or

 v
ar

ia
tio

ns
.

1,
00

0
23

,5
00

2,
71

9

O
ne

 (1
) A

nn
ua

l s
ur

ve
y 

on
 fr

ei
gh

t c
ha

rg
es

 a
lo

ng
 

tw
o 

(2
) m

aj
or

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
co

rr
id

or
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 
Ju

ne
 2

02
2.

O
ne

 (1
) A

nn
ua

l s
ur

ve
y 

on
 fr

ei
gh

t c
ha

rg
es

 a
lo

ng
 

tw
o 

(2
) m

aj
or

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
co

rr
id

or
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 
Ju

ne
 2

02
3.

N
um

be
r o

f s
ur

ve
ys

 
co

nd
uc

te
d.

O
ne

 (1
) s

ur
ve

y 
w

as
 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
on

 th
e 

ro
ut

es
 o

f 
D

M
S 

to
 K

ig
al

i, 
B

uj
um

bu
ra

, 
Li

lo
ng

w
e,

 N
ai

ro
bi

, 
Lu

bu
m

ba
sh

i, 
G

om
a 

an
d 

Lu
sa

ka
w

er
e.

 It
 w

as
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d,

 th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

fre
ig

ht
 c

ha
rg

es
 w

er
e 

U
SD

 
11

7 
pe

r t
on

 o
r U

SD
 0

.0
73

9 
pe

r t
on

 k
ilo

m
et

re
.

8,
50

0
6,

00
0

N
IL

L

2.
0	

TH
E 

RE
PO

RT
 B

Y 
TH

O
SE

 C
H

A
RG

ED
 W

IT
H

 G
O

VE
RN

A
N

CE
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
2.

4.
		

SE
RV

IC
E 

PE
RF

O
RM

A
N

CE
 IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
Ta

bl
e 

2:
 K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 fo
r t

he
 Y

ea
r 2

02
2/

23
 (C

on
tin

ue
d)



332022/23
Annual Report

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
1/

22
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
2/

23
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

St
at

us
30

 J
un

e,
 2

02
3

A
ct

ua
l

20
22

/2
3

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

Bu
dg

et
20

22
/2

3
(T

ZS
 ‘0

00
’)

A
ct

ua
l 

20
21

/2
2

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

K
ey

 R
ai

lw
ay

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 (K
PI

s)
 fo

r 
TA

ZA
RA

 a
nd

 T
RC

 
re

vi
ew

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

02
2

K
ey

 R
ai

lw
ay

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 (K
PI

s)
 fo

r 
TA

ZA
RA

 a
nd

 T
RC

 
re

vi
ew

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
20

23
.

N
um

be
r o

f i
nd

ic
at

or
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r e
ac

h 
ra

ilw
ay

 u
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

.

K
PI

s 
fo

r T
RC

 - 
M

et
er

 G
au

ge
 

Ra
ilw

ay
 (M

G
R)

 a
nd

 T
A

ZA
RA

 
– 

C
ap

 G
au

ge
 R

ai
lw

ay
 w

er
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 K

PI
s 

fo
r S

ta
nd

ar
d 

ga
ug

e 
ar

e 
w

ai
tin

g 
B

us
in

es
s 

Pl
an

 
fro

m
 T

RC
.

-
-

11
,2

56

Fo
ur

 (4
) Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

su
rv

ey
s 

fo
r 

pa
ss

en
ge

r t
ra

in
 a

nd
 

in
te

rc
ity

 b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
22

Fo
ur

 (4
) Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

su
rv

ey
s 

fo
r 

pa
ss

en
ge

r t
ra

in
 a

nd
 

in
te

rc
ity

 b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
23

.

N
um

be
r o

f q
ua

lit
y-

of
-s

er
vi

ce
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

co
nd

uc
te

d.

Se
ve

n 
(7

) s
ur

ve
y 

w
er

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d,

 tw
o 

(2
) f

or
 

in
te

ru
rb

an
 b

us
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 

N
ov

em
be

r a
nd

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

22
, t

hr
ee

 (3
) o

n 
qu

al
ity

 
of

 T
RC

 p
as

se
ng

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fro
m

 D
SM

 to
 K

ig
om

a 
an

d 
de

lu
xe

 p
as

se
ng

er
 tr

ai
n 

fro
m

 D
SM

 to
 M

os
hi

 a
nd

 
A

ru
sh

a 
in

 J
un

e 
20

23
, t

w
o 

(2
) m

on
ito

rin
g 

on
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 ro
ad

 fr
ei

gh
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

C
en

tr
al

 C
or

rid
or

 a
nd

 D
SM

 
C

or
rid

or
 in

 M
ay

 a
nd

 J
un

e 
20

23
.

6,
15

1
8,

30
0

5,
65

8

Tw
o 

(2
) r

es
ea

rc
h 

on
 

la
nd

 tr
an

sp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 J

un
e,

 2
02

2

Tw
o 

(2
) r

es
ea

rc
h 

on
 

la
nd

 tr
an

sp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 J

un
e,

 2
02

3.

N
um

be
r o

f r
es

ea
rc

h 
co

nd
uc

te
d.

Tw
o 

st
ud

ie
s 

w
er

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d,

 o
n 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
an

d 
fre

ig
ht

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

m
ar

ke
t b

us
 fa

re
s,

 
fre

ig
ht

 ra
te

s 
an

d 
bu

s 
tr

av
el

 
tim

e 
an

d 
st

ud
y 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

so
ci

o-
ec

on
om

ic
 im

pa
ct

 o
f 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 m
ot

or
cy

cl
es

 
an

d 
m

ot
or

-t
ric

yc
le

.

-
-

1,
07

0

2.
0	

TH
E 

RE
PO

RT
 B

Y 
TH

O
SE

 C
H

A
RG

ED
 W

IT
H

 G
O

VE
RN

A
N

CE
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
2.

4.
		

SE
RV

IC
E 

PE
RF

O
RM

A
N

CE
 IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
Ta

bl
e 

2:
 K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 fo
r t

he
 Y

ea
r 2

02
2/

23
 (C

on
tin

ue
d)



34 2022/23
Annual Report

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
1/

22
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
2/

23
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

St
at

us
30

 J
un

e,
 2

02
3

A
ct

ua
l

20
22

/2
3

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

Bu
dg

et
20

22
/2

3
(T

ZS
 ‘0

00
’)

A
ct

ua
l 

20
21

/2
2

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

Sa
fe

ty
 o

f L
an

d 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

im
pr

ov
ed

O
ne

 (1
) D

riv
er

s 
Te

st
in

g 
C

en
tr

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
by

 
Ju

ne
, 2

02
2

Fo
ur

 (4
) D

riv
er

s 
Te

st
in

g 
C

en
tr

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
by

 
Ju

ne
 2

02
3.

D
riv

er
s 

te
st

in
g 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e.
Fo

ur
 (4

) d
riv

er
 te

st
in

g 
ce

nt
re

s 
w

er
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

in
 th

e 
re

gi
on

s 
of

 D
od

om
a,

 
A

ru
sh

a,
 M

be
ya

 a
nd

 
M

w
an

za
.

-
-

13
6,

08
1

O
ne

 (1
) A

nn
ua

l R
ai

lw
ay

 
A

ud
it 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
fo

r T
RC

 
an

d 
TA

ZA
RA

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 

by
 J

un
e,

 2
02

2

O
ne

 (1
) A

nn
ua

l R
ai

lw
ay

 
A

ud
it 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
fo

r T
RC

 
an

d 
TA

ZA
RA

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 

by
 J

un
e 

20
23

.

N
um

be
r o

f 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 fo
r 

TA
ZA

RA
 a

nd
 T

RC
.

A
nn

ua
l R

ai
lw

ay
 A

ud
it 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
on

 T
A

ZA
RA

 w
as

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

in
 A

ug
us

t a
nd

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

02
2 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
fo

r T
RC

 w
as

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

in
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
22

 fr
om

 T
ab

or
a 

to
 

K
ig

om
a 

an
d 

Ta
ng

a 
lin

e 
fro

m
 D

ar
 e

s 
Sa

la
am

 to
 

M
os

hi
 –

A
ru

sh
a 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
lin

k 
lin

e 
Ru

vu
 J

un
ct

io
n 

to
 M

ru
az

i J
un

ct
io

n.
 T

he
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 w
as

 a
tt

ai
ne

d 
by

 1
00

%
.

10
,8

64
12

,2
00

27
,1

41

2.
0	

TH
E 

RE
PO

RT
 B

Y 
TH

O
SE

 C
H

A
RG

ED
 W

IT
H

 G
O

VE
RN

A
N

CE
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
2.

4.
		

SE
RV

IC
E 

PE
RF

O
RM

A
N

CE
 IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
Ta

bl
e 

2:
 K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 fo
r t

he
 Y

ea
r 2

02
2/

23
 (C

on
tin

ue
d)



352022/23
Annual Report

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
1/

22
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
2/

23
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

St
at

us
30

 J
un

e,
 2

02
3

A
ct

ua
l

20
22

/2
3

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

Bu
dg

et
20

22
/2

3
(T

ZS
 ‘0

00
’)

A
ct

ua
l 

20
21

/2
2

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

Fo
ur

 (4
) Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 s
af

et
y 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
of

 T
RC

 a
nd

 
TA

ZA
RA

 P
as

se
ng

er
 T

ra
in

s 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

an
d 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
22

.

Fo
ur

 (4
) Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 s
af

et
y 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
of

 T
RC

 a
nd

 
TA

ZA
RA

 P
as

se
ng

er
 T

ra
in

s 
O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

an
d 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
23

.

N
um

be
r o

f 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 fo
r 

TA
ZA

RA
 a

nd
 T

RC
.

Fo
ur

 (4
) i

ns
pe

ct
io

ns
 w

er
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d.
 T

A
ZA

RA
 

pa
ss

en
ge

r t
ra

in
 fr

om
 D

SM
 

to
 M

be
ya

 in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

02
2,

 
TR

C
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t i

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
22

, c
en

tr
al

 li
ne

 fr
om

 
Ta

bo
ra

 to
 K

ig
om

a 
an

d 
Ta

bo
ra

 to
 M

w
an

za
 a

nd
 

D
SM

 to
 M

os
hi

 a
nd

 
A

ru
sh

a 
in

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
3 

an
d 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

TA
ZA

RA
 

pa
ss

en
ge

r t
ra

in
 fr

om
 D

SM
 

to
– 

Tu
nd

um
a 

in
 A

pr
il 

20
23

.

23
,0

15
26

,9
00

10
8,

56
34

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 fo
r 

D
riv

er
s 

Te
st

in
g 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 
by

 J
un

e 
20

22
.

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 fo
r 

D
riv

er
s 

Te
st

in
g 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 
by

 J
un

e 
20

23
.

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

on
 D

riv
er

s 
Te

st
in

g.
St

an
da

rd
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 fo

r l
oc

om
ot

iv
e 

dr
iv

er
’s 

te
st

in
g 

w
er

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

ap
pr

ov
ed

.

-
-

-

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r L
an

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
t S

af
et

y 
C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
22

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r L
an

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
t S

af
et

y 
C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
23

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r s

af
et

y 
co

or
di

na
tio

n.

Th
e 

La
nd

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 S

af
et

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 is
 in

 p
la

ce
 

co
m

pr
is

in
g 

TP
F-

Tr
af

fic
 

D
iv

is
io

n,
 T

A
ZA

RA
, T

RC
, 

TA
RU

RA
, T

EM
ES

A
, F

ire
 a

nd
 

Re
sc

ue
 F

or
ce

, T
A

N
RO

A
D

S,
 

EW
U

RA
, T

B
S,

 T
IR

A
, 

D
A

RT
, N

IT
, V

ET
A

. E
ig

ht
 (8

) 
m

ee
tin

gs
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
itt

ee
 

w
er

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d.

17
,5

20
17

,5
20

75
,2

46

2.
0	

TH
E 

RE
PO

RT
 B

Y 
TH

O
SE

 C
H

A
RG

ED
 W

IT
H

 G
O

VE
RN

A
N

CE
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
2.

4.
		

SE
RV

IC
E 

PE
RF

O
RM

A
N

CE
 IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
Ta

bl
e 

2:
 K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 fo
r t

he
 Y

ea
r 2

02
2/

23
 (C

on
tin

ue
d)



36 2022/23
Annual Report

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
1/

22
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
2/

23
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

St
at

us
30

 J
un

e,
 2

02
3

A
ct

ua
l

20
22

/2
3

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

Bu
dg

et
20

22
/2

3
(T

ZS
 ‘0

00
’)

A
ct

ua
l 

20
21

/2
2

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

SG
R 

Sa
fe

ty
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
(in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 
Ro

lli
ng

 s
to

ck
) a

nd
 S

G
R 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

C
he

ck
lis

t 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
22

.

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 T

RC
 

SG
R 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, 

el
ec

tr
ic

al
 a

nd
 ro

lli
ng

 s
to

ck
 

by
 J

un
e 

20
23

.

N
um

be
r o

f p
re

-
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
SG

R.

Pr
e-

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 

St
an

da
rd

 R
ai

lw
ay

 G
au

ge
 

(S
G

R)
 fo

r l
ot

 o
ne

 fr
om

 
D

SM
 to

 M
or

og
or

o 
w

as
 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
in

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

22
. L

A
TR

A
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 
el

ec
tr

ic
al

 s
ys

te
m

 fo
r l

ot
 1

 
(D

SM
-M

O
R)

 a
nd

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 

st
at

ic
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

of
 1

4 
ne

w
 

co
ac

he
s 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
6 

us
ed

 
re

fu
rb

is
he

d 
co

ac
he

s 
at

 
Pu

gu
 s

ta
tio

n.

-
-

8,
07

6

10
0%

 o
f b

us
es

 a
nd

 
lo

co
m

ot
iv

es
 in

st
al

le
d 

w
ith

 
Ve

hi
cl

e 
Tr

ac
ki

ng
 D

ev
ic

es
 

(V
TD

s)
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 2

02
2.

A
t l

ea
st

 4
00

0 
lic

en
se

d 
in

te
ru

rb
an

 b
us

es
 fi

tt
ed

 
w

ith
 V

eh
ic

le
 T

ra
ck

in
g 

D
ev

ic
es

 (V
TD

s)
 m

on
ito

re
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
23

.

N
um

be
r o

f b
us

es
 

in
st

al
le

d 
w

ith
 V

TD
s.

A
 to

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f 8

73
4 

in
te

ru
rb

an
 b

us
es

 w
er

e 
in

st
al

le
d 

w
ith

 V
TD

s.
 T

he
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 w
as

 a
bo

ve
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

1,
40

0
2,

10
0

-

10
0%

 o
f t

he
 R

ep
or

te
d 

Ra
ilw

ay
 A

cc
id

en
ts

 
on

 (T
A

ZA
RA

/T
RC

) 
in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 

20
22

.

10
0%

 o
f t

he
 R

ep
or

te
d 

Ra
ilw

ay
 A

cc
id

en
ts

 
on

 (T
A

ZA
RA

/T
RC

) 
in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
 b

y 
Ju

ne
 

20
23

.

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 
in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
.

Tw
o 

(2
) m

aj
or

 a
cc

id
en

ts
 

w
er

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

nd
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

 (1
00

%
). 

Th
es

e 
ar

e 
tr

ai
n 

ac
ci

de
nt

 
on

 T
A

ZA
RA

 li
ne

 th
at

 
in

vo
lv

ed
 c

ap
si

ze
m

en
t 

of
 T

ra
in

 N
o 

01
29

 a
t k

m
 

51
8 

be
tw

ee
n 

Lu
m

um
w

e-
M

pa
ng

a 
in

 M
lim

ba
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

an
d 

TR
C

 p
as

se
ng

er
 

tr
ai

n 
N

o.
 S

54
 w

hi
ch

 w
as

 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 a
n 

ac
ci

de
nt

 a
t 

K
m

 3
45

/6
 b

et
w

ee
n 

Fe
la

 
an

d 
B

uk
w

im
ba

 s
ta

tio
ns

 
ca

us
in

g 
de

ra
ilm

en
t a

nd
 

ca
ps

iz
em

en
t o

f L
oc

o 
90

02
 

an
d 

co
ac

h 
36

20
 o

n 
3 

M
ay

 
20

23
.

-
-

78
,1

55

2.
0	

TH
E 

RE
PO

RT
 B

Y 
TH

O
SE

 C
H

A
RG

ED
 W

IT
H

 G
O

VE
RN

A
N

CE
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
2.

4.
		

SE
RV

IC
E 

PE
RF

O
RM

A
N

CE
 IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
Ta

bl
e 

2:
 K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 fo
r t

he
 Y

ea
r 2

02
2/

23
 (C

on
tin

ue
d)



372022/23
Annual Report

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
1/

22
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
2/

23
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

St
at

us
30

 J
un

e,
 2

02
3

A
ct

ua
l

20
22

/2
3

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

Bu
dg

et
20

22
/2

3
(T

ZS
 ‘0

00
’)

A
ct

ua
l 

20
21

/2
2

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

Fo
ur

 (4
) R

ai
lw

ay
 s

af
et

y 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

se
m

in
ar

s 
to

 
TR

C
 a

nd
 T

A
ZA

RA
 T

ra
in

 
D

riv
er

s,
 C

re
w

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

cr
iti

ca
l w

or
ke

rs
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 
by

 J
un

e 
20

22
.

Fo
ur

 (4
) R

ai
lw

ay
 s

af
et

y 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

se
m

in
ar

s 
to

 
sa

fe
ty

 c
rit

ic
al

 w
or

ke
rs

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
23

.

N
um

be
r o

f r
ai

lw
ay

 
sa

fe
ty

 s
em

in
ar

s 
co

nd
uc

te
d.

Fo
ur

 (4
) s

en
si

tiz
at

io
n 

se
m

in
ar

s 
fo

r T
RC

 S
af

et
y 

C
rit

ic
al

 W
or

ke
rs

 w
er

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

fro
m

 in
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
02

2 
at

 
D

od
om

a,
 M

w
an

za
, K

ig
om

a,
 

Ta
bo

ra
 a

nd
 M

or
og

or
o 

ce
nt

er
s 

w
he

re
 a

 to
ta

l o
f 1

80
 

w
or

ke
rs

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
ed

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 fo
ur

 (4
) s

em
in

ar
s 

w
er

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

fo
r 

TA
ZA

RA
 w

or
ke

rs
 a

t M
be

ya
, 

M
lim

ba
, M

ak
am

ba
ko

 a
nd

 
D

ar
 e

s 
Sa

la
am

 in
 M

ar
ch

 
20

23
. M

ar
ki

ng
 a

 to
ta

l o
f 

23
0 

sa
fe

ty
 c

rit
ic

al
 w

or
ke

rs
 

w
ho

 a
tt

en
de

d 
th

e 
tr

ai
ni

ng
s.

-
-

N
IL

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

of
 

La
nd

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
im

pr
ov

ed
.

G
ui

de
lin

es
 fo

r R
ai

lw
ay

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l I

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
22

.

G
ui

de
lin

es
 fo

r R
ai

lw
ay

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l I

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
23

.

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
gu

id
el

in
es

.
Th

e 
D

ra
ft

 G
ui

de
lin

es
 fo

r 
Ra

ilw
ay

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t w

er
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
in

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

22
 a

w
ai

tin
g 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

to
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s.

8,
03

8
15

,5
50

N
/A

St
ra

te
gy

 fo
r p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
en

er
gy

 in
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
22

.

St
ra

te
gy

 fo
r p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
en

er
gy

 in
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
23

.

N
um

be
r o

f i
ni

tia
tiv

es
 

un
de

rt
ak

en
.

D
ra

ft
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

do
cu

m
en

t 
fo

r D
ar

 e
s 

Sa
la

am
 w

as
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 a
w

ai
tin

g 
in

pu
ts

 
fro

m
 T

PD
C

, D
IT

 a
nd

 
N

EM
C

 fo
r t

he
 p

ur
po

se
 

of
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

a 
na

tio
na

l 
do

cu
m

en
t.

27
,3

89
31

,6
00

-

Fo
ur

 (4
) i

ns
pe

ct
io

ns
 o

n 
w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

n 
TA

ZA
RA

/T
RC

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 J
un

e 
20

22
.

Fo
ur

 (4
) i

ns
pe

ct
io

ns
 o

n 
w

as
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

n 
TA

ZA
RA

/T
RC

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 J
un

e 
20

23
.

N
um

be
r o

f m
on

ito
rin

g 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 
co

nd
uc

te
d.

Fo
ur

 (4
) w

as
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
w

er
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
in

 fo
ur

 c
en

te
rs

 o
f M

be
ya

 
an

d 
M

lim
ba

 fo
r T

A
ZA

RA
; 

an
d 

Ta
bo

ra
 a

nd
 M

or
og

or
o 

fo
r T

RC
.

-
-

6,
58

9

2.
0	

TH
E 

RE
PO

RT
 B

Y 
TH

O
SE

 C
H

A
RG

ED
 W

IT
H

 G
O

VE
RN

A
N

CE
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
2.

4.
		

SE
RV

IC
E 

PE
RF

O
RM

A
N

CE
 IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
Ta

bl
e 

2:
 K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 fo
r t

he
 Y

ea
r 2

02
2/

23
 (C

on
tin

ue
d)



38 2022/23
Annual Report

O
bj

ec
tiv

e
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
1/

22
Ta

rg
et

 fo
r 2

02
2/

23
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

r 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

St
at

us
30

 J
un

e,
 2

02
3

A
ct

ua
l

20
22

/2
3

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

Bu
dg

et
20

22
/2

3
(T

ZS
 ‘0

00
’)

A
ct

ua
l 

20
21

/2
2

(T
ZS

 ‘0
00

’)

Fo
ur

 (4
) m

on
ito

rin
g 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 o

n 
ro

ad
 w

as
te

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t c
on

du
ct

ed
 

by
 J

un
e 

20
22

.

Fo
ur

 (4
) m

on
ito

rin
g 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 o

n 
ro

ad
 w

as
te

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t c
on

du
ct

ed
 

by
 J

un
e 

20
23

.

N
um

be
r o

f i
ns

pe
ct

io
ns

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

on
 w

as
te

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t.

Fo
ur

 (4
) m

on
ito

rin
g 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
w

er
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
on

 D
ar

 e
s 

Sa
la

am
 to

 Ir
in

ga
 

hi
gh

w
ay

 in
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

3,
 

on
 th

e 
Iri

ng
a 

to
 T

un
du

m
a 

hi
gh

w
ay

 in
 M

ar
ch

 to
 

A
pr

il,
20

23
, o

n 
th

e 
D

ar
 e

s 
Sa

la
am

 to
 M

tw
ar

a 
hi

gh
w

ay
 

in
 J

un
e 

20
23

 a
nd

 o
n 

th
e 

M
tw

ar
a 

to
 N

jo
m

be
 h

ig
hw

ay
 

in
 J

un
e 

20
23

. T
he

 ta
rg

et
 

w
as

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
by

 1
00

%
.

-
-

13
,5

20

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 

qu
al

ity
 la

nd
 

tr
an

sp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d.

12
 J

oi
nt

 R
oa

ds
id

e 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 (i
nv

ol
vi

ng
 

LA
TR

A
 a

nd
 P

ol
ic

e)
 to

 
80

%
 o

f l
ic

en
se

d 
ve

hi
cl

es
 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 J
un

e,
 2

02
2.

12
 J

oi
nt

 R
oa

ds
id

e 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 (i
nv

ol
vi

ng
 

LA
TR

A
 a

nd
 P

ol
ic

e)
 to

 
80

%
 o

f l
ic

en
se

d 
ve

hi
cl

es
 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 J
un

e,
 2

02
3.

N
um

be
r o

f 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

.
Tw

en
ty

 (2
0)

 jo
in

t 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
Tr

af
fic

 P
ol

ic
e 

an
d 

LA
TR

A
 

w
er

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

at
 v

ar
io

us
 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ch

ec
k 

po
in

ts
 

al
on

g 
m

aj
or

 c
or

rid
or

s 
on

 
24

/7
 b

as
is

.

-
-

83
4,

38
4

St
ra

te
gy

 fo
r p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
m

as
s 

tr
an

si
t b

us
es

 in
 c

iti
es

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

by
 J

un
e 

20
22

.

Tw
o 

(2
) s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
 

m
ee

tin
gs

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

hi
gh

 
oc

cu
pa

nc
y 

bu
se

s 
in

 c
iti

es
 

an
d 

to
w

ns
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
02

3.

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
st

ra
te

gy
.

Tw
o 

(2
) s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s’

 
m

ee
tin

gs
 w

er
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
in

 M
w

an
za

 a
nd

 D
ar

 e
s 

Sa
la

am
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
hi

gh
 

oc
cu

pa
nc

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
fo

rm
at

io
n 

of
 c

oo
pe

ra
tiv

es
. 

A
m

on
g 

th
e 

at
te

nd
ee

s 
w

er
e 

m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 U
W

A
D

A
R 

an
d 

D
A

RC
O

B
O

A
.

6,
47

0
6,

68
0

6,
42

3

M
oU

 to
 li

ce
ns

e 
m

ot
or

cy
cl

es
 a

nd
 tr

ic
yc

le
s 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 s
ig

ne
d 

by
 

Ju
ne

, 2
02

2

M
oU

 to
 li

ce
ns

e 
m

ot
or

cy
cl

es
 a

nd
 tr

ic
yc

le
s 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 s
ig

ne
d 

by
 

Ju
ne

, 2
02

3

Im
pr

ov
ed

 a
m

en
de

d 
M

oU
.

Th
e 

M
oU

 b
et

w
ee

n 
LA

TR
A

 
an

d 
LG

A
s 

w
as

 re
vi

ew
ed

 
an

d 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 a
ll 

18
5 

LG
A

s 
fo

r s
ig

na
tu

re
.

-
-

89
,4

44

So
ur

ce
: L

A
TR

A
 C

or
p

or
at

e 
St

ra
te

g
ic

 P
la

n 
(2

02
0/

21
-2

02
4/

25
) a

nd
 Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ep

or
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 2
02

2/
23

.

2.
0	

TH
E 

RE
PO

RT
 B

Y 
TH

O
SE

 C
H

A
RG

ED
 W

IT
H

 G
O

VE
RN

A
N

CE
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
2.

4.
		

SE
RV

IC
E 

PE
RF

O
RM

A
N

CE
 IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 (C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

)
Ta

bl
e 

2:
 K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 fo
r t

he
 Y

ea
r 2

02
2/

23
 (C

on
tin

ue
d)



392022/23
Annual Report

2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

2.5.	   OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES

The Corporate Strategic Plan for the Authority is the leading instrument 
for planning, priority setting and decision making. The Plan facilitates 
discharging of the role and functions of the Authority for the period of five 
(5) year’s starting from 1 July 2020.

The Strategic Plan sets out strategic goals and objectives, targets 
and performance measures. Specifically, the Plan places emphasis on 
strategies to be executed to achieve the strategic objectives, and Results 
Based Management (RBM) approach, which emphasizes on the desired 
outcomes of the activities rather than the activities themselves. The Plan 
has the following strategic goals:

(a)	 HIV/AIDS infections and non-communicable diseases reduced and 
supportive services improved;

(b)	 National anti-corruption strategy implementation enhanced and 
sustained;

(c)	 Authority’s capacity to execute its regulatory functions enhanced;
(d)	 Competition in the regulated sectors strengthened; 
(e)	 Safety of Land transport improved;
(f)	 Environmental sustainability of Land transport improved; and 
(g)	 Availability of quality land transport services enhanced.

In order to realize the strategic goals, the Authority prepares annual plan 
and budget with a result-based management orientation as envisioned in 
the five years strategic plan. 

During the year, the Authority conducted a mid – term review of the strategic 
plan. The review was conducted in October 2022 with collaboration of 
experts from the MoWT, MoFP and President Office- Public Service 
Management and Good Governance.

The team developed a revised Authority’s Five Years Corporate Strategic 
Plan 2020/21 -2024/25 which was presented to the Management and 
Workers Council in January 2023 before being approved by the Board of 
Directors in March 2023.

Table 3 below provides detailed strategies for implementation of six 
(6) objectives of the corporate strategic plan 2020/21 – 2024/25. The 
strategies are grouped according to the period of implementation of 
short-term, medium-term and long-term.
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.5.	   OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES (CONTINUED)
Table No. 3: LATRA Objectives and Strategies 

No. Objectives Strategies

a)	 HIV/AIDS 
infections and non-
communicable 
diseases reduced, 
and supportive 
services improved.

Short-Term Strategies
•	 HIV/AIDS and Non-communicable diseases awareness seminars 

conducted. 
•	 Supportive services to staff living with HIV/AIDS and non-

communicable diseases provided.
•	 Training of Ethics and Integrity Committee conducted.

Medium-Term Strategies
•	 Program for prevention of non-communicable diseases 

established and implemented.
•	 Supportive services to staff living with HIV/AIDS and non-

communicable diseases provided.
•	 Ethics awareness programs for LATRA staff developed and 

implemented.

Long-Term Strategies
•	 Employee awareness on HIV/AIDS and Non-communicable 

diseases enhanced.
•	 Supportive services to staff living with HIV/AIDS and non-

communicable diseases provided.

b)	 National anti-
corruption strategy 
implementation 
enhanced and 
sustained.

•	 Enhance capacity of the Authority to fight against corruption.
•	 Enhance transparency and accountability in discharging 

regulatory duties.

c) Authority’s capacity 
to execute its 
regulatory functions 
enhanced

Short Term Strategies
•	 Percentage increase of revenue collection.
•	 Financial Regulations and Accounting Procedures Manual 

developed.
•	 Audits of draft financial statements conducted, and assurance 

reports issued.
•	 Organization structure developed, approved and implemented.
•	 Scheme of Service developed and implemented.
•	 Staff Regulations developed and implemented.
•	 Working tools, equipment and facilities acquired.
•	 Keyword filing management system developed and 

implemented.
•	 ICT Infrastructure for supporting road services integrated with 

LATRA systems.
•	 Cyber security governance framework developed and 

implemented.
•	 Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) system developed.
•	 Quality Management System (QMS) developed.
•	 Whistle Blower Policy developed and implemented.
•	 Fraud Policy Developed and Implemented.
•	 Communication Strategy developed and implemented.
•	 Regulatory tools reviewed and developed.
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No. Objectives Strategies

Medium Term Strategies

•	 New sources of revenue introduced.
•	 Approved manuals disseminated and implemented.
•	 Implement audit recommendations.
•	 Manpower requirement established and vacant positions filled.
•	 Slotting of staff to new scheme of service, approved and 

implemented.
•	 LATRA Employees Incentive Scheme approved and 

implemented.
•	 Working tools, equipment and facilities acquired.
•	 Office documents retention and disposal policy developed and 

implemented.
•	 ICT Infrastructure for connecting regional bus terminals and 

weigh bridges operationalized.
•	 Training to staff on cyber security facilitated.
•	 Governance, Risk Management & Controls audited.
•	 Facilitate training on QMS to employee.
•	 Facilitate training on whistle blower policy to employee.
•	 Facilitate training of Fraud to employee.
•	 Stakeholders’ meetings conducted.
•	 Sensitization program on the Authority’s legislation conducted.

Long Term Strategies
•	 Financial sustainability of the Authority enhanced.
•	 Employees’ compliance to procedures, rules and regulations 

enhanced.
•	 Audit observations on LATRA F/Statements and operations 

reduced.
•	 Human resource capacity strengthened through recruitment 

and training.
•	 Staff turnover reduced through implementation of retention 

scheme.
•	 Staff morale enhanced through implementation of Incentive 

Scheme.
•	 Construction of LATRA 3 regional offices implemented.
•	 Keyword filing system and LATRA document retention policy 

facilitated.
•	 ICT systems for supporting business processes developed.
•	 ICT equipment and software examined and updated.
•	 Authority’s Governance, Risk Management and Controls 

enhanced.
•	 Implementation of QMS facilitated.
•	 Implementation of whistle blower policy facilitated.
•	 Implementation of fraud policy facilitated.
•	 Authority’s information dissemination facilitated.
•	 Legal framework and guidelines improved.

2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.5.	   OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES (CONTINUED)
Table No. 3: LATRA Objectives and Strategies (Continued)
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No. Objectives Strategies

d)	 Competition in the 
regulated sectors 
strengthened

•	 Promote effective competition in the regulated sectors.
•	 Enhance research and statistical information sharing
•	 Strengthen performance monitoring of regulated sector.
•	 Improve performance monitoring of the Authority.

e)	 Safety of Land 
transport improved.

Short Term Strategies
•	 Regulations on driver fatigue management developed.
•	 Inspections of infrastructure, rolling stock and operations of 

railways conducted.
•	 Driver’s aptitude test procedures developed and implemented.
•	 Regulations on mandatory vehicle inspection developed.

Medium Term Strategies
•	 Environmental compliance inspection for railway-undertaking 

conducted.
•	 Emission testing for commercial vehicles and public awareness 

conducted.
•	 High occupancy in major cities established. 
•	 Standards for operations of SGR developed and implemented.
•	 Training on quality of service-to-service providers conducted.

Long Term Strategies
•	 Mechanism for Coordination of land transport safety activities 

developed.
•	 Follow up to ensure safety of railways is improved through 

implementation of safety recommendations.
•	 Monitor driver’s certification process.
•	 Enforce mandatory inspection of vehicles and monitor 

performance of the inspection centres.

f)	 Environmental 
sustainability of 
Land transport 
improved.

Short Term Strategies
•	 Guidelines for environmental preservation in railways 

developed and implemented.
•	 Stakeholders’ meetings to promote investment on social 

amenities along highways conducted.
•	 Promote use of alternative energy in commuter services.

Medium Term Strategies
•	 Environmental compliance inspection for railway-undertaking 

conducted.
•	 Emission testing for commercial vehicles and public awareness 

conducted.
•	 High occupancy in major cities established.

Long Term Strategies
•	 Monitor compliance to ensure preservation of environment is 

enhanced.
•	 Environmental compliance inspection for commercial vehicles 

conducted. 
•	 Alternative energy usage in commuter services increased

2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.5.	   OBJECTIVES AND STRATEGIES (CONTINUED)
Table No. 3: LATRA Objectives and Strategies (Continued)
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

2.6.		 STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP 

The Authority believes that the stakeholders and customers are what 
make the Authority exist. Several measures have been taken to institute 
a responsible behaviour towards members of the Authority and other 
stakeholders.  These measures include, but not limited to, holding 
interactive meetings, seminars and workshops; provide education through 
media and improving customer services at our offices.

In this regard, the Authority has identified five (5) categories of stakeholders; 
the General Public, Ministries, Independent Departments and Executive 
Agencies (MDAs), Mass media, Parliament and Land Transport Service 
Providers. 

Before making its decisions, the Board considers the interests of the 
stakeholders and ensures that engagement with stakeholders is deliberate 
and planned and that communication is always transparent and effective. 

Table 4 below provides details of their interests/concerns and the value we 
create to each category.

Table No. 4: Stakeholders Relationship

S/n Stakeholders Their Interests / Concerns Value we create

1 General Public •	Information on regulatory 
services provided

•	Corporate Social 
Responsibilities (CSR)

•	Redressing consumer 
complaints on regulated 
services

•	Affordable and reliable land 
transport services

•	Increased public trust
•	Shared responsibility 

for safety and 
environmental 
preservation in land 
transport

•	Reduced accidents 
and their impacts

•	Increased regulatory 
levies

2 Ministries, 
Independent 
Departments 
and Executive 
Agencies (MDAs) 
Parastatal 
organization,

•	Reliable and timely 
information and data sharing

•	Cooperation in matters 
related with land transport

•	Timely performance 
reporting

•	Provision of Government 
remittance

•	Budget support to 
Regulatory Authorities and 
contributions to affiliated 
international organizations

•	General 
understanding and 
support.

•	Improved political 
will

•	Cooperation
•	Budget support and 

funding
•	Shared 

responsibilities and 
costs

•	Improved compliance 



44 2022/23
Annual Report

2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.6.		 STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP (CONTINUED)
Table No. 4: Stakeholders Relationship (Continued)

S/n Stakeholders Their Interests / Concerns Value we create

3 Mass media •	Provision of information to 
the Public 

•	Awareness creation on 
Authorities functions

•	Public understanding
•	Increased consumers
•	Reduced complaints
•	Quality services

4 Parliament •	To review performance of 
LATRA in line with Act and 
budget

•	To review/harmonize 
legislations 

•	Public and economic order

•	Political support
•	Positive advocacy
•	Timely legislative 

reviews

5 Land Transport 
Service Providers 

•	Market information
•	Timely release of operating 

licenses
•	Profitable business
•	Smooth business operations
•	Opinions to be heard

•	Improved economic 
services

•	Increased regulatory 
finances

•	Customer retention
•	Compliant services
•	Effective competition 

2.7.	   OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

(a)	 Analysis of Financial Performance

Revenue
During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Authority earned revenue 
amounting to a total of TZS 34.80 billion (2021/22: TZS 28.82 billion) 
comprising of Exchange and Non-Exchange Revenue Transactions.  Table 5 
below summarizes the revenue collection.

Table 5: Revenue Collection (All figures in TZS “000”)

Revenue Item 2022/23 2021/22 Change %

TZS TZS TZS Change

Road Transport Licensing Fees 19,269,429 17,082,484 2,186,945 12.8

Service Provider Annual Levy 1,177,545 479,941 697,604 145.4

Fines and Penalties 13,454,632 10,557,535 2,897,097 27.4

Revenue from various receipts 895,187 704,651 184,971 26.2

Total 34,796,793 28,824,611 5,966,617 20.7

Source: LATRA Financial Statements
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.7.	   OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Expenses

The expenditure of the Authority for the financial year ended 30 June 
2023 was TZS 33.88 billion (2021/22: TZS 27.07 billion) which is TZS 1.75 
billion above the final budget of TZS 32.10 billion. The major items of 
expenditure are provided below:

(i)	 Wages, Salaries and Employees Benefits

Expenditure on this category was TZS 11.58 billion (2021/22: TZS 8.75 
billion). The increase was attributed by implementation of new salary 
structure in June 2022 and addition of 19 staff (in aggregate), 27 new staff 
were recruited during the year.

(ii)	 Social Benefits
This category comprises of payments to NHIF, WCF and statutory 
contributions to Pension Fund. During the year, TZS 2.23 billion (2021/22: 
TZS 1.60 billion) were paid.

(iii)	 Supplies and Consumables

During the year ended on 30 June 2023 the Authority incurred TZS 9.49 
billion (2021/22: TZS 7.51 billion) on supplies of goods and services. The 
supplies included: payment of rent, travel tickets and related expenses, 
courier services, fuel, utilities, stationary, cleanliness and communication 
expenses. The increase is largely attributed to rent payment and partitions 
of new LATRA Head Office at Mkandarasi House, Dodoma.

(iv)	 Contributions and Transfers

During the financial year 2022/23 the Authority contributed TZS 6.72 
billion (2021/22: TZS 6.02 billion) to National and International bodies. 
Contribution of TZS 5.22 billion (2021/22: TZS 4.67 billion) was paid to the 
Government Consolidated Fund and TZS 1.50 billion (2021/22: TZS 1.33 
billion) was paid to other National and International bodies.

Surplus

The Authority recorded a surplus of TZS 0.92 billion during the year 
(2021/22: TZS 1.75 billion) which is a decrease of 0.83 billion (47.43%). 
This is due to the increase of new recruitment where 29 employees were 
recruited during the year 2021/22 resulting to the rise of wage bill. 
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

2.7.	   OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(b)	  Analysis of Financial Position

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The cash and cash equivalents on 30 June 2023 were TZS 4.23 billion 
(2021/22: TZS 5.26 billion) which is a decrease of TZS 1.03 billion, 
equivalent to 19.50%. 

Inventories

Inventories consist of stationery and other consumables. The value of 
inventory as of 30 June 2023 was TZS 595.79 million (2021/22: TZS 391.75 
million).

Other Financial Assets
These are staff benefits for SUMATRA employees held at the PSSSF as 
Trustees. During the year interest income of TZS 118.90 million (2021/22: 
NIL) was reported by PSSSF. All eligible staff were paid their entitlements 
in the previous periods.

Prepayments
The prepayments on 30 June 2023 were TZS 340.39 million (2021/22: TZS 
667.08 million). Comprising of TZS 30.94 million to Malindi Printing Press 
for suppling licenses, TZS 25.83 million to GPSA for motor vehicle fuel, 
TZS 96.56 million to NHIF for supplementary package, TZS 5.11 million to 
ATCL on account of air tickets, TZS 73.7 million to landlords for office rent. 
In addition, tuition fees paid to Galilee Institute, University of Florida and 
Creece University (TZS.108.27 million) was still outstanding.

Receivables
The major portion of receivables are unpaid notifications and outstanding 
service providers levy expected from TRC and UDA-RT. At 30 June 2023 
receivable stood at TZS 7.46 billion (2021/22: TZS 3.76 billion). The 
increase is provision made on levy during the reporting period.

Intangible Assets
The intangible assets as at 30 June 2023 was TZS 191.29 million (2021/22: 
TZS 154.63 million) the difference was attributed by cost for development 
of Drivers Testing System.
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2.7.	   OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment
The property and equipment during the year ended 30 June 2023 stood at 
TZS 13.27 billion (2021/22: TZS 14.27 billion). Despite purchase of motor 
vehicles, furniture and fittings and ICT equipment, the closing balance 
decreased due to depreciation.

Non-Current Asset Held for Sale
During the year ended 30 June 2023 the Board of Directors approved 
the disposal of asset with a book value TZS 232.98 million. The Board of 
Condemnation was appointed by the Minister of Finance in 12 October 
2023 through letter Ref. No. KA.54/538/01’A’/143. The disposal is 
expected to be completed before end of the current financial year.

Overall Performance
The Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023 reported increase 
in the Net Assets of the Authority by TZS 0.70 billion (2021/22: TZS 1.75 
billion) to TZS 20.00 billion (2021/22: TZS 19.30 billion). The Authority’s 
Net Assets comprised of Capital Fund of TZS 17.05 billion (2021/22: TZS 
17.05 billion) and Accumulated Surplus of TZS 2.95 billion (2021/22: TZS 
2.25 billion).

The changes in the Net Assets as at 30 June 2023 are attributed to increase 
in Total Assets by TZS 1.94 billion (2021/22: TZS 1.73 billion) while liabilities 
increased by TZS 1.24 billion million (2021/22: TZS 21.85 million).

Review of Key Ratios
The Authority‘s key performance ratios for the Last three (3) years are 
shown in Table 6 below.

Table 6: The Authority’s Key Performance Ratios, 2019/20-2022/23

Ratio Purpose 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 Remarks

Current 
Ratio

Ability to pay short 
term liabilities with 
current assets

2.0:1 2.0:1 2.3:1 1.6:1 High Liquidity.

Quick 
Ratio

Ability to pay 
current liabilities 
without realization 
of inventory

1.9:1 1.8:1 2.1:1 1.5:1 High Liquidity 
except 
2019/20.

Equity 
Ratio

Measure 
proportion 
of owners’ 
investment in 
total assets of the 
Authority.

0.85 0.78 0.86 0.84 Equity 
financed 
total assets 
by more than 
50%.

Source: LATRA Financial Statements.
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2.7.	   OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Payables and Accrued Expenses

The payables and accrued expenses as at 30 June 2023 were TZS 3.45 
billion (2021/22: TZS 2.81 billion). The major portion are funds due to 
other institution amounting to TZS 1.68 billion (2021/22: TZS 2.81 billion) 
and amounts accrued for preceding year expenses of TZS 1.74 billion 
(2021/22: TZS 0.99 billion).

(c)	 Analysis of Cash Flows

The Authority’s cash flows can be analysed from the cash flows statement 
under three areas of cash flows from operating activities, cash flows from 
investing activities and cash flows from financing activities. It should be 
noted that cash flow analysis does not consider any growth in the cash flow 
statement because the cash flow statement always shows what happened 
in the past. Therefore, the Authority’s cash flows analysis is summarized 
below:

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

The net cash flows from operating activities indicated excess payment of 
TZS 256.49 million (2021/22: TZS 3.04 billion), derived as the difference 
between cash receipts amounting to TZS 32.03 billion (2021/22: TZS 28.53 
billion) from Service Providers Levy, Fees, Licenses and Penalties, Other 
income; and payments amounting to TZS 32.28 billion (2021/22: TZS 
25.48 billion) for wages, salaries and employee benefits; Directors fees and 
other Board expenses; travelling, training and other facilitation expenses; 
services, supplies and consumable expenses; repairs and maintenance 
expenses; contribution to the Consolidated Fund; contribution and 
subscription to other bodies and bank charges.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

The net cash flows used in investing activities of TZS 768.59 million 
(2021/22: TZS 2.37 billion), was derived from capital expenditures including 
acquisition of property and equipment amounting to TZS 683.65 million 
(2021/22: TZS 2.28 billion) and acquisition of intangible assets amounting 
to TZS 107.33 million (2021/22: TZS 93 million). During the year 2022/23 
the Authority sold two Motor Vehicles amounting TZS 24.03 million. 
However, the proceeds from sale of STK 4376 were received in 2021/22.
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2.7.	   OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

There were no cash flows from financing activities during the financial year 
ended 30 June 2023 (2021/22: Nil).

(d)	 Budget Performance

The final revenue budget for the year ended 30 June 2023 was TZS 
35.20 billion (2021/22: TZS 30.23 billion). Revenue recognized for the 
year was TZS 34.79 billion (2021/22: TZS 28.82 billion) which is TZS 0.41 
billion (2021/22: TZS 1.41 billion) below the final budget. This is under-
performance by 1.16% (2021/22: 4.66%). The major reason for this 
underperformance is delays in operationalization of Electronic Ticketing 
System due to resistance of bus owners to use the system.

The final expenditure budget of the Authority for the financial year ended 
30 June 2023 was TZS 32.10 billion (2021/22: TZS 27.7 billion) and the 
actual expenditure was TZS 33.17 billion (2021/22: TZS 28.53 billion), 
which was above the final budget by TZS 1.78 billion (2021/22: TZS 0.83 
billion). The over expenditure is attributed to decision to shift LATRA Head 
Office to Dodoma.

(e)	 Future Plans

This section provides the Authority’s current and future development 
and performance with reference to significant features of the financial 
statements and the budget. It also provides analysis of main factors which 
are likely to impact on future prospects of the Authority.

Review of LATRA Five Years Corporate Strategic Plan 2020/21-
2024/25

The financial year 2022/23 was the mid-period of implementing the 
LATRA First Five-Years Corporate Strategic Plan (SP, 2020/21 to 2024/25). 
As such, the Authority was required to conduct a mid-term review in order 
to align the strategic plan with socio-economic and operational dynamics 
experienced during implementation. The review was conducted in October 
2022 in collaboration with experts from the President’s Office, Public 
Service Management and Good Governance. The sessions were held at 
LATRA Head Offices in Dodoma from 3 to 8 October 2022 and from 21 
to 27 October, 2022. During the process, the Revised LATRA Corporate 
Strategic Plan 2020/21 to 2024/25 was prepared and presented to 
Management, Workers Council and approved by the Board for submission 
to stakeholder for collecting views.
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.7.	   OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Review of LATRA Five Years Corporate Strategic Plan 2020/21-
2024/25  (Continued)

The revised strategic plan is proposing revision of the Vision and Mission 
Statements as well as Core Values among others. The proposals are as 
follows:

Vision Statement:	 A country with safe, reliable and eco-friendly land 
transport services.

Mission Statement: 	 To regulate land transport services through 
licensing, monitoring and promoting competition 
for the welfare of Tanzanians.

Core Values:	 Professionalism; Accountability; Teamwork; 
Integrity; Transparency; Innovativeness.

Review of LATRA Organization Structure

LATRA Organization Structure was approved on 26 December 2021. 
During implementation a number of shortfalls were identified including 
absence of function for regulation of cable transport. The need for cable 
transport has gained significance especially on tourist attraction areas 
where investors have shown interest. In order to lead the initiatives, the 
Authority decided to review its organisation structure to align with the 
growing demand. The revised structure was submitted to the Treasury 
Registrar in May 2023 and it is expected to be approved and put to use 
before end of the financial year 2023/2024.

Determination of Fares for TRC, MGR and SGR Railways

The Tanzania Railways Corporation (TRC) submitted two separate tariff 
applications proposing fares for SGR passenger train (Lot I and Lot II) 
and review of train fares for Ordinary and Deluxe passenger trains which 
proposed an increase of fares by 15%.  The Authority conducted analysis 
of the applications taking into consideration provisions of the LATRA Act, 
CAP 413 and LATRA Tariff Regulations, 2020.

The Authority’s made determination of appropriate fares which were 
submitted to stakeholders seeking their views during meetings which were 
scheduled for Dar es Salaam, Arusha, Mwanza and Kigoma in September 
2022.
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2.7.	   OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Investigation of Major Road Accidents

Pursuant with Section 21(1) of LATRA Act, Chapter 413, the Authority 
in collaboration with other key road safety stakeholders conducted 
investigation of the following road accidents:

i)	 road crash involving a school bus with registration number T207CTS 
which occurred on 26 July 2022 in Mtwara Region. In that accident 
ten (10) pupils and (3) adults’ lost lives and nineteen (19) others were 
seriously injured 

ii)	 road accident which occurred on 10 June 2022 involving a Toyota 
Coaster minibus travelling from Dar es salaam to Mbeya. The minibus 
crashed into a rolled over lorry at Majinja bridge, Changarawe area in 
Mafinga, Iringa region leading into multiple fatalities and injuries.

iii)	 Accident which occurred on 3 February 2023 at 22:24 hrs, involving a 
Minibus Toyota Coaster T863DXN carrying 25 passengers travelling 
from Dar es salaam to Rombo Kilimanjaro. The minibus collided head 
with a Mitsubishi Fuso Truck T673CUC which was travelling from 
Moshi to Dar es Salaam leading to 17 fatalities and 12 injuries.

iv)	 On 09 February 2023 at around 00h46, a passenger bus by the 
name Frester with registration number T415DPP collided with a 
cement Lorry truck with registration number T128DUB/T677DVX at 
Pandambili, Kongwa district in Dodoma Region causing 12 fatalities 
and 63 injuries.

The investigation established causes of the accidents which among 
others included, overtaking in blind spots, fatigue due lack of rest, over 
speeding, lack of safety culture and poor condition of vehicles. To address 
the challenges the Authority recommended expediting implementation of 
mandatory inspection of vehicles and speeding up testing and certification 
of drivers among other measures.
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2.7.	   OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(f)	 Capital Structure

Section 50(1) of the Land and Transport Regulatory Authority Act, Cap. 413 
provides that all assets, interest, rights, privileges, liabilities or obligations 
of the former Surface and Marine Transport Regulatory Authority 
(SUMATRA) not related to maritime transport shall be transferred to and 
vested with LATRA. Therefore, all assets and liabilities were taken over by 
the Authority and resulted to a net asset of TZS 17.05 billion forming the 
Capital Fund. The Authority’s capital structure for the year ended 30 June 
2023 consists of the Capital Fund of TZS 17.05 billion (2021/22: TZS 17.05 
billion) and Accumulated Surplus of TZS 2.95 billion (30 June 2021/22: TZS 
2.25 billion).

LATRA Capital Structure:

2022/23
TZS (000)

2021/22
TZS (000)

Capital Fund 17,047,108 17,047,108

Accumulated Surpluses 2,950,822 2,252,116

TOTAL NET ASSETS/EQUITY 19,997,930 19,299,224

(g)	 Treasury Policies and Objectives

LATRA treasury policies involve mechanisms established by the Board, 
which delegates financial decisions to Management in a controlled manner. 
The control instruments in place include LATRA Financial Regulations 
2020, The Public Finance Act, Cap. 348, Government Circulars, Guidelines 
and the Board resolutions on opening, operating and signing mandate to 
the bank accounts. 

The main objective is to ensure proper control and safeguard of the 
Government financial resources. Under these mechanisms, the Authority’s 
revenue is collected and remitted directly to the Authority’s revenue 
collection accounts maintained at designated commercial banks using 
GePG system; and weekly, on Monday, to the Authority’s revenue collection 
accounts maintained at BoT. All expenditures of the Authority are incurred 
within the approved limits in the approved annual budget.
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(h)	 Liquidity of the Entity
During the financial year ended 30 June 2023, the Authority managed 
its liquidity level to ensure there is sufficient funds to meet its liabilities 
when due, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to 
the Authority’s reputation. This was achieved through prudent liquidity 
management which includes maintaining sufficient cash and cash 
equivalents. 

The Authority’s trend of key liquidity ratios for the last three (3) years is 
shown in Table 7 below.

Table 7: LATRA Trend of Liquidity Ratios, 2019/20-2022/23

Ratio Purpose 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 Remarks

Current 
Ratio

Ability to pay 
short term 
liabilities with 
current assets

2.0:1 2.0:1 2.3:1 1.6:1 The Authority is 
highly liquid

Quick ratio Ability to 
pay current 
liabilities 
without 
realization of 
inventory

1.9:1 1.8:1 2.1:1 1.5:1 The Authority 
is highly liquid 
except for year 
2019/20.

Source: LATRA Financial Statements.

The Authority’s Liquidity gap which is the excess of current assets over 
current liabilities for the financial year ended 30 June 2023 was TZS 
12.89 billion (2021/22: TZS 10.23 billion). All the above ratios, shows the 
Authority was able to fund its current liabilities when they fall due.

In the next financial year 2023/24, due to the ongoing efforts to implement 
the e-ticketing system, the Authority expects revenue to increase by 46%. 
On similar grounds, liquidity level is expected to increase by the same 
percentage.
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.8.		 RESOURCES

The Authority has tangibles and intangibles resources, which includes 
intellectual resources, human resources, social and relationship resources, 
financial resources and other resources. These resources are used by the 
Authority in the performance of its functions to achieve the objectives. 
They are explained below:

(a)	 Financial Resources

The Authority’s sources of revenue are provided under Section 35 (1) of 
the Land and Transport Regulatory Authority Act, Cap. 413. The funds and 
resources of the Authority consist of:

(i)	 Fees collected by the Authority including fees payable for the grant 
and renewal of licenses;

(ii)	 Levies collected from regulated suppliers;
(iii)	 All other payments or property due to the Authority in respect of any 

matter incidental to its functions; 
(iv)	 Any grants/donations bequests or other contributions made to the 

Authority; and
(v)	 Any other monies legally acquired or received by the Authority for the 

execution of its functions.

Factors that may affect financial resources includes change in Law and 
resistance of regulated service providers to pay levies and other fees. 
Nevertheless, the Authority will take administrative and legislative 
measures to ensure financial resources are available to finance existing 
and future operations of the Authority.

(b)	 Human Resources

The Authority has a strong Management team supported by competent 
and motivated employees. By 30 June 2023, the Authority had operating 
offices in all the 26 regions of Mainland Tanzania and had a total of 154 
employees (2021/22: 125 employees). Most of the employees were 
transferred from the former regulator SUMATRA and those who joined 
the Authority in the years 2019-2023 came from public institutions or were 
recruited through the Public Service Recruitment Secretariat (PSRS). The 
recruitment was made after obtaining approvals of the Board of Directors 
and permits from the PS - Establishment. Hence, the employees were 
sourced to meet specific requirements of the Authority in accordance with 
skills, knowledge and experience required for regulation of land transport 
services.
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.8.		 RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

(b)	 Human Resources (Continued)
The Authority has in place incentive scheme to motivate its employees and 
training plan which ensures at least 50% of all employees undergo short-
term training to build capacity and improve employees’ performances.

Factors that may affect this resource includes transfers of employee to 
LATRA which do not commensurate with the needs of the Authority 
and inadequate financial resources to implement the incentive scheme. 
However, the Authority has in place strategies to ensure financial resources 
are available and right employees are recruited.

(c)	 Intellectual Resources

The intellectual resources include ICT application systems which has 
automated and modernized Authority’s operations, thus, improved 
provision of regulatory services. The ICT systems in operation include the 
following:

•	 Drivers Testing System (DTS)
•	 Passenger Service Vehicles Tracking System (VTS),
•	 Electronic Ticketing System (Tiketi Mtandao),
•	 Road and Railways Information Management System (RRIMS),
•	 Mobile Phones Online Inquiry System for Bus Fares,
•	 Electronic Document Management System (EDMS),
•	 Mfumo wa Ulipaji Serikalini (MUSE), 
•	 Integrated Payroll & Human Resource Management System, and
•	 Time Attendance (Biometric) System. 

In general, the ICT application systems have improved efficiency in service 
delivery. The Authority shall continue to use ICT related solutions to 
enhance efficiency and reduce costs of operations. Factors that may affect 
availability of ICT systems includes cyber-attacks and failures of software 
and hardware as well as internet connections. However, the Authority has 
Business Continuity Plan (BCP) in place and alternative procedures to 
ensure business continue even in occurrence of such events.

(d)	 Social and Relationship Resources

This resource was created over years basing on core values of the Authority 
and trust and respect among both internal and external stakeholders. 
LATRA has established transparent relationship with the Government, 
regulators, customers, suppliers including providers of regulated services, 
policy makers and the society in general. 
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.8.		 RESOURCES (CONTINUED)
(d)	 Social and Relationship Resources (Continued)
Factors that may affect social and relationship resources includes 
Authority’s failure to refund timely the 50% share to LGAs, non-payment 
of contributions to respective organs and low level of engagement with 
stakeholders. Despite these, the Authority commits to meet its obligations 
and implement initiatives which will foster the social relationship resource.

(e)	 Other Resources

In the discharge of its regulatory duties and functions, the Authority is 
guided by the Land and Transport Regulatory Authority Act, Cap. 413 and 
sector legislations under Roads and Railway Transport. 

During the financial year 2022/23, the Authority participated in the 
drafting of the following rules and regulations: -

(i)	 The Land Transport Regulatory Authority (Facilitation of Service Provider) 
Regulations, 2023;

(ii)	 The Land Transport Regulatory Authority (Mandatory Vehicle Inspection) 
Regulations, 2023;

(iii)	 The Land Transport Regulatory Authority (Compounding of Offences) 
Regulations, 2023;

(iv)	 The Transport Licensing (Dangerous Goods Carrying Vehicles) Regulations, 
2023;

(v)	 The Land Transport Regulatory Authority (Terms and Conditions for Provision 
of Regulated Services) Rules, 2023;

(vi)	 The Land Transport Regulatory Authority (Complaints Handling Procedures) 
Rules, 2023;

(vii)	 The Land Transport Regulatory Authority (Electronic Ticketing System) 
Regulations, 2023; and

(viii)	 The Land Transport Regulatory Authority (Vehicle Tracking System) 
Regulations, 2023.

Factors that may affect other resources include time taken to review and 
approve the draft rules and regulations. The Authority will collaborate 
with the Ministry of Works and Transport (Transport sector) to ensure the 
draft rules and regulations are authorised for publication within the next 
financial year 2023/24
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.9.		 PRINCIPAL RISKS, UNCERTAINITIES AND OPPORTUNITIES

2.9.1   Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Authority has in place the Risk Management Policy and Framework 
which guides on risks matters and has developed Risk Registers prioritizing 
a range of specific risks that are likely to occur and categorizing them into 
Strategic, Operational and ICT risks. Table 8 below provides key risks and 
uncertainties, their impact and mitigation measures.

Table 8: Key Authority’s Risks, Impacts and Mitigation

S/N OBJECTIVE RISK IMPACT RISKS MITIGATION
1 HIV/AIDS 

infections and 
non-communicable 
diseases reduced, 
and supportive 
services improved.

Failure to 
develop and 
implement HIV/
AIDS and NCDs 
interventions/ 
mechanisms.

Possible 
increase of HIV/
AIDs infection 
and NCCDs 
among staff.

•	 Program for prevention of 
non-communicable diseases 
facilitated.

•	 HIV/AIDS and Non - 
Communicable diseases 
awareness seminars conducted.

•	 Supportive services to staff living 
with HIV/AIDS provided.

•	 Healthily supportive working 
tools (Chairs, Tables etc.) 
acquired.

2 Effective 
implementation 
of National Ant-
Corruption Strategy 
enhanced and 
sustained.

Failure of the 
Authority to 
institute and 
enforce control 
mechanisms to 
prevent unethical 
practices and 
fraud.

Possible 
increase in 
unethical and 
fraudulent 
incidences 
leading to loss 
of reputation 
and credibility

•	 Whistle blowing policy 
developed.

•	 Automation of LATRA business 
processes in order to reduce 
human interactions.

•	 Enhanced compliance to internal 
controls E.g., segregation of 
duties.

•	 Compliance to Legislations 
requirements and other 
documents i.e., Financial 
Regulations, Staff Regulations 
and Client Service Charter.

•	 Ethics, fraud and corruption 
education and awareness 
programs prepared and 
implemented.
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S/N OBJECTIVE RISK IMPACT RISKS MITIGATION
3 Effective 

competition in the 
regulated sectors 
strengthened. 

Failure to 
coordinate the 
review, analysis, 
and resolutions 
of complaints 
and disputes in 
the regulated 
sectors.

Poor quality 
of regulated 
services 
leading to loss 
of trust and 
credibility.

•	 Appointment of a special 
committee to deal with 
complaints and dispute in line 
with Section 33 of the Land and 
Transport Regulatory Authority 
Act. 

•	 Establishment of complaint 
registers in each office.

•	 Resolving of conflicts amicably 
as per the Act.

•	 Timely communication of 
feedback to parties associated 
in a conflict.

Failure to 
provide cap fares 
of the regulated 
services as 
required by 
Regulations 
made under the 
LATRA Act. CAP 
413.

Complaints 
of fare hikes 
and failure to 
protect the 
low income 
and under 
privileged 
citizens.

•	 The following costing models 
were developed: -

Costing Model for Inter urban bus 
services.

Costing Model for commuter bus 
services.

Costing model for BRT services.
Costing model for economic 

freight charges on transportation 
of petroleum products.

•	 The Authority approved ride 
hailing taxi fares through Order 
No. LATRA/01/2022.

•	 Approved fares for urban and 
interurban bus services.

•	 Processed TRC’s and UDART 
tariff application for Ordinary 
and Deluxe trains’ fares and 
fares for the DART systems.

Non recognition 
of the Regulator 
in the TAZARA 
Act.

Lack of 
mandate 
to regulate 
TAZARA 
railways.

•	 Amendment of the TAZARA 
Act to recognize the role of 
Regulator.  The draft Act is 
pending approval by the Zambia 
Government.

•	 Inspections of TAZARA 
operations basing on best 
practices.

•	 Enhanced cooperation with 
the operator and the Ministry 
responsible for transport 

2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.9.	 PRINCIPAL RISKS, UNCERTAINITIES AND OPPORTUNITIES (CONTINUED)

Table 8: Key Authority’s Risks, Impacts and Mitigation (Continued)
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S/N OBJECTIVE RISK IMPACT RISKS MITIGATION
4 Safety of Land 

transport improved
Inadequate 
enforcement 
of laws and 
regulations 
for regulated 
road transport 
services.

Possible 
noncompliance 
to regulations 
and possibility 
of increase in 
road accidents.

•	 Implementation of Vehicle 
Tracking System (VTS) to 
monitor buses on real-time.

•	 Establishment of Drivers Testing 
System (DTS) to certify drivers. 

•	 Regulator monitoring inspections 
of commercial vehicles to 
reduce accidents.

•	 Engagement of stakeholders 
such as Police, TABOA and 
other institutions in the 
enforcement of road safety.

Failure to 
conduct 
quarterly safety 
inspection 
of TRC and 
TAZARA 
Passenger Trains 
Operations 
Infrastructure 
and Equipment.

Possible 
noncompliance 
to quality of 
standards and 
possibility of 
accidents and 
incidents.

•	 Funds for inspection is allocated 
in the budget.

•	 Inspections on TRC and TAZARA 
are conducted quarterly.

•	 Identified shortfalls are reported 
to the railway undertaking and 
the Ministry responsible for 
transport.

•	 Follow up measures 
on implementation of 
recommendations is made 
regularly.

5 Environmental 
sustainability of 
Land transport 
improved.

Failure to protect 
environment in 
the regulated 
sectors. 

Increase in 
environmental 
pollution.

•	 Promoting use of natural gas to 
power commercial vehicles 

•	 Promoted construction of social 
amenities along highways 

•	 Enforcing use of dust bins in 
buses.

6 Capacity to 
execute Regulatory 
Function Enhanced.

Failure to 
achieve 
budgeted 
collections.

The Authority’s 
financial 
capacity to 
finance its 
operations may 
be affected.

•	 Use of Electronic Ticketing by 
bus operators effective from 1 
July 2022.

•	 Collaboration with the 
MoWT, TRA, NIDC and 
other stakeholders in the 
implementation of the Electronic 
Ticketing system.

•	 Enhanced monitoring inspection 
of commercial vehicles using 
joint teams of officers on 
strategic locations along 
highways.

•	 Integration of Electronic 
Ticketing System with MUSE, 
GePG, RRIMS and bank 
accounts.

7 Capacity to 
execute Regulatory 
Function Enhanced.

Failure to 
develop, review 
and implement 
policies 
relating to 
finance, human 
resource, and 
administration.

Inability 
to achieve 
financial, 
human 
resource and 
administrations 
goals.

•	 Financial Regulation 2021 and 
Staff Regulations 2021 were 
developed and approved. 

•	 Scheme of Service & Salary 
Structure were developed, 
approved and implemented.

•	 LATRA Employees Incentive 
Scheme was developed 
approved and implemented.

Failure of ICT 
application 
software system 
or application 
hardware due to 
cyber-attacks or 
system failures.

Failure to 
provide 
regulatory 
services.

•	 Conducted security awareness 
seminars to its staff.

•	 Strengthened access controls to 
LATRA ICT applications.

•	 Engagement of relevant 
authorities to conduct 
assessments including 
penetration tests.

Source: LATRA Risk Registers

2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.9.	 PRINCIPAL RISKS, UNCERTAINITIES AND OPPORTUNITIES (CONTINUED)

Table 8: Key Authority’s Risks, Impacts and Mitigation (Continued)
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.9.	 PRINCIPAL RISKS, UNCERTAINITIES AND OPPORTUNITIES (CONTINUED)

		  2.9.2	 Opportunities

The risk assessment process identified opportunities that would expectedly 
enhance the strategic plan execution as summarized below:

(i)	 Government support from the parent Ministry (MoWT) and other 
ministries such as MoFP and the MoHA, specifically the Tanzania 
Police Force – Traffic Police Department and the OTR. The support 
has been key in facilitating discharge of regulatory activities.

(ii)	 Existence of Draft Open Access Regulation which once approved, will 
open the Standard Gauge Railway Line (SGR) to multiple operators. 
This will facilitate competition which in turn will increase utilization of 
the railway line to its capacity. Construction of the SGR is intended 
to ease the transfer of goods between the port of Dar es Salaam 
and the cities of Kigali, in Rwanda and subsequently to Bujumbura in 
Burundi, and to Goma in the Democratic Republic of the Congo. The 
cost of the project is high which calls for effective utilization of the 
investment. LATRA has a role in this by ensuring the Regulations are 
approved and used to facilitate competition.

(iii)	 Technological advancement and avenues for integration of LATRA 
systems with key stakeholders such as TAMISEMI, TRA, BRELA, TIRA 
and the Police Force – Traffic Police Department. The Authority has 
potential of enhancing quality service delivery and increase revenue 
generation by taking advantage of new technology in making 
transformative changes in its operations and processes.

(iv)	 Availability of media outlets with wide coverage. The Authority has 
been conducting road safety education awareness through Radio and 
Television programs including ‘Safiri Salama’ program and ‘Usafiri na 
Maendeleo’ aired by TBC every Saturday and Thursday respectively. 
It has also engaged Clouds TV as alternative channel and established 
a mini studio at LATRA Head Office. The Authority shall continue to 
widen use of media outlets to enhance visibility of its activities to the 
public.
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2.0	 THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.9.	 PRINCIPAL RISKS, UNCERTAINITIES AND OPPORTUNITIES (CONTINUED)
2.9.3	 Uncertainties and Assumptions

The Authority is mindful of the following assumptions during assessments 
of the risks, uncertainties and opportunities:

(i)	 macro- economic factors or conditions like Inflation, Interest rates, 
Gross Domestic Product, per capital income, economic growth rate, 
and exchange rates will continue to perform well and remain fairly 
stable;

(ii)	 political environment will remain stable and political support to the 
land transport sub-sector will prevail;

(iii)	 stable and predictable regulatory environment like Policies, Laws and 
Regulations will exist during the implementation of LATRA functions;

(iv)	 competent, skilled and motivated staff will be available during the 
Strategic Plan implementation period;

(v)	 availability of sufficient financial and physical resources like buildings, 
working tools for the implementation of the Corporate Strategic Plan; 
and

(vi)	 the current organization structure will remain for the implementation 
of Corporate Strategic Plan, subject to minor review to accommodate 
cable transport regulation, one of the core functions of the Authority.

2.10.	 LATRA OPERATING MODEL

The Authority’s operating model is the system of transforming inputs, 
through its operating activities, into outputs and outcomes that aims to 
fulfil LATRA’s strategic purposes and create value over the short, medium 
and long term. The LATRA Operating Model is explained in Table 9 below:-
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2.0   THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

2.11.	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS

2.11.1.  Corporate Governance Statement
The Authority is committed to the principles of effective corporate 
governance. The Directors also recognize the importance of integrity, 
transparency and accountability. The Board has the overall responsibility 
for the activities of the Authority, including responsibility for identifying key 
risk areas, considering and monitoring investment decisions, significant 
financial matters and reviewing performance of management business 
plans and budgets.

2.11.2.  Membership of Those Charged with Governance
The Board is established under Section 7 of the Land and Transport 
Regulatory Authority Act, Cap. 413.  The Board is formed with seven 
members: Chairman (non-executive) and six non-executive members. 

On 15 January 2023, Her Excellency, Dr. Samia Suluhu Hassan, the 
President of the United Republic of Tanzania, appointed Prof. Ahmed 
Mohamed Ame as the Chairman of the Board of Directors for the period 
of four (4) years upto 14 January 2027. Following the appointment, the 
Minister responsible for transport, Hon. Prof. Makame Mnyaa Mbarawa 
(MP), appointed six (6) members of the Board. The appointments marked 
the end of tenure of the first Board of Directors which served from 13 
September 2019 under Chairmanship of Eng. Dr. John S. Ndunguru. The 
members served the Authority as shown in the Table 10 below.

In addition, CPA Habibu J. S. Suluo, the Director General, was appointed, 
on 6 July 2022 following expiry of the tenure of the former Director 
General. The appointment of CPA Suluo was announced publicly on 9 
July 2022 and he reported for duty on Monday, 11 July 2022. The Director 
General is the Secretary to the Board in accordance with Section 7(3) of 
the Act.

No conflict of interest existed between the Directors and the Authority 
during the year. Key management personnel, including the Board 
Chairman and the Board Members, made declarations by completing a 
Form for Declaration of Related Party Transactions. 

The form was designed as issued by NBAA for the purpose of making sure 
that every transaction done by an entity with related parties is adequately 
disclosed and thus provide users of financial statements with adequate 
information for decision making. The amount incurred for the Board of 
Directors were TZS 144 million (2021/22: TZS 174 million) and amount for 
key Management employees TZS 2.74 billion (2021/22: TZS 2.26 billion) 
respectively. The details on related party transactions of TZS 2.89 Bill are 
disclosed in Note 27 of the financial statements.
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The tenure of service of the Board Chairman is four (4) years, for two (2) 
Board Members is three (3) years, the other two (2) Board Members is four 
(4) years, and one (1) Board Member is five (5) years. The tenure of service 
of the Secretary to the Board (Director General) is four (4) years.

Membership of previous Board came to an end on the dates indicated in 
Table 11 below.

Table 11: Board Members whose tenure ended during the year 2022/23

S/N Name Position Service Period

1 Eng. Dr. John S. Ndunguru Chairman 13 Sept 2019 – 15 January 2023

2 Dr. Stephen L. 
Mwakajumilo (FMA-UK)* Member 13 Sept 2019 – 12 September 2022

3 Eng. Michael J. Kyando* Member 13 Sept 2019 –12 September 2022

4 Mr. Henry M. Bantu, FCILT Member 13 Sept 2019 – 10 May 2023

5 Mr. Victor J. Kahangwa Member 13 Sept 2019 – 10 May 2023

This was the first Board of Directors of the Land Transport Regulatory 
Authority. The Board had seven members. The Members had served the 
Board with great distinction and commitment during their tenure. The 
Board had lost two of its esteemed members during the financial year 
ended on 2021/22. These are, Eng. Leonard Kapongo, who demised on 
17 July 2021 and Mrs. Roxana Kijazi who demised on 24 June 2022. As 
LATRA community, we extend our tributes, condolences and commitment 
to uphold their legacy of integrity, strong values and high standards.

(a)   Board Charter
The Board has in place Charter which set parameters within which it will 
operate to ensure the proper application of principles of good corporate 
governance. The Charter sets out the specific responsibilities to be 
discharged by the Board collectively, as well as the roles and responsibilities 
of the Board and its established Committees. Furthermore, the Charter 
sets out the responsibilities that may be delegated to its committees or to 
the Management; and it provides for internal organization of the Board, 
Board Meetings and proceedings. 

During the year, the Board decided to review the Charter to comply with 
the Board Charter Guidelines for Public and Statutory Corporations, 2015 
issued by the Office of the Treasury Registrar. The revised draft Charter 
shall be shared with relevant Authorities for review and comments before 
being approved in the next financial year.
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2.11.	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS (CONTINUED)
(b)   Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The principal functions and operations of the Authority are governed by the 
Land and Transport Regulatory Authority Act. 

The Directors confirm that the activities and operations of the Authority 
were conducted in accordance with the Act and there was no information of 
non-compliance with other applicable laws and regulations that would have 
material impact on the Authority.

(c)  Board Meetings

During the year under review, the Authority complied with all aspects of 
good corporate governance principles which include Board operations and 
control; rights of the Government and general public; stakeholder relations; 
ethics and social responsibility; accountability, risk management and internal 
control; and transparency and disclosure.

The Board held a total of Four (4) meetings during the year ended 30 June 
2023. Out these, three (3) were ordinary and one (1) was special meeting. In 
these meetings, the Board discussed and deliberated on the following main 
issues:
(i)	 Report of used SGR Rolling Stock imported from German;
(ii)	 Status of new 22 MGR and 14 SGR coaches imported from Korea;
(iii)	 TRC reviewed fares for Ordinary Deluxe Passenger Services;
(iv)	 Tariff Review for Ride-Hailing Transport Services;
(v)	 Bus fare review for BRT System in Dar es Salaam;
(vi)	 Report of the Complaints Handling Committee;
(vii)	 Proposal to appoint Review Panel Members;
(viii)	 Report of Safety Coordinating Committee;
(ix)	 Proposal to combine Maritime Consumer Consultative Council and 

Land Transport Regulatory Authority Consumer Consultative Council 
(LATRA CCC);

(x)	 Report of road accidents which occurred on 10 and 27 June 2022 in 
Iringa and Mtwara;

(xi)	 Authority’s Budget and Procurement Plan for the Financial Year 
2023/24;

(xii)	 Authority’s Revised Budget for the Financial Year 2022/23;
(xiii)	 Risk Based Internal Audit Plan for the year 2022/23 and quarterly 

audit reports;
(xiv)	 Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2021/22; and 
(xv)	 Reviewed LATRA Five Years Strategic Plan 2020/21-2024/25
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(d)	 Board Resolutions

After deliberation on the agenda items above, the following were the 
Board’s resolutions,

(i)	 Adopted reports of SGR Rolling Stock, MGR and SGR Coaches and 
directed Management to submit the reports to relevant bodies and 
follow up implementation of recommendations;

(ii)	 Approved fares for ordinary deluxe passenger service train, ride-
hailing transport services and fares for BRT System in Dar es Salaam;

(iii)	 Adopted report of the Complaints Handling Committee;
(iv)	 Approved appointment of member of review panel;
(v)	 Noted proposal for combining Maritime Consumer Consultative 

Council and Land Transport Regulatory Authority Consumer 
Consultative Council (LATRA CCC) and directed Management to 
consult with TASAC and the Ministry;

(vi)	 Approved Authority’s Budget and Procurement Plan for the Financial 
Year 2023/2024;

(vii)	 Approved the Authority’s Revised Budget for the Financial Year 
2022/23;

(viii)	 Approved the Risk Based Internal Audit Plan for the year 2022/23; 
and 

(ix)	 Approved for issue and signed the Authority Financial Statements 
for the year ended on 30 June 2022.

2.11.3.   Committees of Those Charged with Governance

The Board of Directors during its 1st Special Meeting held on 24 September 
2019 formed three Board Committees: Audit and Risk Committee, Safety 
and Regulation Committee and Finance and Administration Committee. 

The following were members of the Board Committees who served the 
Committees during the financial year under review for stated period, and 
the number of meetings attended:

(a)    Audit and Risk Committee

Below are members of the Audit and Risk Committee who served as 
indicated in Table 12 below. 
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Table 12: Members of Audit and Risk Committee

S/n Name Position Nationality Service Period to 
30 June 2023

Meetings 
Attended

1 Dr. Stephen L. 
Mwakajumilo 
(FMA-UK)

Chairman
Outgoing

Tanzanian 13 Sept. 2019 – 
12 Sept. 2022

1/3

2 Mr. Allen Thobias 
Marwa

New Chairman Tanzanian 10 May, 2023-
30 June, 2023

0

3 Adv. Victor J. 
Kahangwa

Member Tanzanian 13 Sept. 2019 – 
10 May 2023

2/3

4 Eng. Dr. Michael P. 
Kisaka

Member Tanzanian 10 May,2023- 
30 June, 2023

0

5 Mrs. Tumaini E. Silaa Member Tanzanian 1 April 2022 – 
30 June 2023

3/3

Capital During the year, the Committee held three (3) ordinary meetings. 
In these meetings, the Committee discussed and deliberated on the 
following main issues:

(i)	 Risk Based Internal Audit Plan for the year 2022/23 
(ii)	 Quarterly audit reports.
(iii)	 Status of the Land Transport Regulatory Authority Risk Management 

Report.
(iv)	 Audit Plan and Audit fees for external auditor (CAG).
(v)	 Draft LATRA Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022. 

and
(vi)	 Management Letter and Financial Statements and Financial Year 

for 2021/22.

The following were the Committee’s resolutions:

(i)	 Endorsed for submission to the Board, the Risk Based Internal Audit 
Plan for the financial year 2022/23.

(ii)	 Adopted recommendations from the Quarterly Audit reports for 
submission to the Board of Directors.

(iii)	 Adopted the Authority Risk Management Report for submission to 
the Board.

(iv)	 Endorsed the Audit Plan and Audit fees for submission to the Board. 
and

(v)	 Endorsed the audited LATRA Financial Statements for submission 
to the Board for adoption.
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(b)	 Safety and Regulation Committee

Below are members of the Safety and Regulation Committee who served 
as indicated in Table 13 below.

Table 13: Members of Safety and Regulation Committee

S/n Name Position Nationality Service Period to 
30 June 2023

Ordinary 
Meetings

1 Mrs. Tumaini 
E. Silaa

Chairman Tanzanian 1 April 2022 – 
30 June 2023

3/3

2 Mr. Henry M. 
Bantu, FCILT

Member Tanzanian 13 Sept. 2019 – 
10 May 2023

2/3

3 Eng. Michael 
J. Kyando

Member Tanzanian 13 Sept. 2019 – 
12 September 2022

1/3

During the year, the Committee held three (3) ordinary meetings and 
one special meeting. In these meetings, the Committee discussed and 
deliberated on the following main issues:

(i)	 Report of used SGR Rolling Stock imported from German;
(ii)	 Status of new 22 MGR and 14 SGR coaches imported from Korea;
(iii)	 TRC reviewed fares for Ordinary Deluxe Passenger Services;
(iv)	 Tariff Review for Ride-Hailing Transport Services;
(v)	 Bus fare review for BRT System in Dar es Salaam;
(vi)	 Report of the Complaints Handling Committee;
(vii)	 Proposal to appoint Review Panel Members;
(viii)	 Report of Safety Coordinating Committee;
(ix)	 Proposal to combine Maritime Consumer Consultative Council 

and Land Transport Regulatory Authority Consumer Consultative 
Council (LATRA CCC); and 

(x)	 Report of road accidents which occurred on 10 and 27 June 2022 

The following were the Committee’s resolutions:
(i)	 Endorsed reports of SGR Rolling Stock, MGR and SGR Coaches 

for submission to the Board after incorporating Committee’s 
recommendations;

(ii)	 Approved fares for ordinary deluxe passenger service train, ride-
hailing transport services and fares for BRT System in Dar es Salaam;

(iii)	 Adopted report of the Complaints Handling Committee;
(iv)	 Approved appointment of member of review panel;
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(b)	 Safety and Regulation Committee  (Continued)

(v)	 Noted proposal for combining Maritime Consumer Consultative 
Council and Land Transport Regulatory Authority Consumer 
Consultative Council (LATRA CCC) and directed Management to 
consult with TASAC and the Ministry; and 

(vi)	 Board Order for Ride-hailing taxi services.

(c)	 Finance & Administration Committee

Below are members of the Finance & Administration Committee who 
served as indicated in Table 14 below. 

Table 14: Members of Finance & Administration Committee

S/n Name Position Nationality Service Period 
to 30 June 

2023

Ordinary 
Meetings 
Attended

Extra 
Ordinary 
Meeting

1 Mr. Victor J. 
Kahangwa

Chairman Tanzanian 13 Sept. 2019 – 
10  May2023

3/3 1/1

2 Eng. Michael J. 
Kyando

Member Tanzanian 13 Sept. 2019–
12 Sept 2022

1/3 0/1

3 Mr. Henry M. 
Bantu, FCILT

Member Tanzanian 13 Sept. 2019 – 
10 May 2023

2/3 1/1

The Committee held a total of four (4) meetings during the year ended 
30 June 2023. Out these, three (3) were ordinary and one (1) was special 
meeting. In these meetings, the Committee discussed and deliberated on 
the following main issues:

(i)	 Authority’s Budget and Procurement Plan for the Financial Year 
2023/2024;

(ii)	 Authority’s Revised Budget for the Financial Year 2022/23;
(iii)	 The Authority’s Quarterly Performance Reports;
(iv)	 Staff matters including performance contracts and appraisals; and
(v)	 The revised Authority’s Corporate Strategic Plan (2020/21-2024/25).

The following were the Committee’s resolutions:
(i)	 Endorsed the Annual Plan and Budget for the financial ear 2021/22 

for submission to the Board;
(ii)	 Adopted and endorsed the Authority’s Quarterly Performance 

Reports for submission to the Board;
(iii)	 Endorsed report on staff matters and performance contracts for 

submission to the Board; and
(iv)	 Adopted and endorsed for submission to the Board the Authority’s 

Corporate Strategic Plan (2020/21-2024/25).
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2.11.4.    Environmental Social and Governance Issues.

According to Section 5(g) of the LATRA Act, Cap 413, the Authority is 
tasked with the responsibility of preserving the environment. In pursuit 
of this goal, the Authority developed the Regulator’s Environmental 
Guidelines, which provide a comprehensive framework ensuring 
environmentally responsible development, operation, and maintenance 
of railway infrastructure. These guidelines serve as a reference for setting 
environmental standards, evaluating compliance, and fostering continuous 
improvement in environmental performance.

The Guidelines cover a wide range of environmental aspects, including 
but not limited to:

(a)	 Emissions Reduction and Air Quality Management: Addressing 
greenhouse gas emissions, particulate matter, and energy efficiency 
measures;

(b)	 Noise and Vibration Control: Providing strategies to monitor, assess, 
and mitigate noise and vibration impacts;

(c)	 Waste Management and Recycling: Guidelines for waste minimization, 
handling hazardous and non-hazardous waste, and promoting 
recycling practices;

(d)	 Water Resource Management: Addressing water conservation, storm-
water management, and wastewater treatment and discharge;

(e)	 Biodiversity and Ecological Preservation: Promoting habitat 
conservation, wildlife protection, and vegetation management;

(f)	 Reporting, Monitoring, and Compliance: Establishing requirements 
for environmental reporting and compliance;

(g)	 Stakeholder Engagement and Collaboration: Outlining strategies 
for public consultation, stakeholder engagement, and collaborative 
initiatives; and 

(h)	 Training and Capacity Building: Providing guidance on training 
programs and capacity-building initiatives for regulatory personnel 
and railways.
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2.11.5.   Railway Environmental Assessment and Management

To reflect the growing importance of Environmental, Social, and 
Governance (ESG) to its investor base, the Authority integrated ESG into 
all its business operations with TRC. The Authority is directly responsible 
for TRC’s ESG performance and monitoring of ESG is a key part of the 
regulator’s governance structure. For the financial year 2022/23, the 
assessment was conducted in May 2023, and an ESG report was prepared 
to inform the public on TRC’s performance in relation to Environment, 
Social, and Governance. The report covered the following areas:

(a)  Energy Consumption:

During the reporting period, TRC used diesel fuel by 100% to transport 
passengers and freight trains. However, TRC plans to use Electric Energy 
during the financial year 2023/2024 when Standard Gauge Rail operations 
commence.

(b)  Emissions:

Railway undertakings do not use any special equipment for collecting 
statistics on carbon emissions. Therefore, TRC was unable to provide 
an accurate report on carbon emission statistics emanating from train 
operations. However, there was no incidence related to environmental 
pollution or excessive emissions.

(c)  Waste Disposal:

Most wastes generated during maintenance and repair of track and rolling 
stock are disposed of properly. To reduce waste, TRC is closely improving 
maintenance procedures by providing state-of-the-art machines.

(d)  Water Conservation:

TRC has adopted measures to minimize the use of water and has 
cultivated the concept of saving water among its employees. Several water 
conservations measures have been adopted by TRC employees, such as 
reporting leaky taps, proper use of toilets, and reusing or recycling water 
where possible.

(e)  Community Charity:
TRC has been involved in several community activities for the FY2022/23.
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The implementation status of TRC Metrics for the financial year 2022/23 is 
provided in the Table 15 below.

Table 15: TRC ESG Implementation Matrix

S/N Metrics Implementation Status Remarks

1 Review TRC’s energy 
usage in rail operations 
and determine possible 
improvements to policies 
and procedures.

TRC is in the process of 
reviewing its procedures 
and policies for energy use.

To be reported in 
the next financial 
year 2023/2024.

2 Formalize and re-brief policy 
to conduct meetings to 
passengers and other train 
users whenever possible.

TRC conducted several 
meetings with passengers 
in stations to remind them 
on the use of amenities 
and dustbins for disposal of 
wastes.

The Regulator will 
make follow up.

3 Seek to enhance monitoring 
of environmentally friendly 
during train operations, 
maintenance of rolling stock 
and infrastructure.

TRC complied -

4 Strengthen criteria to 
select operators with 
modern equipment 
(locomotives, earth 
moving and maintenance 
equipment) which minimizes 
carbon emission and with 
commitment to minimize air 
pollution.

Under implementation The Regulator will 
make follow up.

5 Improve environmental 
reporting to the Regulator 
and NEMC.

After getting environmental 
guidelines for railway 
operations, TRC are on 
the way of implementing 
reporting mechanism

The Regulator will 
make follow up.

6 Improve reporting of waste 
management information 
during design, construction, 
maintenance and 
operations.

Under implementation The Regulator will 
make follow up.

7 Strengthen understanding 
of physical risk from climate 
change by mapping TRC 
asset footprint to flooding 
and climate prediction 
models.

TRC undertaking more 
studies on flood prone 
areas such as Kilosa – 
Gulwe section.

The Regulator will 
make follow up.
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S/N Metrics Implementation Status Remarks

8 Determine how to more 
publicly demonstrate how 
the risk of forced and 
child labor is evaluated 
and eliminated from TRC’s 
business operations and 
investment portfolios 
possibly in a broader 
sustainability report or 
annual company statement.

Under implementation The Regulator will 
make follow up.

9 Engage with local users 
on the routes to support 
deployment of fleet to 
greater benefit to local 
communities.

TRC conducted several 
meetings with Local 
Government Authorities 
to oversee possibility of 
increasing train services.

10 Apply environmental 
guidelines which are 
provided by Regulator to 
enhance environmentally 
friendly operations.

Under implementation The Regulator will 
make follow up.

11 Undertake strategic 
research, in collaboration 
with equipment 
manufacturers, to 
understand how to minimize 
the emerging safety risk 
associated with security 
threats to TRC’s assets.

Under implementation The Regulator will 
make follow up.

12 Undertake further 
training and assessment 
of environmental data 
protection requirements.

Under implementation The Regulator will 
make follow up.

13 Develop specific rules on 
political contributions in 
line with National Transport 
Policy.

Under implementation

14 Including public statements 
on ESG in TRC financial 
statement for FY 2022/23.

Under implementation

15 To enhance provision of 
amenity facility to people 
with special needs in railway 
stations.

Under implementation The Regulator will 
make follow up.

2.0      THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.11.	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Table 15: TRC ESG Implementation Matrix (Continued)
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2.0      THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.11.	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS (CONTINUED)

2.11.6.    Health and hygiene in transportation

Passengers can cause pollution by dumping waste indiscriminately or 
helping themselves into the wild if the transportation facilities they use 
do not have proper sanitation systems and procedures. In addition, 
passengers may experience “nuisance” contamination or health impacts if 
the transportation containers they used contain insecticide, scrap, and do 
not meet transportation standards. These challenges, along with the risk 
of fires or accidents, are fuelling the importance of ensuring cleanliness 
and safety within transportation facilities for passengers throughout the 
journey.

2.11.7.	 Owners and Managers of commercial vehicles will ensure: 

•	 The presence of solid waste storage facilities inside transportation 
facilities; 

•	 The presence of special containers with lids to store other contaminants 
such as vomit and baby faeces;

•	 The presence of fire extinguishers that have been inspected and 
verified by the relevant authorities; 

•	 Control of sewage from transportation facilities, especially buses with 
toilets Presence of personnel with knowledge about the proper use of 
fire extinguishers;

•	 The presence of a first aid box for passengers containing soap, unused 
razors, scissors, bandages, plasters, pain medications, wound cleaning 
medications, glucose and blood pressure tests;

•	 Spraying of insecticides such as cockroaches and ticks “fumigation” 
takes place every six months and have a certificate certifying the 
service;

•	 Passengers have access to toilet facilities at official service stations for 
travellers;

•	 Transportation facilities meet Tanzania’s standards for passenger 
transportation;

•	 Vessels should be in good condition of durability and hygiene to 
avoid accidents of cutting themselves, slipping, falling or contracting 
infectious diseases;

•	 Protect passengers from noise, dust, smoke, moisture and polluted air; 
•	 Loading passengers according to the capacity of the transport vessel; 
•	 Avoiding unloading hard items and other unwanted luggage into the 

passenger area; 



78 2022/23
Annual Report

2.0      THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.11.	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS (CONTINUED)

2.11.7. Owners and Managers of commercial vehicles will ensure: (Continued)
•	 Avoid loading live animals such as chickens, ducks, goats etc into 

human trafficking containers to avoid outbreaks of animal-to-human 
landfills; 

•	 Allow enough air to enter to ensure proper air circulation and avoid the 
spread of infectious airborne infections; 

•	 Having audio, photo, video and text advertisements prohibiting 
the indiscriminate disposal of waste, supporting informal areas and 
emphasizing the use of a waste container that is located within the 
relevant transport container; 

•	 Workers on board, including the driver, inform the authority or health 
care facility about any passenger or attendant with symptoms of a 
disease declared by the Government as an epidemic; 

•	 Any product for human consumption loaded onto a transport vessel 
should be in an environment that will not be contaminated or damaged 
to the extent that it will be detrimental to human health if used; and 

•	  The transport vessel should be filled with fuel or repairs when 
passengers are on board the vessel

		  2.12.	 EMPLOYEES’ WELFARE 

(a)	 Management and Employees’ Relationship

There was harmonious relationship between the employees of the Authority 
and the Management during the year under review. There were no 
unresolved complaints received by the Board from the employees during 
the year. A healthy relationship continues to exist between Management 
and COTWU-Branch.

(b)	 Medical Assistance
During the year, the Authority used National Health Insurance Fund (NHIF) 
to provide medical services to its staff and their dependents. Medical 
expenses during the year amounted to TZS 42.86 million (2022: TZS 43.56 
million). Furthermore, the Authority continued to raise awareness to staff 
on HIV/AIDS issues. The expenditure for HIV/AIDS Awareness Seminars 
and support to People Living with HIV/AIDS (PLWHA) during the year was 
TZS 21.91 million (2022: TZS 35.69 million).

(c)	 Training Facilities
Training programs are continually being developed to ensure employees 
are adequately trained at all levels. Employees are given opportunity 
to attend short and long training programs to upgrade their skills and 
enhance career development. During the year, two staff attended long 
term training (2021/22: 2) 
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2.0      THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

		  2.13.	 SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY ISSUES

The Authority did not make any political donations during the year 
ended 30 June 2023. Donations were made as part of corporate social 
responsibility to institutions and charitable organizations to acknowledge 
LATRA’s responsibility to community social needs as guided by its Donation 
Policy. The policy provides scope and manner in which Authority shall 
respond to social and community needs.

The list of beneficiaries for corporate social responsibilities funds for the 
financial year 2022/23 is provided in Table 16 below:

Table 16: Beneficiaries for Corporate Social Responsibilities, 2022/23

S/N Beneficiary Purpose of the Donation/
Contribution

Amount 
(TZS ‘000’)

1 Traffic Police Tanzania Support for printing and 
designing books and brochures 
for disseminating road safety 
information.

5,000

2 National Road Safety 
Council of Tanzania 
(RSA)

Contribution to facilitate Road 
Safety Ambassadors Day in 
Mbeya on 17 September 2022

3,000

3 UBOJA Contribution to facilitate 
meeting for Umoja wa 
Bodaboda in Arusha

2,000

4 National Road Safety 
Council of Tanzania 
(RSA)

Donation to facilitate road 
safety week 2023 in Mwanza 
from 20 to 24 March.

5,000

5 ARUSHA Subtreasury 
Dep Elect

Donation to facilitate Arusha 
regional Business council 
meeting to promote business 
opportunities.

3,000

6 Raphael Frank 
Mndeme 

Award to NIT best student for 
the year 2022.

1,000

7 RUKWA Sub-Treasury 
Misc Dev Exp 
Electronic Account

Facilitation of Rukwa Investment 
Forum to promote business 
opportunities in the region.

2,000

8 TCAA Consumer 
Consultative Council.

Donation to facilitate TCCA 
Consumers Day in Mwanza in 
March 2023
Motto: Empowering Consumer 
through clean energy

1,500



80 2022/23
Annual Report

S/N Beneficiary Purpose of the Donation/
Contribution

Amount 
(TZS ‘000’)

9 Serikali ya Kijiji cha 
Nyamikoma

Donation of Iron sheet for 
construction of Dispensary of 
Nyamikoma Village.

1,000

10 Chama cha Marafiki wa 
Oljoro.

 Donation for Supporting 
Construction of Kitchen and a 
Food Court in Shalom Orphans 
Center -Kibaha

1,000

11 TLB Uyui Support to blind people in 
Tabora

895

12 NYASA District Council Donation to facilitate Roofing 
of six Classes at Mipoyopoto 
Secondary School

3,000

13 Marafiki wa Maendeleo 
Handeni

Donation to facilitate breast 
cancer check-up to women of 
Handeni.

3,500

14 Viziwi Dodoma Region To facilitate awareness training 
on LATRA and Road Safety Laws 
to VIZIWI in Dodoma Region

3,405

15 Accident Investigation 
Committee-Tanga

Investigation of Accident at 
Handeni Tanga.

3,952

Total 39,252
Source: LATRA Financial Records

		  2.14.	 GENDER PARITY

The Authority had 154 employees during the year ended 30 June 2023 
(2021/22: 125). Most of the employees were transferred to the Authority 
from the former regulator SUMATRA as required by Section 49 of the 
Land Transport Regulatory Authority Act, Cap. 413. Some employees 
were transferred from Government Institutions while others were recruited 
through the Public Service Recruitment Secretariat (PSRS). During the 
year, 24 new employees joined the Authority through PSRS. Out of the 
154 employees, 124 (80.5%) were male and 30 (19.5%) were female as 
shown in Table 17 below.

2.0   THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
	 2.13.   SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY ISSUES

	 Table 16: Beneficiaries for Corporate Social Responsibilities, 2022/23   		
		  (Continued)
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2.0      THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

		  2.14.	 GENDER PARITY (CONTINUED)

Table 17: Number of LATRA Employee

Gender 30.06.2023 30.06.2022

No. % No. %

Male 124 80.5 98 78.4

Female 30 19.5 27 21.6

Total 154 100.0 125 100.0
Source: LATRA Human Resources Records

Generally, the Authority gives equal opportunity to all people on 
recruitment process to fill vacant employment positions.

2.15.	 ESSENTIAL/MAJOR CONTRACTUAL OR OTHER ARRANGEMENTS 

The Authority had major procurement contracts with persons and other 
entities, which were essential to its operations during the financial year 
ended 30 June 2023. The list of the major procurement contracts of above 
TZS 50 million is summarized under Table 18 below:

Table 18: Major Procurement Contracts, 2022/23

S/N Contract Title Name of Supplier/ 
Service Provider

Type of 
Contract

Contract 
Value 

(TZS ‘000’)

1

Supply of ICT 
Equipment.

M/s Emerging 
Communications 
Limited.

Fixed Price 
Contract 146,159

2
M/s IVO Solutions 
Limited

Fixed Price 
Contract 242,416

3
M/s Dolphin 
Professional Services 
Limited

Fixed Price 
Contract 50,775

4
M/s Computer Centre 
Tanzania Ltd

Fixed Price 
Contract 51,540

5 Supply of Promotion 
Materials.

M/s Professional Photo 
Lab Limited

Fixed Price 
Contract 115,314

6 Improvement of RRIMS
M/s e-Government 
Authority (eGA)

Fixed Price 
Contract 189,390

7 Partitioning of 
Dodoma Office

M/s Tanzania Building 
Agency (TBA)

Fixed Price 
contract 319,573

8 Provision of Security 
Services

M/s SUMA JKT Guard 
Company

Fixed Price 
Contract 308,940
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S/N Contract Title Name of Supplier/ 
Service Provider

Type of 
Contract

Contract 
Value 

(TZS ‘000’)

9 Airing Television 
Program

M/s Tanzania 
Broadcasting 
Corporation (TBC)

Fixed Price 
Contract 113,280

10 Supply of Computer 
Consumables

M/s Jamii Grouped 
Solution (T) Limited

Fixed Price 
Contract 103,520

11 Supply of Generator 
sets

M/s Car and General 
Trading Company 
Limited

Fixed Price 
Contract 61,242

12

Provision of 
consultancy services 
to carry out a study on 
demand and supply 
of commuter services 
in the city of Dar-es-
salaam and Mwanza. 
Tanzania

M/s Institute of Finance 
Management

Fixed Price 
Contract 128,266

Total 1,663,040

Source: LATRA Procurement records

2.16.	 APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR
The Controller and Auditor General (CAG) is the statutory auditor of the 
Land Transport Regulatory Authority (LATRA) by virtue of Article 143 of the 
Constitution of the United Republic of Tanzania as amplified by sections 9 
of the Public Audit Act (PAA) No 11 of 2008. However, in accordance with 
Section 33(1) of the same Act, M/s Dar Financial Consultants with TIN NO 
111 524 548, VRN NO 40-041249-M and NBAA registration No PF 231 was 
appointed and authorized to carry out the audit of the Authority jointly with 
the CAG. The appointment was communicated to LATRA through letter 
Ref:No. CB.35/38/79 dated 30 June, 2023.

2.17.	 RESPONSIBILITY OF THE AUDITOR
The CAG has a statutory responsibility to report to the stakeholders as to 
whether, in his opinion, the financial statements of the Authority present 
fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with the International Public Sector Accounting 
Standards (IPSASs), the Tanzania Financial Reporting Standard (TFRS 1) and 
in the manner required by the Land Transport Regulatory Authority Act, Cap. 
413 and the Public Finance Act, Cap. 348. The CAG is also responsible to 
report on the Authority’s compliance with the Public Procurement laws.

2.0      THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
2.15.	 ESSENTIAL/MAJOR CONTRACTUAL OR OTHER ARRANGEMENTS  

(CONTINUED)

Table 18: Major Procurement Contracts, 2022/23 (Continued)
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2.0      THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

2.18.	 STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY BY THOSE CHARGED WITH 
GOVERNANCE 

Those Charged with Governance (TCWG) accept responsibility for the 
maintenance of accounting records, which may be relied upon in the 
preparation of the financial statements, pursuant to section 37(1) of 
the Land Transport Regulatory Authority Act, Cap. 413. Furthermore, 
Those Charged with Governance accept responsibility for the financial 
statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting 
policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, 
in conformity with the International Public Sector Accounting Standards 
(IPSAS), the Public Finance Act, Cap. 348, NBAA’s Pronouncements and 
the requirements of the Land Transport Regulatory Authority Act, Cap. 
413.

Therefore, TCWG are of the opinion that the financial statements of the 
Authority give a true and fair view of the Authority’s state of the financial 
affairs and of its operating results for the year ended 30 June 2023.

2.19.	 POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Authority did not make any political donations during the year 
ended 30 June 2023. Donations were made as part of corporate social 
responsibility to institutions and charitable organizations to acknowledge 
LATRA’s responsibility to community social needs. 

The list of beneficiaries for corporate social responsibilities funds for the 
financial year 2022/23 is provided in Table 16 above under section 13.6 of 
this report:

2.20.	 PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

LATRA is an equal opportunity employer and as a matter of policy, 
recruitment processes are transparent and competitive. In case of 
applications for employment by persons with disabilities, will be considered 
bearing in mind the results of aptitude test, if any, and performance on the 
oral interviews. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every 
effort shall be made to ensure that their employment with the Authority 
continues. 

The Employee Incentive Scheme provides for Disabled Allowance of TZS 
150,000/- per person per month. The allowance is aimed to facilitate them 
with communication, transport or any other support that are needful to 
them. During the year 2022/23 two (2021/22: Nil) were facilitated with the 
allowance 
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2.0      THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

	 2.21.	 PREJUDICIAL ISSUES

The prejudicial issues at the end of the financial year 2022/23 included the 
following; -

(a)	 A litigation in the High Court of Tanzania at Mbeya by Rabia Isiaka 
Jafari vs LATRA and Attorney General, Civil Case No. 2/2022. In 
this matter, the Plaintiff claims against 1st and 2nd defendants for 
unlawfully detention of his motor vehicle Toyota Hiace T253ANB. 
The claims are specific and general damages amounting to TZS 
310,500,000/-. The defendants raised preliminary objection on point 
of law that were argued by way of written submissions and the ruling 
date was set to 18 August, 2022. On 18 August 2022 the Ruling came 
in favour of the Authority and the matter was dismissed.

(b)	 Appeal No. 9/2022 at Fair Competition Tribunal by Uber (T) Limited vs 
Land Transport Regulatory Authority. The Authority received a Notice 
No. 9 of 2022 regarding an Intended Appeal by Uber (T) Limited to the 
Fair Competition Tribunal after being dissatisfied with the decision of 
the Board of the Authority in issuance of Order No. LATRA/01/2022 
for ride-hailing taxi services fares on 14 March 2022 that set the fare 
and commission cap prices. On 28 June 2022 Uber filed a Notice to 
withdraw the intended Appeal No.9 of 2022. On 2 September 2022 
the Fair Competition Tribunal marked the appeal withdrawn.

(c)	 A litigation at Kisutu Regional Magistrate; Republic vs Ashraf Mustafa 
Maumba and another pertaining forgery of Authority documents, 
Criminal Case no. 271 of 2016. The Authority’s Manager of Safety 
Coordination and Environment (MSCE) appeared as witness on behalf 
of the Authority and prosecution case was heard on 20 June 2023.

(d)	 Mention of Civil Case No. 8 of 2023 in the High Court, Morogoro 
Registry between LATRA vs Kelvin Samwel and another claiming for 
damaged vehicle STL 8921 the property of the Authority. The mention 
was on 21 June 2023.

	 2.22.	 STATEMENTS OF COMPLIANCE

The Report by Those Charged with Governance is prepared in compliance 
with the Tanzania Financial Reporting Standard No. 1 (TFRS No. 1) as 
issued by the National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) and 
became effective from 1 January 2021. The Authority’s financial statements 
have been prepared in compliance with the International Public Sector 
Accounting Standards (IPSASs) as issued by the International Public Sector 
Accounting Standards Board (IPSASB). 
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2.0      THE REPORT BY THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

2.23.	 APPROVAL 

The Report by Those Charged with Governance has been approved and 
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

Signature….................................. Signature…..................................

Name: Prof. Ahmed M. Ame Name: CPA Habibu J.S. Suluo

Title: Board Chairman Title:  Director General

Date:  25/03/2024 Date:  25/03/2024
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3.0	 STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

Pursuant to Section 37 (1) of the Land Transport Regulatory Authority Act, 
Cap. 413, the Authority is required to keep proper books of account and 
maintain proper records of its operations. Those Charged with Governance 
(TCWG) accept the responsibility for the maintenance of accounting 
records, which may be relied upon in the preparation of the financial 
statements. TCWG understand that the Authority’s system of internal 
control is effective to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that 
the transactions recorded in the books of account, which were used to 
prepare these financial statements, are free from material misstatement. 

Furthermore, TCWG accept responsibility for the financial statements, 
which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported 
by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, in conformity with 
the International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), the Public 
Finance Act, Cap. 348, NBAA’s Technical Pronouncements and in the 
manner required by the Land Transport Regulatory Authority Act, Cap. 
413. In addition, TCWG are of the opinion that the financial statements 
give a true and fair view of the Authority’s state of the financial affairs and 
of its operating results for the year ended 30 June 2023. 

Nothing has come to the attention of TCWG to indicate that the Government 
of the United Republic of Tanzania shall wind up the operations of the 
Authority, thus, not to remain a going concern for at least the next twelve 
months from the date of this statement.

This Statement was approved and authorized for issue by the Board of 
Directors and signed on its behalf by:

Signature….................................. Signature…..................................

Name: Prof. Ahmed M. Ame Name: CPA Habibu J.S. Suluo

Title: Board Chairman Title:Director General

Date:  25/03/2024 Date:  25/03/2024
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4.0 	 DECLARATION OF THE MANAGER OF FINANCE AND ACCOUNTS 

The Auditors and Accountants (Registration) Act. No. 33 of 1972, as 
amended by Act No. 2 of 1995, requires financial statements to be 
accompanied with a declaration issued by the Head of Finance and 
Accounting responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the 
entity concerned. 

It is the duty of a Professional Accountant to assist the Board of Directors 
and Management to discharge the responsibility of preparing financial 
statements showing true and fair view of the Authority’s position and 
performance in accordance with applicable International Accounting 
Standards and statutory financial reporting requirements. Full legal 
responsibility for the preparation of financial statements rests with the 
Board of Directors under the Statement of Directors Responsibility on the 
above page. 

I, CPA Samuel D. Keenja, being the Manager of Finance and Accounts of 
LATRA, hereby acknowledge my responsibility of ensuring that financial 
statements for the year ended 30 June 2023 have been prepared 
in compliance with applicable accounting standards and statutory 
requirements. 

I thus confirm that the financial statements give a true and fair view position 
of LATRA as on that date and that they have been prepared based on 
properly maintained financial records.

Signature: ________________

Signed by: CPA Samuel D. Keenja

Position: Manager of Finance and Accounts

NBAA Membership No.: ACPA 1866

Date:   25/03/2024
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.1.   STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

ASSETS 2022/23 2021/22
Current Asset Note TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 4,233,318 5,260,527

Inventories 16 595,793 391,750

Other Financial Assets 17 267,295 148,395

Prepayments 18 340,391 667,079

Receivables 19a 7,461,519 3,760,025

Total Current Asset 12,898,316 10,227,776

Non-Current Asset Held for Sale 42 232,982 -

Non-Current Asset
Intangible Assets 21 191,289 154,626

Property, Plant and Equipment 20 13,265,138 14,266,237

Total Non-Current Asset 13,456,427 14,420,862
TOTAL ASSETS 26,587,725 24,648,638

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 19b 3,137,515 2,536,358

Payables and Accruals 24a 3,452,280 2,813,056

Total Current Liabilities 6,589,795 5,349,414
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,589,795 5,349,414
NET ASSETS 19,997,930 19,299,224

NET ASSETS/EQUITY
Capital Contributed by:

Capital Fund 44 17,047,108 17,047,108

Accumulated Surplus 2,950,822 2,252,116

TOTAL NET ASSETS/EQUITY 19,997,930 19,299,224

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the 
Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

Signature….................................. Signature…..................................
Name: Prof. Ahmed M. Ame Name: CPA Habibu J.S. Suluo
Title: Board Chairman Title:Director General
Date:  25/03/2024 Date:  25/03/2024
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5.2 	 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

2022/23 2021/22

REVENUE Notes TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000) 

Revenue from Non-Exchange 
Transaction

6 34,250,869 28,119,960

Revenue from Exchange Transaction 7 545,924 704,651

TOTAL REVENUE 34,796,793 28,824,611

EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS

Expenses

Wages, Salaries and Employee 
Benefits

9 11,583,469 8,749,414

Social Benefits 10 2,229,236 1,596,230

Supplies and Consumables used 11 9,492,563 7,505,246

Bank charges and Commissions 12 15,601 15,414

Maintenance Expenses 13 1,764,120 663,867

Amortization of Intangible Assets 21 70,666 47,440

Board Remuneration and other 
expenses

27a 144,636 173,872

Depreciation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment

20 1,467,333 1,778,790

Impairment of PPE 20 - 104,190

Expected Credit Loss from 
Receivables and Bank Balances

37 386,766 417,725

Total Expenses 27,154,390 21,052,188

Transfer

Contribution and other Transfer 14 6,721,658 6,022,488

Total Transfer 6,721,658 6,022,488

TOTAL EXPENSES AND 
TRANSFERS

33,876,049 27,074,676

Surplus 920,744 1,749,935
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5.3 	 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Capital Fund Accumulated 
Surplus Total

TZS ‘000 TZS ‘000 TZS ‘000

At 01 July 2022 17,047,108 2,252,116 19,299,224

Impact of IPSAS 41 - (220,401) (220,401)

Writing off the Vehicle 
Disposal Last Year

- (1,637) (1,637)

Restated opening balance 17,047,108 2,030,078 19,077,186

Surplus - 920,744 920,744

At 30 June 2023 17,047,108 2,950,822 19,997,930

As at 01 July 2021 17,047,108 502,181 17,549,289

Surplus 1,749,935 1,749,935

At 30 June 2022 17,047,108 2,252,116 19,299,224

During the year, the Authority recorded a surplus of TZS 0.92 billion 
(2021/22: TZS 1.75 billion). The Net Assets of the Authority as of 30 
June 2023 stood at TZS 20.00 billion (2021/22: TZS 19.30 billion).
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5.4   CASH FLOWS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES

NOTES 30/06/2023 30/06/2022

RECEIPTS TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000) 

Fines, penalties and Forfeits 40 13,439,704 10,557,535
Road Transport Fees and Levies 19c 17,574,369 17,182,912
Receipts from Exchange Transactions 19d 481,944 614,190
Other Receipts 19e 534,132 171,910
Total Receipts 32,030,149 28,526,547

PAYMENTS
Social benefits 10 2,229,236 1,596,230
Bank charges and Commissions 12 15,601 15,414
Maintenance Expenses 13 1,764,120 663,867
Grants, Subsidies and other Transfer 
Payments

14 6,721,658 6,022,488

Board Remuneration and other 
expenses

27a 144,636 173,872

Supplies and Consumables Used 24b 8,647,065 7,097,899
Wages, Salaries and Employee 
Benefits

24c 11,465,327 8,813,939

Other payments 39 1,299,000 1,099,295
Total Payments 32,286,643 25,483,004

NET CASH FLOW FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

37 (256,494) 3,043,543

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES
Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property and 
Equipment

45 (683,652) (2,278,514)

Acquisition of Intangibles 21 (107,329) (93,118)
Sale of Government Assets 8 22,390 -
Total Investing Activities (768,591) (2,371,632)
NET CASH FLOW USED IN 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(768,591) (2,371,632)

Net Increase (1,025,085) 671,911
Cash and cash equivalent at 
beginning of period

5,260,527 4,588,616

Cash and cash equivalent at end of 
period

4,235,442 5,260,527

Provision for Expected Credit Loss (2,124) 0
Cash and cash equivalent at end of 
period

15 4,233,318 5,260,527

The amount of cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period of TZS 4.23 
billion did not include the expected credit losses on bank balances of TZS 2.12 
million. Hence, the amount differs with that reported on the Statement of Financial 
Position by that amount.
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.	 ESTABLISHMENT AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

1.1   Establishment

Land Transport Regulatory Authority (LATRA) was established by the Land 
Transport Regulatory Authority Act, Cap. 413 as a regulatory body in 
relation to the land transport sectors and came into operation effective 
from 29 April 2019 as per Government Notice No.358 published on 26 
August 2019.

The current address of the Head Office of the Authority is:

Director General,
Land Transport Regulatory Authority,
Head Office, 
60 Lusinde Street,
P. O. Box 1742,
41104 Tambukareli,

DODOMA, TANZANIA.

1.2	 Principal Activities

The Authority sectorial scope covers regulatory functions under road 
transport, rail transport, cable and underground transport sectors. The 
principal activities of the Authority are provided under section 5 and 6 of 
the Land Transport Regulatory Authority Act, Cap. 413.

2.	 AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Authority’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023 were 
approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors during its 10th 
Special Board Meeting held on 21 December 2023.

3.	 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Authority’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with and comply with the International Public Sector Accounting Standards 
(IPSAS) as issued by the International Public Sector Accounting Standards 
Board (IPSASB). The Report by Those Charged with Governance (TCWG) 
has been prepared in line with the requirements of the Tanzania Financial 
Reporting Standard (TFRS) No. 1 as issued by the National Board of 
Accountants and Auditors (NBAA).



94 2022/23
Annual Report

5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis. The 
cash flows statement is prepared using the direct method. The financial 
statements are prepared on an IPSAS accrual basis of accounting.

4.1.	 REPORTING PERIOD

The reporting period for these financial statements is the financial year of 
the Authority which runs from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023.

4.2.	 ADOPTION OF IPSAS 41 – FINANCIAL INSTUMENTS

The Authority decided to adopt the International Public Sector Accounting 
Standards (IPSAS) 41 in the current financial year, before it becomes 
compulsory in the next financial year, 2024. The adoption enables the 
Authority to take advantage of the available expertise. The IPSAS 41, 
Financial Instruments, was issued in August 2018 by the International 
Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (IPSASB) and is effective from 1 
January 2023. The adoption of IPSAS 41 resulted into increase in expected 
credit losses for trade receivables and cash and bank balances.

The Authority shall disclose the nature and extent of risks arising from 
Financial Instruments, provide a qualitative and quantitative analysis of 
the entity’s exposure to various risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk, 
and market risk. The Authority shall also disclose information about 
the terms and conditions of significant financial instruments, including 
any contractual obligations. In addition, the Authority shall disclose the 
accounting policies and methodologies used to assess impairment, as 
well as any impairment losses recognized during the reporting period. On 
derecognition, the Authority shall provide information about the criteria 
for derecognition of financial assets and liabilities and any significant 
derecognition events during the period. Comparative information for 
the previous period shall be provided to enhance the understanding of 
changes in financial instruments over time.
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.3.	 SUSTAINABILITY STANDARDS IFRS S1 AND S2 

The International Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB), established by the 
IFRS Foundation (IFRS), issued a global baseline of disclosure standards to 
facilitate consistent and comparable disclosures on risks and opportunities 
related to sustainability and climate, referred to as IFRS S1 and IFRS S2, 
respectively. The standards are to be adopted on or after January 1, 
2024. Transitional reliefs, such as limiting reporting in the first year to 
climate-related matters, are encouraged. Hence, LATRA decided to adopt 
early the standard. The standard overview is provided below while the 
limiting reporting are found under section 12.4 (Environmental Social and 
Governance Issues).

Standards Overview:

IFRS S1 facilitates disclosures in general-purpose financial reports 
about sustainability risks and opportunities, while IFRS S2 encourages 
disclosure of how entities manage negative effects of climate change and 
opportunities related to positive effects. Both standards focus on short, 
medium, and long-term impacts on corporate value and decisions.

Disclosures Framework:

Disclosures under IFRS S1 and S2 cover governance, strategy, risk 
management, and metrics/targets. While both standards share similarities, 
S2 encourages additional disclosures on cross-industry and industry-based 
metrics, as well as qualitative and quantitative targets and metrics set by 
the entity or required by law.

Conceptual Foundations for Reporting:

Companies are urged to consider fair presentation, materiality, and the 
disclosure of connected information. Direct and indirect dependencies, 
along with stakeholder, societal, and natural resource interactions 
throughout value chains, should be assessed. 

This approach helps entities to evaluate how these interactions impact 
overall corporate value from an owner-focused perspective.
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IFRS S1 AND S2 DISCLOSURES IN THE REPORT

(a) Environmental Management Initiatives

In alignment with IFRS S1, LATRA discloses its efforts in developing 
Environmental Guidelines to review and manage environmental aspects 
of railway services. The Authority conducted inspections, expressing 
satisfaction with measures taken by railway undertakings to preserve the 
environment.

(b) Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) Strategy

LATRA aligns with IFRS S1 by formulating an ESG strategy, including an ESG 
Matrix, to evaluate the performance of the Tanzania Railways Corporation 
(TRC). This strategy aims to create higher value for stakeholders and 
society, emphasizing the entity’s commitment to sustainable development.

(c) Partnership for Renewable Energy

LATRA’s collaboration with the German Cooperation Agency (GIZ) to 
explore renewable energy in urban transport and the Standard Gauge 
Rail (SGR) aligns with IFRS S1 by disclosing initiatives to manage climate-
related risks and opportunities.

(d) Monitoring and Inspections on Waste Management

LATRA’s monitoring inspections on waste management in railway and road 
operations demonstrate its commitment to sustainability, aligning with 
IFRS S1’s call for entity-specific information on how sustainability risks and 
opportunities impact corporate value.

(e) Regulator’s Environmental Guidelines

Guided by Section 5 (g) of the LATRA Act, LATRA discloses comprehensive 
Regulator’s Environmental Guidelines, aligning with IFRS S1’s emphasis 
on disclosing information about sustainability risks and opportunities in 
general-purpose financial reports.

(f) Railway Environmental Assessment and Management

In line with IFRS S2, LATRA integrates ESG into all business operations with 
TRC. The ESG report for 2022/23 covers energy consumption, emissions, 
waste disposal, water conservation, and community charity, providing 
transparency on TRC’s environmental performance and how it manages 
potential negative effects of climate change.
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IFRS S1 AND S2 DISCLOSURES IN THE REPORT (Continued)

(g) Compliance with Environmental Metrics

LATRA provides a detailed table outlining the implementation status of 
TRC’s ESG metrics for the financial year 2022/23, reflecting its commitment 
to IFRS S2’s encouragement of disclosures on how an entity manages 
potential negative effects of climate change.

(h) Future Initiatives and Reporting

LATRA discloses ongoing and planned initiatives, including the review of 
energy usage policies, stakeholder engagement, reporting mechanisms, 
and environmental training, aligning with IFRS S2’s focus on how risks and 
opportunities will affect overall corporate value and influence decisions.

(i) Health and Safety Measures

LATRA outlines specific health and safety measures for transportation 
facilities, emphasizing their importance in managing potential negative 
effects of climate change and promoting sustainable development, as 
encouraged by IFRS S2.

(j) Prevention of Environmental Contamination

LATRA emphasizes measures to prevent pollution and contamination 
during transportation, aligning with IFRS S2’s encouragement of disclosures 
on how an entity manages potential negative effects of climate change, 
including physical risks.

(k) Disclosure of Implementation Status

LATRA provides a detailed table outlining the implementation status of 
each ESG metric for TRC, reflecting transparency and accountability in 
managing potential negative effects of climate change, as encouraged by 
IFRS S2.

(l) Future Disclosures

LATRA discloses its ongoing efforts to include public statements on ESG 
in TRC’s financial statement for FY 2022/23 and to enhance amenities 
for people with special needs in railway stations, aligning with IFRS S2’s 
encouragement of entity-specific information about how these risks and 
opportunities will affect overall corporate value and influence decisions.
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.4.	 NEW STANDARDS ON ISSUE NOT YET ADOPTED BY THE 
AUTHORITY

There were seven (7) new Standards issued by the International Public 
Sector Accounting Standards Board (IPSASB) but, up to the date when 
the Authority’s financial statements were authorised for issue, the new 
standards were not effective for implementation and the Authority did not 
opt for early adoption. The new Standards are:

a)	 IPSAS 43 – Leases, which was issued in January 2022 and become 
effective on or after 1 January 2025. The standard introduces a right-of-
use model that replaces the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 
model in IPSAS 13, Leases. For lessors, IPSAS 43 substantially carries 
forward the risks and rewards incidental to ownership model in IPSAS 
13.

b)	 IPSAS 44 - Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued 
operations, which was issued in May 2022 and become effective on 
or after 1 January 2025 specifies the accounting for assets held for 
sale and the presentation and disclosure of discontinued operations. 
It requires assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale 
to be:

•	 Measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs 
to sell and depreciation on such assets to cease; and

•	 Presented separately in the statement of financial position and 
the results of discontinued operations to be presented separately 
in the statement of financial performance.

c)	 IPSAS 45 - Property, Plant, and Equipment, which was issued in 
May 2023 and become effective on or after 1 January 2025. IPSAS 45 
replaces IPSAS 17, Property, Plant, and Equipment by adding current 
operational value as a measurement basis in the updated current value 
model for assets within its scope, identifying the characteristics of 
heritage and infrastructure assets, and adding new guidance on how 
these important types of public sector assets should be recognized 
and measured. 

d)	 IPSAS 46 - Measurement, which was issued in May 2023 and become 
effective on or after 1 January 2025. IPSAS 46 is a new standard which 
brings measurement guidance together in a single standard.
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.4.	 NEW STANDARDS ON ISSUE NOT YET ADOPTED BY THE 
AUTHORITY (CONTINUED)

e)	 IPSAS 47 - Revenue, which was issued in May 2023 and become 
effective on or after 1 January 2026. This new Standard provides 
focused guidance to help entities apply the principles to account for 
public sector revenue transactions.

f)	 IPSAS 48 – Transfer Expenses, which was issued in May 2023 and 
become effective on or after 1 January 2026. This new Standard fills 
a significant gap in the IPSASB’s literature and provides guidance to 
help entities account for public sector transfer expense transactions.

g)	 IPSAS 49 – Retirement Benefit Plans, which was issued in November 
2023 and become effective on or after 1 January 2026. IPSAS 49 
guides the accounting and reporting by a retirement benefit plan from 
the perspective of the plan itself.

5.	 THE OTHER APPLIED ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The other accounting policies and estimates outlined below have been 
consistently applied by the Authority to all the presented years.

5.1	 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling 
rate of exchange on the date of the transaction. They are translated 
into Tanzanian Shillings at the exchange rate ruling at the dates of the 
transactions. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency 
are reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by 
applying the exchange rate on that date.

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from 
the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at which they were 
initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or expenses 
in the period in which they arise.
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5.2	 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from exchange transactions

Exchange transactions are transactions in which the Authority receives 
assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives 
approximately equal value primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, 
or use of its assets to another entity in exchange.

The Authority recognizes revenue from sales of publications, miscellaneous 
receipts, and interest from bank accounts when transactions occur, or 
revenue receivable can be measured reliably. 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

i)	 Fees and fines

The Authority recognizes revenues from fees and fines when the event 
occurs, and the asset recognition criteria are met. Other non-exchange 
revenues are recognized when it is probable that the future economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the 
entity and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

ii)	 Transfers from other government entities

Revenue from non-exchange transactions with other government entities 
is measured at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset 
(cash, goods, services and property), if the transfer is free from conditions, 
and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential related 
to the asset will flow to the Authority and can be measured reliably. To 
the extent that there is a related condition attached that would give rise 
to a liability to repay the amount, a grant liability is recognized instead of 
revenue.

iii)	 Other transfers

Other transfers include penalties, licenses, gifts and donations (including 
goods-in-kind). These are recognized when it is probable that the future 
economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow 
to the entity; and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

iv)	 Service Providers Levy
Service Providers Levy are recognized when the asset recognition criteria 
are met.
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5.3   PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
Recognition
The Authority’s property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. The cost includes expenditure that is 
directly attributable to the acquisition of items of property and equipment.

Items of property and equipment shall be recognized as assets if, and 
only if, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the items will flow to the Authority and the cost or fair 
value of the item can be measured reliably.

Repairs and maintenance of property and equipment are recognized 
in the statement of financial performance during the financial period in 
which they are incurred. 

The Authority stop to recognize items of property and equipment upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits or service potential is 
expected from its continuing use. 

The gain or loss arising on de-recognition of an item of property and 
equipment is included in the statement of financial performance, unless 
where IPSASs requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback arrangement.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Depreciation

Land is not depreciated; however, one of the fundamental principles of 
the Land Policy that has been incorporated in the Land Act, 1999 is that 
when assessing compensation of land, one of the factors to consider is 
the market value of the land or a real property.

Depreciation on property and equipment is charged on a straight-line 
basis over the useful life of the items of the property and equipment. 
Depreciation is charged at the rates calculated to allocate the cost of item 
less any estimated residual value over its 
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Table of Useful Life (Years)
Description of Asset Category Useful Life (Years)

Buildings 50

Generators & Machinery 15

Motor Vehicles 05

Office Equipment 05

Computers and Accessories 04

Furniture and Fittings 05

Residential Furniture and Equipment 05

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed 
at the end of each reporting period and adjusted prospectively, where 
appropriate. In addition, the Authority stops charging depreciation on an 
asset when carrying amount equals its residual value.

5.4   INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Recognition

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. 
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is 
their fair value at the date of the exchange. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses. 

Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development 
costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit 
in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 

The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite. 
Intangible assets with a finite useful life are assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.  

Amortization 

The intangible asset with a finite life is amortized over its useful life as 
follows:

Description of Intangible Asset Category Useful Life (Years)

Application software 03
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5.4   INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible 
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are 
considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, 
and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization 
expense on an intangible asset with a finite life is recognized in the 
statement of financial performance as the expense category that is 
consistent with the nature of the intangible asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are 
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of 
financial performance when an intangible asset is de-recognized.

5.5   IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recovered. 

An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of the assets 
exceeds its recoverable service amount. An asset’s recoverable service 
amount is the higher of the non-cash generating asset’s fair value less 
costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the Authority 
has adopted the restoration cost approach as it has determined this to be 
appropriate because of the nature of the assets. Under this approach, the 
present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined 
by subtracting the estimated restoration cost of the asset from the current 
cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before 
impairment. 

In determining fair value less costs to sell, the price of the assets in a binding 
arrangement in an arm’s-length transaction, adjusted for incremental costs 
that would be directly attributed to the disposal of the asset is used. If 
there is no binding agreement, but the asset is traded on an active market, 
fair value less cost to sell is the asset’s market price less cost of disposal. 
If there is no binding sale agreement or active market for an asset, the 
Authority determines fair value less cost to sell on the basis of the best 
available information.
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5.4   IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of financial performance 
in the period in which they are incurred. An assessment is made at each 
reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously 
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. 
If such indication exists, the Authority estimates the asset’s recoverable 
amount.  A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there 
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s 
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.

The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not 
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss 
been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized 
in the statement of financial performance unless the asset is carried at a 
revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation 
increase.

5.5	 LEASES

(i)	 The Authority as a Lessee

Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks 
and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Authority. 
Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the 
statement of financial performance on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term.

(ii)	 The Authority as a Lessor

Leases in which the Authority does not transfer substantially all the risks 
and benefits of ownership of an asset are classified as operating 
leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are 
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over 
the lease term.

Rent received from an operating lease is recognized as income on a 
straight- line basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are recognized as 
revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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5.6  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets

2023 – IPSAS 41

The IPSAS 41 classifies financial assets into three categories: amortized 
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), and fair 
value through profit and loss (FVPL) in our case, surplus or deficit.

The Authority recognizes financial assets initially at fair value, and 
subsequent measurement depends on their classification. Amortized cost 
assets are measured using the effective interest method, while FVOCI 
assets recognize fair value changes in other comprehensive income, with 
interest and impairment in the surplus or deficit. FVPL assets recognize 
fair value changes in the surplus or deficit. Derecognition occurs when 
contractual rights expire, or the asset is transferred. Impairment is assessed 
based on expected credit losses for assets measured at amortized cost 
or FVOCI, and a simplified approach is available for certain receivables. 
Hedge accounting is allowed under specific criteria. Disclosures cover 
accounting policies, risk nature and extent, fair value details, credit quality, 
and other relevant information.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their 
classification.

Amortised cost

Loans and receivables are financial assets that fall under the category of 
amortized cost. The Authority’s amortised cost includes cash and bank 
balances and trade and other receivables.

These financial assets meet both of the following conditions:

(a)	 Contractual Cash Flows: The financial asset is held to collect contractual 
cash flows.

(b)	 Solely Payments of Principal and Interest: The contractual terms of 
the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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5.6  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Initially loans and receivables are recognized at fair value plus any directly 
attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, loans and receivables are 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, unless 
the asset is designated at fair value through profit or loss (surplus/deficit). 
For loans and receivables measured at amortized cost, entities assess the 
asset for impairment based on expected credit losses.

A financial asset (such as a loan or receivable) is derecognized when 
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, 
or when the financial asset is transferred, and the transfer qualifies for 
derecognition.

Disclosures for loans and receivables should include information about 
accounting policies, risk management, and impairment. Entities should 
provide information about the carrying amount of loans and receivables, 
any impairment losses recognized, and any significant changes in the risk 
characteristics of these assets.

The Authority derecognized a financial asset when the contractual rights 
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial asset 
is transferred, and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement financial liabilities within the scope of 
IPSAS 41 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through surplus or 
deficit, or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Authority determines 
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case 
of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Authority’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and 
provisions

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their 
classification: 

•	 Financial liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit; 

•	 Financial liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit include 
financial liabilities held for trading; and 

•	 Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value 
through surplus or deficit. 
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5.6  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in surplus or 
deficit, that is, in the statement of financial performance.

De-recognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability 
is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated 
as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized 
in surplus or deficit, that is, the statement of financial performance.

Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is 
reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts, and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2022 IPSAS 29

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair 
value through surplus or deficit, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity 
investments or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The 
Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial 
recognition.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within 
a time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace 
(regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that 
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Authority’s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits and 
trade and other receivables.
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5.6  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Subsequent measurement.
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their 
classification.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After 
initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured 
at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. 
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
effective interest rate. Losses arising from impairment are recognized in 
the surplus or deficit.

Impairment of financial assets 

The Authority assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective 
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets are impaired. 
A financial asset or a group of financial assets are deemed to be impaired 
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of 
one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the 
asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial 
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include 
the following indicators:

•	 Debtors or a group of debtors are experiencing significant financial 
difficulty

•	 Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments.

•	 The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial 
reorganization.

•	 Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future 
cash flows (e.g., changes in arrears or economic conditions that 
correlate with defaults).
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5.6  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

2022 IPSAS 29

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Authority first assesses 
whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial 
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets 
that are not individually significant. If the Authority determines that no 
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed 
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group 
of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively 
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for 
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, 
recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, 
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
(excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). 
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at 
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable 
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the 
current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance 
account and the amount of the loss is recognized in surplus or deficit. 
Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is 
no realistic prospect of future recovery, and all collateral has been realized 
or transferred to the Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the 
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized 
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance 
account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other 
income in surplus or deficit.

Financial liabilities Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial 
liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, 
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial 
liabilities at initial recognition.
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5.6  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of 
loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Authority’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification. 
Financial liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit.

5.7	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, 
deposits on call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 
three (3) months or less, which are readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. For the 
purposes of Statement of Cash flows, cash is comprised of cash on hand 
and deposits held at call with banks. Cash equivalents are short term 
deposits with original maturities of three (3) months or less. 

Cash and cash equivalents are stated in the statement of financial position 
at face value. Cash and cash equivalents referred to in the statement of 
cash flows comprise cash on hand, cash at Bank, non-restricted current 
accounts with Bank of Tanzania, deposits held at call with banks with an 
original maturity of three months or less and investments with maturity 
periods of three months or less in money market instruments.

5.8	 INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of stationery and other consumables. Inventory is 
measured at cost upon initial recognition. The cost of the inventory is its 
fair value at the date of acquisition.  After initial recognition, inventory is 
measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost. Inventories are 
recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in 
the ordinary course of operations of the Authority.

Cost is determined on Weighted Average basis. Provision for obsolete 
inventories is made on specific inventory items considered obsolete. 
Current replacement cost is the cost the entity would incur to acquire the 
asset on the reporting date.
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5.9   PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognized when the Authority has a present obligation 
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential 
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Authority expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, 
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the 
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision 
is presented in the statement of financial performance net of any 
reimbursement.

Provisions are recognized when the Authority has a present obligation 
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential 
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Authority expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, 
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the 
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision 
is presented in the Statement of Financial Performance net of any 
reimbursement.

5.10	 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Authority does not recognize a contingent liability during the year 
ended 30 June 2023 but discloses details of any contingencies in the 
notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

5.11	 CONTINGENT ASSETS
The Authority does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details 
of a possible asset whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or 
non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the Authority in the notes to the financial statements.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments 
are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become 
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential 
will arise, and the asset’s value can be measured reliably, the asset and the 
related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period 
in which the change occurs.
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5.12	 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Authority assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset 
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of 
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective 
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred 
after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that 
loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial 
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a 
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or 
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will 
enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organization and observable data 
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash 
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate 
with defaults.

5.13	 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods or services that have 
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts 
payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one 
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). 
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.  Trade payables are 
recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method.

5.14	 RELATED PARTIES

The Authority regards a related party as a person or an entity with the 
ability to exert control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant 
influence over the Authority, or vice versa. Members of key management 
are regarded as related parties and comprise the Board Members and 
Management employees. Related party transactions are disclosed under 
Note 27.

5.15	 BUDGET INFORMATION

The annual budget is prepared on the cash basis, that is, all planned costs 
and income are presented in a single statement to determine the needs 
of the Authority. Adjustment for accrued amounts have been shown the 
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. 
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5.15	 BUDGET INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Explanatory comments are provided under Note 35 to the annual financial 
statements; first, the reasons for overall growth or decline in the budget, 
followed by details of overspending or under spending online items.

5.16	 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Authority’s financial statements requires 
estimates and assumptions of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities. 
Management judgments is needed in establishing the assumptions and 
resulting estimates.

Estimates and Judgments

In the process of applying the Authority’s accounting policies, Management 
has made judgments, which have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on 
historical experience and other factors, including experience of future 
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of 
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk 
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Authority 
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the 
financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and 
assumptions about future developments may change due to circumstances 
arising beyond the control of the Authority. Such changes are reflected in 
the assumptions when they occur. 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of 
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk 
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
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5.16	 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

i)	 Useful Lives and Residual Values

Critical estimates are made by the management in determining depreciation 
rates for property and equipment and amortization rate of intangibles. The 
rates used are set out in the accounting policies section of these financial 
statements under Note 5.3 and Note 5.4 respectively.

ii)	 Impairment of financial assets

Estimates are required to be made of what would be the impact of a loss 
event that has occurred after the initial recognition of a financial asset and 
which would affect the estimated future cash flows. The Authority assessed, 
at the reporting date, whether a financial asset or group of financial assets 
have been impaired.  Only if there is objective evidence of impairment or 
a loss event, then the financial asset is deemed to be impaired. 

iii)	 Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating 
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value 
less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to sell 
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an 
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less 
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is 
based on a discounted cash flow model. 

iv)	 Fair value of financial instruments
Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in 
the statement of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, 
they are determined using valuation techniques including the discounted 
cash flows model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable 
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of 
judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgments include 
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair 
value of financial instruments. 
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5.17	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
Financial risk factors

The Authority’s activities potentially expose it to a variety of financial risks, 
including credit risk and the effects of the changes in foreign currency 
exchange rates. The Authority’s overall risk management program takes 
account of the unpredictability of foreign exchange rate trends and seeks 
to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

(a)	 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of changes in market prices, such as foreign-exchange 
rates and interest rates, affecting the Authority’s income or the value of 
its financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, 
while optimizing the return on the risk. This risk includes the following:

(b)		  Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
LATRA does not have long-term deposits or borrowings therefore surplus 
and deficit or the other comprehensive income and operating cash flows 
are not highly affected by changes in market interest rates.

(c)	 Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits and outstanding 
receivables. The Authority mitigates risks on cash and cash equivalents by 
ensuring that all cash collections are transferred to the Authorities bank 
account at the central bank (The Bank of Tanzania) on weekly bases. Cash 
transfers to expenditure account in commercial bank is done in amounts 
for immediate use in periods not exceeding one month.

Management of risk associated with trade and other receivables includes 
use electronic means of collections where revenue is collected as earned, 
prompt billing and close follow up.
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5.17	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
The amount that represents the Authority’s exposure to credit risk at 30 
June 2023 is made up as follows:

Up to 1 
month Total

2022/23 TZS ‘000’ TZS ‘000’
Cash and equivalents 4,235,442 4,235,442
Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions 7,461,478 7,461,478

2021/22
Cash and equivalents 5,260,527 5,260,527
Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions 3,760,027 3,760,027

Below is the Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk:

30.06.2023 30.06.2022
TZS’000’ TZS’000’

Cash & Cash Equivalents 4,235,442 5,260,527

Accounts receivable 7,461,478 3,760,027

11,696,920 9,020,554

No collateral is held for any of the above assets and no receivables have 
had their terms renegotiated. The Authority’s accounts receivable that are 
not impaired are mostly due from employees who are still working with the 
Authority. 

(d)	Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of the Authority not being able to meet its obligations 
as they fall due. The Authority’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to 
ensure that sufficient liquidity is available to meet its liabilities when due, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Authority’s 
reputation.

The Authority ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet 
expected operating expenses through the use of cash flow forecasts. On 
average, receivables are settled within 30 days after the due date, and 
payables are settled within 30 days of invoice. Management monitors 
budgets of the Authority’s liquidity reserve on the basis of expected cash 
flows.
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5.17	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(e)	 Liquidity Risk Management

The primary objective of managing the Authority’s capital is to ensure 
that there is sufficient cash available to support the Authority’s funding 
requirements, including capital expenditure, to ensure that the Authority 
remains financially sound. The Authority is Government owned entity; it 
ensures that expenditures are always as per the approved budget in order 
to ensure that is always in operations.

(f)	 Categorization of Financial Instruments

Carrying Value Loans and 
receivable Total

Financial Assets TZS ‘000’ TZS ‘000’ TZS ‘000’
30-Jun-23
Cash and equivalents 4,235,442 4,235,442 4,235,442
Receivables 7,461,478 7,461,478 7,461,478

11,696,920 11,696,920 11,696,920
30-Jun-22
Cash and 5,260,527 5,260,527 5,260,527
Receivables 3,760,027 3,760,027 3,760,027

9,020,554 9,020,554 9,020,554

Carrying Value At amortized 
cost Total

Financial Liabilities TZS ‘000’ TZS ‘000’ TZS ‘000’
30-Jun-23
Current Liabilities- 6,589,796 6,589,796 6,589,796

6,589,796 6,589,796 6,589,796
30-Jun-22
Current Liabilities 5,349,414 5,349,414 5,349,414

5,349,414 5,349,414 5,349,414

6.   REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTION

2022/23 2021/22
(a) Main Source TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000)
Service Levy 1,177,586 479,941
Road Transport Licenses 19,269,429 17,082,484

20,447,015 17,562,425
(b) Other Income

2022/23 2021/22
TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000)

Fines and Penalties – Road Transport 13,454,632 10,557,535
Non-Monetary Revenue – Capital 345,335 -
*Reversal of provision for impairment of Bank Balances 3,887 -

13,803,854 10,557,535
Total 34,250,869 28,119,960
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6.	 REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTION  (CONTINUED)
During the year ended 30 June 2023, TZS 34.25 billion was earned as 
non-exchange transactions (2021/22: TZS 28.12 billion). This category 
comprises of service providers levy, road transport licenses and other 
income. The Other Income consists of fines/penalties and Non-Monetary 
Revenue. The non monetary revenue contains assets from TASAC (TZS 
39.59 million) and written off long outstanding payables and accrued 
expenses (more than 5 years), amounting to TZS 110.06 million and TZS 
195.69 million respectively . The Road transport licences are the major 
source of revenue for LATRA while service levies are mainly provisions 
of expected collections from TRC and UDART. The fines and penalties 
originate mainly from fines charged to defaulters of licensing conditions.

The notable increase in fines and penalties is attributed to strategic 
roadside inspections and enhanced monitoring activities.

* Movement of Expected credit Loss from Bank Balances during the year 
are shown on Note 20b.

7.    REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

2022/23   2021/22
TZS (‘000)   TZS (‘000) 

 

Receipt from sales of Publications 125,842   176,490

Vehicle tracking devices 143,390 -

Conference fee 56,190 -

Miscellaneous Receipts 78,976   485,602

Driver Certification Fees 75,150   -

Staff Loan Service Charges 66,376   42,559

TOTAL 545,924   704,651

An exchange transaction is one in which entity receives assets or services 
or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal 
value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the 
other party in exchange. During the year TZS 545.92 million (2021/22: TZS 
704.65 million) was recorded as revenues from exchange transactions.

8.    RECEIPT FROM SALE OF GOVERNMENT ASSETS

2022/23 2021/22

TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000)

Sale of Government Assets 22,390 -
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8.	 RECEIPT FROM SALE OF GOVERNMENT ASSETS  (CONTINUED)

During the year the Authority sold two Vehicles for TZS 24.03 million 
(2021/22: NIL)  (STK 4376 at TZS 1.64 million and STL 4703 at TZS 22.39 
million). However, the proceeds from the sale of STK 4376 were received 
in the year 2021/22, although the vehicle wasn’t sold until 2022/2023, 
when the buyer took possession of the vehicle.

9.    WAGES, SALARIES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

2022/23 2021/22
TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000) 

Civil Servants 7,805,946 5,979,603
Electricity Allowance 191,352 170,739
Extra-Duty 39,174 49,299
Housing allowance 1,500,254 1,183,908
Outfit allowance 8,500 800
Passages Allowances 750,932 520,861
Risk Allowance 296,460 260,759
Transport Allowance 926,851 583,445

Furniture Allowance 64,000 -
11,583,469 8,749,414

The above expenses relate to employee wages, and other benefits. 
The expenses for the financial year 2022/23 stood at TZS 11.58 billion 
(2021/22: TZS 8.75 billion).

10.	 SOCIAL BENEFITS

2022/23 2021/22

TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000) 

Health Costs 42,861 43,555

Retirement benefits 215,062 -

Statutory Contributions 1,971,313 1,552,675

2,229,236 1,596,230

The health costs refer to staff medical expenses paid directly to hospitals for 
treatments not covered by NHIF. The statutory contributions include payment 
to NHIF, PSSSF, and WCF. While retirement benefit represents balance of 
the Employee Benefit Scheme which was established by SUMATRA. A total 
of TZS 2.23 billion was incurred in social benefits during the year 2022/23. 
(2021/22: TZS 1.60 billion).
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

11.	 SUPPLIES AND CONSUMABLES USED

  2022/23   2021/22
  TZS (‘000)   TZS (‘000) 
*Advertising and Publication 452,164   183,781
Air Travel Tickets 296,048   285,855
Audit Fees 150,466   120,000
Books, Reference and Periodicals 20,029   31,541
Burial Expenses 75,369   140,888
Computer Software -   50,118
Computer Supplies and Accessories 80,520   24,980
Conference Facilities 108,742   80,395
consultancy fees 104,544   121,338
Courier Services 63,341   36,288
Diesel 518,936   354,093
Electricity 135,514   124,382
Exhibition, Festivals and Celebrations 9,329   16,426
Food and Refreshments 161,740   73,243
Gifts and Prizes 108,202   201,366
Ground travel (bus, railway taxi, etc.) 99,877   69,538
Insurance Expenses 87,830   50,155
Internet and Email connections 598,804   646,348
legal fees 10,595   3,850
Mobile Charges 151,805   151,983
Office Consumables (papers, pencils, pens & 
stationaries) 152,492   101,891

Outsourcing Costs (includes cleaning and security 
services) 393,748   198,220

Per Diem – Domestic 2,335,686   1,572,260
Per Diem – Foreign 95,621   62,364
Printing and Photocopying Costs 369,804   599,608
Remuneration of Instructors 6,700   15,751
Rent - Office Accommodation 1,107,672   437,073
Special Foods (diet food) 1,800   7,200
Special Operation Services 1,188,468   985,776
Subscription Fees 16,339   19,979
Tuition Fees 258,312   72,875
Uniforms and Ceremonial Dresses 68,158   19,370
Moving expenses 140,913   11,819
Water Charges 16,680   19,908
Wire, Wireless, Telephone, Telex Services 73,171   24,547
Training Allowances 29,382   581,024
Protective Clothing, footwear and gears 762   3,283
Court Attire 3,000   4,500
Registration Fee -    1,230
  9,492,563   7,505,246

The expenditure for use of goods and services in the financial year 2022/23 are 
TZS 9.49 billion (2021/22: TZS 7.51 billion).

* The use Educational Radio and TV Broadcasting in the financial year 2022/23 
are TZS 151.30 million (2021/22: TZS 46.57 million) have been included in the 
amount of Advertising and Publication.
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12.	 BANK CHARGES AND COMMISSIONS 

2022/23 2021/22

TZS (‘000) TZS(‘000)

Bank charges and commissions 15,601 15,414

15,601 15,414

During the year, TZS 15.60 million was paid (2021/22: TZS 15.41 million) 
as bank charges. 

13.	 MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

2022/23 2021/22
TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000) 

Computers, printers, scanners, and other 
computer related equipment

104,311 16,698

Mechanical, electrical, and electronic spare 
parts

- 17,906

Motor Vehicles and Watercraft 289,157 296,442

Plumbing Supplies and Fixtures - 10,201

Small tools and implements 2,700 9,542

Cement, Bricks and Building Materials 304,821 26,746

Electrical and Other Cabling Materials - 2,107

Portioning of offices 514,284 283,385

Roofing Materials - 630

Equipment and licencing 293,192 -

Vehicle tracking system support 138,893 -

NIDA data sharing cost 59,820 -

TTCL Data storage 30,450 -

Hosting RRIMS 26,492 -

Wood and Timber Supplies - 210

1,764,120 663,867

The recorded expenditure on maintenance expenses during the year 
2022/23 stood at TZS 1.76 billion (2021/22: TZS 663.87 million).
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14.	 CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

2022/23 2021/22
TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000) 

Contributions (15% on Gross Revenue and other 
contributions)

5,218,684 4,683,739

Fair Competition Commission (FCC) 180,000 135,000
Fair Competition Tribunal (FCT) 180,000 180,000
LGAs Transfers (Historic) 506,004 411,513
Occupational Safety Health Authority (OSHA) 1,490 -
National Consumer Advocacy Council (NCAC) 600,000 559,978
Subscription to AFUR 21,500 19,435
Subscription to SARA 13,980 32,823

6,721,658 6,022,488

Contributions stood at TZS 6.72 billion (2021/22: TZS 6.02 billion) made to 
the Government Consolidated Fund, other bodies and transfers. Transfers 
includes 50% refund to City/Municipal/Town councils on collections from 
Motor/Tricycle while contributions to others and international bodies 
included payments to finance budget of LATRA CCC, FCC and FCT as 
well as AFUR and SARA.

15.	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2022/23 2021/22
TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000)

BoT Own source Collection Account 784,781 2,574,232
Loan Cash Account 283,929 982,421
Own source Collection Account - NMB 56,322 50,130
Own source Development Expenditure 442,807 550,550
Own source Recurrent Expenditure GF 2,555,822 987,064
Petty Cash 8,626 6,680
Unapplied Cash Account 92,049 98,344
USD Commercial Collection Account* 11,106 11,106

4,235,442 5,260,527
Provision for Expected Credit Loss (2,124) -

4,233,318 5,260,527
*Exchange rate used: TZS 2,422.91/USD 1

Analysis of expected credit loss
Impact of IPSAS 41 - 6,011 -

6,011 -
Charge during the year (3,887) -

2,124

*Exchange rate used: TZS 2,391.5/USD 1
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

15.	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

The decrease in cash and cash equivalents is mainly attributed to payments 
to facilitate shift of LATRA Head Office to Dodoma and Provision for 
Expected Credit Loss. The difference could have been higher save for 
aggressive expenditure control to ensure the scarce financial resources are 
properly used. The notable decrease in the Loan Cash Account is a result 
of loans which were issued to employees during the financial year.

16.	 INVENTORIES

2022/23 2021/22

TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000) 

Consumables 595,793 593,521

Provision for obsolete stock - (201,771)

595,793 391,750

The above balances are for stock of consumable items purchased but not 
used in various LATRA offices. These includes printing materials, licenses, 
stationaries and office consumables. Licenses are usually purchased to 
cover requirements of three to six months.

17.	 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

2022/23 2021/22

TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000) 

Defined contribution scheme 267,295 148,395

267,295 148,395

The above balances are for Employees Benefits Scheme which was 
established by SUMATRA for the purpose of motivating and retaining its 
employees. SUMATRA appointed the Board of Trustees of GEPF/PSSSF 
as fund managers. The benefits were paid to staff when their employment 
ended with SUMATRA between 2018 to 2019. The amount remaining in 
the account of TZS 267.30 million (2021/22: TZS 148.40 million) is for 
staff whose employment were terminated and interest earned on the 
balance.

 



124 2022/23
Annual Report

5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18.	 PREPAYMENTS

2022/23 2021/22
TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000)

Subscription (SARA)                                                    - 13,980

Rent - Office Accommodation 73,691 53,833

Training Fees 108,268 108,268

Fuel/M/Vehicles (GPSA) 25,832 277,041

Air Tickets (ATCL) 5,106 -

Medical (NHIF) 96,558 -

Licences (Malindi Printing Press) 30,936 193,187

Building Materials (Nabaki, ALAF)                                  - 20,770

340,391 667,079

These are amounts paid in respect of services or goods to be provided 
after the year end. Specifically, TZS 30.94 million was paid to Malindi 
Printing Press for suppling licenses, TZS 25.83 million remaining 
with GPSA for supplying diesel, TZS 96.56 million was at NHIF for 
supplementary medical services, TZS 73.69 million was paid for Rent and 
TZS 5.11 million was at ATCL on account of air tickets. Tuition fees paid in 
2021/22 to Galilee Institute, University of Florida and Creece University 
of TZS 108.27 million was still unutilised.



1252022/23
Annual Report

5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19.	 RECEIVABLES 
The receivables at 30 June 2023 was TZS 7.46 billion (2021/22: TZS 3.76 million). 
These comprises loan balances due from employees and amounts due from TRC, 
UDART, VTS vendors and ride hailing operators. The details of the receivables are 
provided below.

2022/23 2021/22
Note TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000)
19a Receivables

Receivables from Exchange Transaction

Vehicle Tracking Devices data charges 281,445 217,465
Receivables from Non-Exchange 
Transaction
Regulatory Levy Receivable 5,428,812 2,556,166
Other Receivables 
Principal Loan Receivables 1,680,349 943,835
Loan Interest Receivable 70,913 42,559

1,751,262 986,394
7,461,519 3,760,025

19b Movement of expected credit losses
Opening balance 2,536,358 2,118,633
Impact of IPSAS 41 214,390 -

2,750,748 2,118,633

Charge during the year 386,767 417,725
3,137,515 2,536,358

Analysis of Expected credit loss
Offence 5,178 1,017
VTD 257,846 213,039
Levy 2,869,317 2,533,720
Loans 5,174 2,974

3,137,515 2,750,750
19c. Analysis of cash received from Fees and 

Levies  
Opening receivable from Non exchange 
transaction 

2,556,166 2,176,653

Revenue for the year 20,446,973 17,562,425
Closing balance (5,428,770) (2,556,166)
Cash received 17,574,369 17,182,912

19d. Analysis of cash received from Exchange 
transaction

Opening receivable from exchange 
transaction

217,465 169,561

Revenue for the year 545,924 662,094
Closing balance (281,445) (217,465)
Cash received 481,944 614,190

19e. Analysis of Loan recovery Received  
Opening receivable from Non exchange 
transaction

986,394 16,450

Loans issued 1,299,000 1,099,295
Closing balance (1,751,262) (943,835)
Cash received 534,132 171,910
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
	 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
24.0   PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2022/23 2021/22
TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000) 

24a Payables from Exchange Transactions
Accrued expenses* 1,769,667 995,891
Other employee benefit** 267,296 148,395
Other Payables*** 2,616 110,055
Payables to other government entity 675,044 675,044
Staff Claim 44,230 29,443
Supplies of goods and services 311,745 450,291
Unapplied Deposit Account 91,231 97,940
Withholding tax 290,451 305,997

3,452,280 2,813,056

24b Analysis of cash paid for supplies of goods and services 
Opening: payable for supplies and services 450,291 2,286,547
Amount expensed during the year 9,492,563 7,505,246
Closing payable for supplies and services (311,745) (2,329,221)
Opening Inventory (593,521) (672,641)
Closing Inventory 595,793 593,521
Opening Prepayment (667,079) (952,632)
Closing Prepayment 340,391 667,079
Opening Accrued expenses 995,891 -
Closing Accrued expenses (1,769,667) -
Opening Other Payables 110,055 -
Closing Other Payables (2,616) -
Opening Unapplied Deposit Account 97,940 -
Closing Unapplied Deposit Account (91,231) -
Cash paid 8,647,065 7,097,899

24c Analysis of cash paid for Wages, Salaries and Other 
employees’ benefits
Opening payable-Staff claims, WHT other 
benefits 483,835 548,360

Amount expensed during the year 11,583,469 8,749,414
Closing payable-Staff claims, WHT other 
benefits (601,977) (483,835)

Cash paid 11,465,327 8,813,939

* Accrued expenses are those incurred and claims for their settlements were not received 
until year end. 

** Other Employee Benefits are staff benefits which were invested with PSSSF as Fund 
Manager by LATRA.

*** Payables to other Government entity are TASAC liability emanating from reconciliation 
exercise by the Office of the Treasury Registrar (OTR).

The remaining are deposits for supplies of goods and services and withholding 
taxes due for payment in the following financial year.
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5.0	 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25.0 	 ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
The Authority recorded a surplus of TZS 0.92 billion for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2023 (2021/22: TZS 1.75 billion). The balance of 
accumulated surplus account as at the year-end was TZS 2.95 billion 
(2021/22: TZS 2.25 billion).

26. 0 	 TAXATION
The Authority is a public institution established for provision of regulatory 
services. Thus, the Authority’s services are not taxable, thus, there was no 
corporation tax paid during the financial year. In addition, the Authority 
is not a VAT registered trader. 

27.0 	 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
LATRA related parties of TZS 2,886,676, 000 include Government 
of Tanzania which is the ultimate controlling entity, other government 
entities, board of directors and key management personnel. 
Transfer of resources and/or obligations between related parties in LATRA 
during the year ended 30 June 2023 included the following:

27a.	 Board Remuneration and Other Expenses 
The Board of Directors is the body of appointed members who jointly 
oversee the activities of the Authority. Their expenses are set out below:

2022/23 2021/22
TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000) 

Board Meetings and Related Expenses 93,955 106,872
*Directors Fees 50,681 67,000

144,636 173,872

27b.	 Remuneration of Key Management Employees 
Management personnel include Director General, Division Directors, 
Head of Units and Managers. Management have responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Authority. Their 
remunerations during the year were as provided below:

No. of 
People:

2022/23
TZS(000)

2021/22
TZS(000)

Basic Salary:
Director General 1 132,070 115,500

Directors 4 433,620 370,522

Heads of Unit 5 395,429 358,145

Managers 9 728,364 637,307

Sub-total for Basic Salary 1,689,483 1,481,474
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27b.	Remuneration of Key Management Employees (Continued)

No. of 
People:

2022/23
(TZS)

2021/22
(TZS)

Allowances**:

Director General 1 74,877 49,860

Directors 4 199,795 128,634

Heads of Units 5 190,506 138,850

Managers 9 363,745 251,690

Sub-total for Allowances 828,923 569,034

Contributions to Pension Fund (PSSSF)***

Director General 1 19,810 17,325

Directors 4 48,502 45,031

Heads of Unit 5 54,477 53,721

Managers 9 100,845 95,596

Sub-total for Contributions 223,634 211,673

Grand Total 2,742,040 2,262,181

The increase in remuneration of key Management employees is attributed 
by appointment of four (4) senior employees to fill on acting capacity, 
management positions as per the approved Organisation Structure. The 
permission was issued by the PS -Establishment and communicated to 
LATRA through letter Kumb. Na. CCD.22/273/03/AG/72 dated 11 July 
2022.

Notes:
* The Board had seven (7) members as at 30 June 2023. During the 
year 2022/23, TZS 50.68 million (2021/22: TZS 67.00 million) was paid as 
director’s fees.

** Allowances for Management Staff consists of housing allowance, utility 
allowance, transport allowance and motor vehicle maintenance allowance 
for Management staff using their own vehicles.

*** Contribution to PSSSF is made under defined contribution plans 
for Management staff who are on permanent and pensionable terms of 
employment.

**** The new Director General who was appointed on 6 July 2022 and is 
under permanent and pensionable scheme.
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28	     COMMITMENTS

28.1 	 Capital Commitments

The Authority had no capital commitment at the year end. In the previous 
year, capital commitments were TZS 299.00 million on payment of final 
certificates for construction of SUMATRA House on Plot No. 456/160 
along Nkrumah Street Dar es-Salaam.  The outstanding amounts were 
paid during the financial year after Final Accounts and submission of final 
certificates.

28.2		 Procurement Commitments

These consists of procurement contracts which were awarded or under 
implementation as at 30 June 2023 whose budgets (carryover) were 
submitted to the Treasury Registrar and approved.

(a)	 Goods:

30.06.2023 30.06.2022

TZS’000 TZS’000

Due within one year 653,357 349,260

Total 653,357 349,260

The amount committed of TZS 653.36 million includes contracted 
amounts for supply of ICT equipment such as computers, switches and 
pads (TZS 570.37 million), supply of generators (TZS 61.24 million) and 
supply of stationery (TZS 21.75 million).

(b)	 Works:

30.06.2023 30.06.2022

TZS’000 TZS’000

Due within one year 68,745 134,213

Total 68,745 134,213

The amount committed comprises contracts for repairs and renovation of 
LATRA Offices of Katavi and Mtwara. The works were contracted to TBA 
(TZS 36.32 million) and SUMAJKT Construction Company Ltd (TZS 32.38 
million).
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28.2		 Procurement Commitments (Continued)

(c)	 Consultancy Services:

30.06.2023 30.06.2022

TZS’000 TZS’000

Due within one year 128,266 349,430

Total 128,266 349,430

The amount committed is for carrying out study on demand and supply 
of commuter services in the city of Dar-es-salaam and Mwanza.

(d)	 Non-Consultancy Services

30.06.2023 30.06.2022

TZS’000 TZS’000

Due within one year 1,234,497 535,972

Total 1,234,497 535,972

The amounts committed include airing of television (TV) programs with 
local TV broadcasting stations, improvement & support of Vehicle Tracking 
System, improvement of RRIMS, provision of air ticketing services, and 
provision of security and cleaning services at LATRA offices.

29.	 CONTIGENT ASSETS

The Authority had contingent assets arisen from unpaid compensation 
in respect of claim for a damaged motor vehicle of the Authority, Pick-
up Double Cabin with registration No. STL 8921, which was involved in 
accident at Mikese area, Morogoro region, with a Scania truck registration 
no. T264CUN. The vehicle was acquired at the cost of TZS 99,948,206.86. 
The claim arises from Civil Case No.8 of 2023 between LATRA and Attorney 
General versus Kelvin Samuel and Justine Kavishe.
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30.	 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Authority in collaboration with the Office of the Solicitor General 
handled a litigation at Kisutu Regional Magistrate; Republic vs Ashraf 
Mustafa Maumba and another pertaining forgery of Authority documents, 
Criminal Case no. 271 of 2016. The Authority’s Manager of Safety 
Coordination and Environment (MSCE) appeared as witness of the 
Authority and prosecution case was heard on 20 June 2023.

There is a possible (but not probable) obligation to be confirmed by a 
future event that is outside the control of the Authority. However, the 
Authority relies on input from the team of state attorneys from LATRA 
and the Office of Solicitor General in assessing the probability of future 
obligations.

31.	 FUNCTIONAL CURRENCIES AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

The functional currency of the Authority, which is also its presentation 
currency, is Tanzanian Shillings (TZS). The values in this report are rounded 
to the nearest thousand (TZS ‘000’).

32.	 ULTIMATE CONTROLLING ENTITY

The Ministry of Transport is the Controlling Entity of the Authority, and 
the Government of the United Republic of Tanzania is the Ultimate 
Controlling Entity of the Authority.

33.	 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY FOR LIABILITIES

None of the Authority’s assets have been pledged as security for liabilities.

34.	 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The figures in the financial statements are presented alongside the 
previous Period financials for comparison purpose.

35.	 EXPLANATIONS OF VARIANCE BETWEEN BUDGET AND 
ACTUAL AMOUNT

(a)	 Original Budget and Final Budget

The Authority’s original budget for the financial year ended 30 June 2023 
was adjusted during the half-year review to arrive at the final budget. 
Revenue collections was adjusted by TZS 6.52 billion (2021/22: TZS 3.41 
billion) from TZS 41.72 billion (2021/22: TZS 33.64 billion) to TZS 35.20 
billion (2021/22: TZS 30.23 billion). 
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35.	 EXPLANATIONS OF VARIANCE BETWEEN BUDGET AND 
ACTUAL AMOUNT (CONTINUED)

The adjustments were made based on under-performance of LGAs on 
issuing licenses to motorcycles and motor tricycles and reluctance of bus 
operators to use e-ticketing system.

The major adjustments to the budget involved decrease projected levy by 
TZS 7.03 billion, decrease in certification of drivers’ fees by TZS 1.7 billion, 
increase in projected road transport licensing fees by TZS 1.33 billion and 
increase in other income by TZS 977.02 million.

The total expenditure was adjusted by TZS 5.59 billion (2021/22: TZS 2.05 
billion) from TZS 37.69 billion (2021/22: TZS 29.52 billion) to TZS 32.10 
billion (2021/22: TZS 27.47 billion). The adjustments were made as delays 
of implementation of new salary structure whose approval was granted for 
implementation from 01 June 2022 and delayed remittance of subscription 
to AFUR as the claim was not submitted in time.

(b)	 Final Budget and Actual Amounts

The Authority’s recognized revenues for the year ended 30 June 2023 was 
TZS 34.79 billion (2021/22: TZS 28.82 billion) which was below the final 
budget of TZS 35.20 billion (2021/22: TZS 30.23 billion) by TZS 0.41 billion 
(2021/22: TZS 466.99 million). The major reason for this performance is 
attributed by low number of licenses issued by LGAs to motorcycles and 
motor tricycles and low compliance of majority of bus operators to use 
e-ticketing system which automatically deducts regulators levy.

Explanations of variances between final budget and actual amounts are 
provided in the table below:	

36. 	EXPLANATIONS OF VARIANCE BETWEEN BUDGET AND 
ACTUAL AMOUNT 	

The Authority recognized revenue amounting to TZS 34.79 against the 
budget of TZS 35.20 billion for the year 2022/23. The major reason for 
the under-performance is under-collection of service providers’ levy from 
bus operators through the use e-ticketing system whose implementation 
faced reluctance for change.  The expenditure for the Authority amounted 
to TZS 33.15 billion, which is TZS 1.05 billion below the final budget of TZS 
32.10 billion. The budget performance and explanations for variance are 
provided hereunder:
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37.	 RECONCILIATION OF CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES TO NET 

SURPLUS

2022/23 2021/22
TZS’000 TZS’000

Surplus for the year 920,744 1,749,935 

Non-cash Movements:

Depreciation 1,467,333 1,778,790 

Amortization 70,666 47,440 

Impairment of Receivables 386,766 417,725 

Impairment of Motor Vehicles - 104,190 

Reversal of provision for Expected Credit Loss (3,887) - 

Non-Monetary Revenue - Capital (345,335) - 

Working capital movements:

(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables (3,701,494) (1,397,361)

(Increase)/Decrease in Stationery Inventories (204,043) 79,122 

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (118,900) -

Increase/(Decrease) in Payables 639,224 (21,851)

Adjustment of Opening Other Payables (Non-
Cash)

110,055 - 

Adjustment of Opening Accrued expenses (Non 
Cash)

195,689 - 

(Increase)/Decrease in prepayments 326,688 285,553

Net cash flow from operating activities (256,494) 3,043,543

38.		  EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS FROM RECEIVABLES 

2022/23 2021/22

TZS’000 TZS’000

Expected Credit Loss from Receivables (Levies, 
Loans, Fines, and VTS Vendors)

386,766 417,725

386,766 417,725

The impairment of receivables in the year amounted to TZS 386.77 million 
(2021/22, TZS 417.73 million).
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39.	   STAFF LOANS ISSUED AND OTHER PAYMENTS
During the year, the Authority continued to implement its loan policy. A 
total of TZS 1.30 billion was paid to 16 staff (2021/22: TZS 1.10 billion)

2022/23 2021/22
TZS’000 TZS’000

Staff Loans Issued 1,299,000 1,099,295

Amount Paid 1,299,000 1,099,295
40.	  FINES AND PENALTIES

2022/23 2021/22

TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000)

Fines and Penalties – Road Transport 13,439,704 10,557,535

13,439,704 10,557,535

41.	 ANALYSIS OF EXPENSES BY FUNCTION
2022/23 2021/22
TZS ‘000 TZS ‘000

Administrative Expenses 23,366,234 18,067,627

Regulatory Expenses 2,832,559 2,229,665

Training and Development Expenses 174,150 581,024

Directors Fees and Other Board 
Expenses

144,636 173,872

Contribution to the Government Fund 5,126,582 4,683,739

Contribution/Subscription to 
International Bodies

1,502,974 1,338,749

33,147,135 27,074,676

42.	 NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE
2022/23 2021/22

TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000)

Cost
Furniture & Fitting                                       
Computer Equipment                        
Other Equipment

199,613
440,729
821,386

1,461,728

-

Accumulated Depreciation

Furniture & Equipment 177,624

Computer Equipment 425,676

Other Equipment 625,446

1,228,746

NET BOOK VALUE 232,982
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42.		  NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

These are assets which were approved for disposal by the Board of 
Directors in March 2023. The assets were not disposed at the year end. 
The Board of Condemnation was appointed by the Minister of Finance in 
12th October 2023 through letter Kumb. Na. KA.54/538/01’A’/143. The 
disposal is expected to be completed before end of the current financial 
year.

43.		  OCCUPATION OF SUMATRA BUILDING

LATRA was temporarily occupying office accommodation at SUMATRA 
building, which is jointly owned by TASAC and LATRA along Nkrumah 
Street, Dar es Salaam. The two institutions have formerly agreed to let 
LATRA occupy the building and signed lease agreement on 26 October 
2022. According to the agreement, LATRA rents TASAC’s space for a 
period of one year from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023. Upon expiry of the 
contract, LATRA do not intend to occupy the TASAC space and most of 
its employees will be transferred to the Head Office in Dodoma.

44.		  CAPITAL FUND

Section 50(1) of the Land and Transport Regulatory Authority Act, 
Cap. 413 provides that all assets, interest, rights, privileges, liabilities 
or obligations of the former Surface and Marine Transport Regulatory 
Authority (SUMATRA) not related to maritime transport shall be 

transferred to and vested with LATRA. Therefore, all assets and liabilities 
were taken over by the Authority and resulted to a net asset of TZS 17.05 
billion forming the Capital Fund.

45. 	 ACQISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS

2022/23 2021/22
TZS (‘000) TZS (‘000)

Additional PPE 723,243 2,278,514

Donation Received (Non- Monetary) (39,591) -

683,652 2,278,514-

The value of PPE acquired (additional) during the year and reflected in 
the Note 21 is TZS 723.24 million. This figure include assets of TZS 39.59 
million received from TSAC as Donation
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 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED
46.	 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE 
The Ministry of Works and Transport (MoWT) was split into the Ministry of 
Works and the Ministry of Transport. The Authority continue to operate 
under the Ministry of Transport. Hon. Prof. Makame Mnyaa Mbarawa (MP), 
the then Minister for Works and Transport was appointed by H.E. Dr. Samia 
Suluhu Hassan, the President of the United Republic of Tanzania, to be the 
Minister for Transport. These changes were effective from 30 August 2023.
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